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Catalina Garcia, member of a Guatemalan artistic 
expression group, prepares to lead schoolchildren 
in a health parade in the streets of Patalul. Held 
several years ago, the parade helped Guatemalans 
keep the fight against river blindness top of mind. 
Today, the World Health Organization has declared the 
disease eliminated from the country. Health workers 
and an army of people such as Garcia were key to 
Guatemala’s success.



The Carter Center, in 
partnership with Emory 
University, is guided by a 
fundamental commitment 
to human rights and the 
alleviation of human suffering. 
It seeks to prevent and resolve 
conflicts, enhance freedom and 
democracy, and improve health.

• �The Center emphasizes action 
and measurable results. 
Based on careful research and 
analysis, it is prepared to take 
timely action on important 
and pressing issues.

• �The Center seeks to break 
new ground and not duplicate 
the effective efforts of others.

• �The Center addresses 
difficult problems in difficult 
situations and recognizes 
the possibility of failure as an 
acceptable risk.

• �The Center is nonpartisan, 
actively seeks complementary 
partnerships, and works 
collaboratively with other 
organizations from the 
highest levels of government 
to local communities.

• �The Center believes that 
people can improve their own 
lives when provided with the 
necessary skills, knowledge, 
and access to resources.

A woman from Myanmar 
exits her polling station after 
voting. The Carter Center 
monitored the elections.
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A Message from President Jimmy Carter

Over the years, President and Mrs. Carter have met with Carter Center field staff and volunteers and those who benefit from our 
work. Above left: Serving as an election observer in Tunisia, Mrs. Carter listens to a voter. Above right: President Carter thanks a 
Guinea worm worker in South Sudan.

3



T
hanks to your steadfast support, the people of The Carter Center continued to 
advance peace and health in meaningful ways in 2016. This year, we celebrated 
assisting with 500 million treatments for neglected tropical diseases since 1996 

and observed crucial elections in Zambia and the Philippines. The Center’s staff 
celebrated as river blindness was eliminated in Guatemala. We ramped up efforts to 
counter the propaganda of violent extremists in the Middle East and used innovative 
social media mapping techniques to reveal real-time developments in the tragic con-
flict in Syria.

What does it take to generate this kind of success?

It takes dedicated Carter Center staff. We have some 1,000 staff members 
working in the field across multiple continents, training and empowering people to 
resolve their own challenges.

It takes grass-roots participation. The Carter Center relies on community 
volunteers to distribute vital medications to their families and neighbors. With our 
assistance, civil society groups learn how to procure information from their govern-
ments. We convene human rights defenders from around the world to share their 
experiences with each other. And journalists in the United States and abroad are 
trained on responsible mental health reporting.

It takes faithful corporate and institutional partners. Several companies have 
made substantial long-term commitments to provide medications, water filters, labo-
ratory equipment, and other products essential to our health work, while numerous 
foundations and agencies provide significant financial support year after year.

It takes trust. The only way our programs can work is if millions of individuals place 
their trust in The Carter Center and our partners. That’s a trust we’ve earned over 
more than three decades, and a trust we work to renew every single day.

And it takes you. Your interest and your support keep us encouraged and make our 
success possible. Thank you for helping us wage peace, fight disease, and build hope.

Jason Carter 	 Ambassador (Ret.) 
Chairman	 Mary Ann Peters 
Board of Trustees	 Chief Executive Officer

Ambassador (Ret.) 
Mary Ann Peters

Jason Carter

From the Chairman and the CEO

Our Success Is a Global Team Effort
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Overview

The Carter Center was founded by former U.S. President Jimmy Carter and his wife, 

Rosalynn, in 1982. A nongovernmental organization, the Center has helped to advance 

peace and health in more than 80 countries.

Key Accomplishments

• �Leading an eradication campaign that has reduced incidence of Guinea worm disease 

from an estimated 3.5 million cases in 1986 to 25 in 2016

• �Observing 103 elections in 39 countries to help establish and strengthen democracies

• �Furthering avenues to peace in Ethiopia, Eritrea, Nepal, Liberia, Sudan, South Sudan, 

Uganda, the Korean Peninsula, Haiti, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Syria, and the Middle East

• �Strengthening international standards for human rights and the voices of individuals 

defending those rights in their communities worldwide

• �Pioneering new public health approaches to preventing or controlling devastating 

neglected diseases in Africa and Latin America, including establishing village-based health 

interventions in thousands of communities in Africa

• �Advancing efforts to improve mental health care and diminish stigma against people with 

mental illnesses

Donations

The Center received $306 million in cash, pledges, and in-kind gifts in 2015–2016. 

The Center is a 501(c)(3) charitable organization, financed by private donations from 

individuals, foundations, corporations, and international development assistance agencies. 

Contributions by U.S. citizens and companies are tax-deductible as allowed by law.

Staff

Approximately 1,200 employees at Atlanta 
headquarters and in field offices around 
the world.

A child filters water in Lubumbashi, capital of 
the mining province of Katanga, in southeastern 
Democratic Republic of the Congo. The Carter 
Center works for greater transparency in the 
country’s profitable mining industry.
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A Nepalese woman awaits customers at her 
stall at a Kathmandu market. The Carter 
Center had a long-term presence as political 
observers in the country as it transitioned 
to democracy and now assists civil society 
to report on constitutional implementation.
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A
re there more men or women in the 
world? That’s a question Jin In, founder 
of 4Girls GLocal Leadership, likes to 

ask when she speaks to groups.
Most people think there are more women, 

but they’re wrong.
“We’ve killed more women,” she said. 

“There are so many more males that if you put 
them together — just the extra males — they 
would be the 24th-largest nation in the world.”

You can blame sex-selective abortions and 
female infanticide for much of that discrep-
ancy, but violence against women also plays 
a significant role. That’s why In is working 
to empower young girls to chart their own 

Through initiatives in multiple countries, The Carter 
Center pushes for the rights of women and girls

destinies. And that’s why she came to The 
Carter Center in June for the Human Rights 
Defenders Forum, an event she called “an 
amazing learning experience.”

Though the forum included men and 
extended beyond human rights abuses that 
females face, many of the defenders devote 
their lives to protecting or promoting women 
and girls.

They included Irene Santiago of the 
Philippines, a skilled conflict negotiator who 
founded Women, Seriously, a global campaign 
to increase women’s roles in issues of peace and 
security; Rodolfo Domingo Marquez of Mexico, 
who works to counter violence against women, 
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But not every story had an unhappy ending: 
One woman told a story about how she and 
some other women selling goods in a market in 
Liberia had been giving part of their proceeds 
each day to someone to clean their stalls, 
because that’s what they’d been told they had 
to do.

“When some of us went to the city 
commerce office to ask about this, we learned 
that the city had already paid our cleaning 
fees,” she said. “All this time we were losing 
our money — but not anymore.”

The Conflict Resolution Program is also 
working to empower Liberia’s women through 
its access to justice project. More than half 
of the cases its community justice advisors 
tackle are brought by women, usually women 
who need help with issues related to domestic 
violence or child support.

The advisors mediate disputes, but some-
times they go beyond the technical scope of 
their duties to find creative solutions to prob-
lems. One advisor, for example, helped found 
two support groups for women struggling to get 
by with little or no financial help from their 
male partners. The women formed farming 
cooperatives and are using the income to help 
pay for their children’s school fees.

“If the children are not educated,” one 
woman explained, “their future is doom.”

especially femicide; and Fatima Akilu of 
Nigeria, who helps rehabilitate young women 
kidnapped by Boko Haram or who joined the 
group of their own free will.

All agreed that getting the chance to speak 
with and learn from people doing similar work 
was inspiring.

“The kind of work that you do in peace is 
relentless. It just doesn’t stop,” Santiago said. 
“And so where does one draw inspiration? 
Where does one find strength to go on? It’s 
forums like this.”

The Carter Center’s efforts to advance the 
rights of women and girls extend beyond the 
Human Rights Program.

The Global Access to Information Program 
is devoting a significant portion of its resources 
to helping women in Liberia, Guatemala, and 
Bangladesh access government information to 
which they are entitled. In the research phase, 
staff heard stories from women in all three 
countries that demonstrated the extent of the 
barriers women seeking information face and 
the difference that having information makes.

These were women trying to settle inheri-
tance issues, get a loan, or find services to help 
victims of domestic violence. They spoke of 
making four-hour bus rides to an office, only to 
be turned away. Of being charged outrageous 
fees for information. Of having to ask their 
husbands’ permission just to leave the house.

Opposite: Asmau 
Ayub, a counselor at 
the Ghana Lebanon 
Islamic Secondary 
School in Accra, has 
taken techniques she 
learned at a Carter 
Center–sponsored 
human rights training 
program run by the 
Center’s partner, 
Tostan, and used them 
to introduce a human 
rights curriculum in 
her school.

Above: Speaking on 
a human rights panel 
at The Carter Center, 
Jin In (third from 
left) said that men 
greatly outnumber 
women in the world, 
with contributing 
factors of sex-
selective infanticide 
and abortion.

Right: In Liberia, 
community legal 
advisor Stephanie 
Sayeh helps guide 
people through formal 
and informal dispute 
resolution. Most who 
request assistance 
are women.
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DEMOCRACY PROGRAM
The Democracy Program deployed limited election missions to the Philippines in May and 
Zambia in August.

In the Philippines, the team concentrated its efforts in the violence-plagued region of 
Mindanao, focusing on the overall political and electoral environment. While the Center’s 
mission was too small to conduct a robust assessment on election day, the Center’s observers 
indicated that polling, counting, and tabulation appeared to have gone well. They did, however, 
express concerns about vote-buying (predominantly at the local level), gender equity, and the 
general lack of a level playing field.

The Carter Center team in Zambia called the hotly contested election there a step backward 
for democracy. There were reports of harassment of private media, abuse of office, and application 
of laws in ways that disadvantaged the opposition party.

In the United States, the Center partnered with the National Conference of State Legislatures 
to research the laws that govern observer access in each of the 50 states. The findings have been 

published online to help other observer groups plan missions and to allow legislators and voters 
to see what rules govern their state.

In Democratic Republic of the Congo, The Carter Center continued its efforts to train 
Congolese to observe their own elections, which have been postponed. It also fought 

for transparency in mining contracts to assure that citizens benefit from their coun-
try’s natural resources and supported local human rights activists in their work.

HUMAN RIGHTS PROGRAM
This year’s Human Rights Defenders Policy Forum, held in June, brought together more 
than 60 scholars, activists, and community leaders to discuss “A Time for Peace: Rejecting 
Violence to Secure Human Rights.”

Participants talked about the economics of peace, unlearning violence, and using nonviolent 
approaches in security and law enforcement. They heard a keynote address from former U.S. 
President Jimmy Carter and were the first to see a new music video for the peace-themed “Love Is 
the Answer,” co-produced by the Human Rights Program and the Berklee College of Music.

The program celebrated the International Day of Peace on Sept. 21 by hosting a panel discus-
sion devoted to finding ways to divert government investment from the machinery of war to the 
building of peace.

The discussion was broadcast through Facebook Live and the program’s Forum on Women 
website, which grew its social media audience over the year and aired other discussions on such 
topics as sex trafficking and the link between economic policies and human rights.

Meanwhile, the Center continues to partner with Tostan to train faith-based human rights 
activists in West Africa on building community support for the rights of women and girls.
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S
ince 2014, Edna Koskey has managed the Carter 

Center’s citizen observer program in the Democratic 

Republic of the Congo, working with a local organiza-

tion, the Episcopal Commission of Justice and Peace, 

to help train citizens to observe their country’s elec-

tions. Her work includes sharing information about democratic 

election standards and developing a core observation team who 

can in turn train hundreds of others. It’s a big task, as DRC is a 

large nation with unique logistical and political complications 

that have already led to one election postponement. Though the 

challenges are many, it’s a job Koskey relishes. “It’s a great and 

humbling experience to support the democratic growth of the 

country,” she said.

Edna Koskey
Democratic Republic 
of the Congo

Democracy 
Program
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M
ohamed Awad Osman helps lead the Carter 

Center’s efforts to bring lasting peace to Sudan, 

which has been mired in conflict and civil war 

since 1983. During his three years working with 

the Center, he has helped organize meetings 

designed to encourage understanding and cooperation among 

various Sudanese stakeholders and between Sudanese and 

South Sudanese. Osman studied President Carter’s efforts in the 

mid-1990s to stave off war in Haiti as part of his Ph.D. thesis at 

the London School of Economics and says he is honored to now 

be working for President Carter to try to bring peace to his own 

nation. “Sudan,” he said, “is faced with a four-pronged challenge: 

war, ethnicity, economy, and foreign relations. The way forward 

is for the new generation to start the country afresh.”

Mohamed Awad Osman
Sudan

Conflict Resolution 
Program
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CONFLICT RESOLUTION PROGRAM
As the war in Syria continued to dominate 
headlines, the Conflict Resolution Program 
kept exploring a path for a peaceful resolution 
to the catastrophic war.

The program’s dialogue initiative organized 
meetings with stakeholders to discuss what it 
would take to end the war and what a tran-
sitional government and constitution should 
look like. Its Syria mapping project has now 
documented nearly 90,000 conflict events 
through social media and other sources, helping 
paint an accurate picture of the fighting. It 
regularly shares this information with the 
United Nations and relief organizations, and 
this year it launched a dynamic online map 
that shows who controls what areas of Syria.

In Israel and Palestine, it continued its push 
for a peaceful, two-state solution. The Carter 
Center also took a stand against the delay of 

municipal elections in Gaza and the West 
Bank.

The program’s work in Liberia took on 
increased importance in July as the U.N. 
turned over responsibility for the nation’s secu-
rity to the government. As part of its ongoing 
efforts to support the country’s traditional 
leaders, it helped organize a meeting between 
the chiefs and their counterparts in Cote 
d’Ivoire to discuss border security.

The conflict resolution team also took on 
the task of countering Daesh recruitment 
propaganda by analyzing the group’s publi-
cations and social media messages and then 
organizing meetings with religious leaders 
from Europe and North Africa to share these 
findings and help them create effective 
countermessaging campaigns.

LATIN AMERICA AND CARIBBEAN PROGRAM
The Latin America and Caribbean Program 
spent considerable effort in 2016 working 
behind the scenes in Colombia to help prepare 
the nation for life after a 50-year civil war.

In April, before the original peace accord 
was signed, it organized a meeting in Cartagena 
with peace negotiators and key political 
players, including President Juan Manuel 
Santos, to discuss political and electoral 
reforms required by a peace accord. At the 
request of the minister of the interior, the 
program is now supporting a group drafting 
legislative proposals.

The Center also analyzed the human rights 
institutional framework in Colombia and 
published its findings in book form.

In February, Latin America and Caribbean 
Program and Democracy Program staff made 

the first Carter Center visit to Cuba since 
the renewal of full diplomatic relations with 
the U.S.

The Latin America and Caribbean 
Program deployed a study mission for the 
first round and runoff of the presidential and 
parliamentary elections in Peru, held in April 
and June. In July, it organized a meeting of 
the steering committee of the Friends of the 
Inter-American Democratic Charter to discuss 
key issues and to support the Organization of 
American States’ efforts in the hemisphere.

And in December, the program 
co-sponsored a seminar on electoral reform in 
Argentina with the Ministry of the Interior’s 
Subsecretariat for Electoral Affairs.
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THE CHINA PROGRAM
The China Program’s work to improve U.S.-
China relations this year included a number 
of forums, bringing together scholars, jour-
nalists, and high-ranking officials from both 
countries to foster greater understanding and 
cooperation.

Because the Center believes there are 
opportunities for the U.S. and China to 
collaborate in Africa, a continent important 
to both nations, it organized several meetings 
with officials from China, the U.S., and Africa. 
One such meeting took place in Togo in July. 
The U.S.-China-Africa Consultation for 
Peace & Prosperity, co-chaired by Mohamed 
Ibn Chambas (head of the U.N. Office of 
West Africa and the Sahel), Ambassador 
Zhong Jianhua (former special representative 

for African Affairs, China), and Ambassador 
Princeton Lyman (U.S. Institute of Peace), 
addressed maritime security and the promotion 
of peace in Africa’s Gulf of Guinea and Sahel 
region.

A follow-up workshop on combating piracy 
in the Gulf of Guinea was held in Beijing in 
November.

The China Program continues to maintain 
several websites that provide updates in English 
and Chinese on political developments and 
social transformation in China, public access to 
information, and Sino-American relations. The 
program’s signature website, chinaelections.org, 
saw growth in readership after being blocked 
for two years in China.

GLOBAL ACCESS TO INFORMATION
In August, the Global Access to Information 
Program released the findings of its study of 
women’s ability to access government informa-
tion in Bangladesh, which showed that women 
there cannot access information as easily as can 
men.

This matches the findings of past studies 
of the same issue in Liberia and Guatemala, 
though the extent of the challenges varies 
somewhat from country to country. In 
Bangladesh, women are hindered primarily by 
illiteracy, a lack of knowledge about the right 
to information and how or where to ask for it, 
cultural factors, and issues of time and mobility.

In Liberia and Guatemala, the program has 
begun implementing the recommendations 
that grew out of the studies there. It has 

hired information liaisons, who are working 
with the government and women’s groups 
to get information out to women, as well as 
helping key government agencies become 
more gender-sensitive and develop creative 
ways to ensure that women receive meaningful 
information on such topics as education, land 
ownership, and starting a business.

The program is also working in Liberia to 
increase transparency and to improve access to 
information in the justice and security sector.

Meanwhile, the program used its innovative 
Implementation Assessment Tool to help the 
governments of Uganda, Liberia, and Nigeria 
determine weak spots in putting their access to 
information laws fully into effect.
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T
he women of Guatemala have a new ally — Sofía 

Villatoro. She heads up a new Carter Center field office 

in Guatemala City, which opened in 2016, working to 

improve women’s access to government information. 

Villatoro oversees three women information liaisons, 

who work in three geographical areas: Guatemala City, Quiché, 

and Chiquimula. Together, they aim to reach women in their 

communities, in their own indigenous languages. It seems to 

be working: In just a few months of operation, the office helped 

with more than 120 information requests about issues such as 

scholarships, benefits, entrepreneurship, and property rights. “I 

think the most satisfying thing about my job is to see women 

becoming more empowered in the use of their rights,” Villatoro 

said. “Information is a key element for women to improve the 

conditions in which they live.”

MARÍA SOFÍA 
VILLATORO
Guatemala

Global Access 
to Information 
Program
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A team of health workers with Yanomami guides traverses 
Amazon country in Venezuela, traveling on foot to administer 
treatments for river blindness to the indigenous Yanomami 
people of the region. The border between Venezuela and 
Brazil is the only remaining pocket of active river blindness 
transmission in the Western Hemisphere.
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J
ude Musa is just 13 years old and about 5 
feet tall, but in November 2016 he stood 
like a grown man before a throng of more 

than 1,000 people, including traditional leaders 
and foreign VIPs who had come to his little 
village in Nigeria.

Jude received — in ceremonial fashion — 
three kinds of medication during a celebra-
tion of the Center’s role in distributing 500 
million doses over 20 years to fight neglected 
tropical diseases.

Clear skies and bright sunshine provided an 
ideal setting for the event in Gidan Gimba, 
Musa’s village in Nasarawa state, Nigeria. 

Carter Center Celebrates 500 Million Treatments 
for Neglected Tropical Diseases

Amid the music, speeches, a drama presenta-
tion, and traditional dance performances, a 
sense of accomplishment and determination 
prevailed.

“This is an achievement of partners,” said 
Ambassador (ret.) Mary Ann Peters, Carter 
Center CEO, citing the collaboration of 
government health ministries, pharmaceu-
tical companies, donors, the World Health 
Organization, Carter Center staff, and locally 
chosen volunteers known as community drug 
distributors. Nigeria’s success is an example for 
other nations to follow in tackling big public 
health challenges, she said.
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schistosomiasis, and lymphatic filariasis, as well 
as an initiative to treat intestinal worms.

“Half a billion is an amazing milestone, 
and it’s well worth celebrating,” Richards said. 
“Even more worth celebrating is the impact 
that we are having from those treatments. You 
can’t calculate the good that’s been done.”

In addition to combating river blindness, 
schistosomiasis, and intestinal worms, the 500 
million treatments also include programs that 
address trachoma (Zithromax®, donated by 
Pfizer) and lymphatic filariasis (a combination 
treatment of Mectizan and albendazole).

About half of the 500 million doses 
being celebrated have gone toward fighting 
river blindness.

Blinding trachoma and lymphatic filariasis 
were recently eliminated from part of Nigeria 
by Carter Center-assisted programs, further 
evidence of the effectiveness of the efforts 
being celebrated.

Kelly Callahan, director of the Center’s 
Trachoma Control Program, said the 500 
million doses symbolize the Carter Center’s 
core values:

“It’s not about the number,” she said. “It’s 
about helping. It’s about caring. It’s about 
worrying about people and their quality of life.”

The medications have gone to help control 
or eliminate disease in 14 countries in Africa 
and Latin America; 42 percent of the treat-
ments have been administered in Nigeria. 
On the day of the ceremony, Musa received 
Mectizan® (donated by Merck) to ward off river 
blindness, praziquantel for schistosomiasis, and 
albendazole for intestinal worms.

Yusuf Maikeffi, who has been Gidan 
Gimba’s community drug distributor for 
20 years, gave Jude one of the treatments. 
“It is important to me to help protect my 
community,” said Maikeffi, one of 80,000 
community-based volunteers and health 
workers dedicated to improving health in 
the Carter Center-assisted areas of Nigeria. 
“However long it takes, I keep working until it 
is done. I never get tired of it.”

Jude, who previously had shown signs of 
schistosomiasis, spoke into a microphone and 
encouraged his family and neighbors to take 
the drugs Maikeffi offers.

“If you take this medicine, it will help 
you,” the youth said. “Before, I was urinating 
with blood, then after they gave me the 
tablet, I take it, and now I am urinating blood 
no more.”

Dr. Frank Richards heads the Center’s 
programs to combat river blindness, 

Opposite: Recently 
Nigerian Evelyn 
Okemwa was relieved 
to learn that her 
swollen leg was not a 
curse but a disease 
she contracted 
through no fault of 
her own. She is now 
receiving treatment 
for lymphatic filariasis, 
which will prevent the 
disease’s progression.

Above: Carter Center 
volunteer community 
drug distributor Yusuf 
Maikeffi measures his 
young neighbor Jude 
Musa to determine 
the proper dosage of 
medication during a 
ceremony in a small 
village in Nigeria.

Right: In addition to 
medication, health 
education plays a 
key role in reducing 
disease. Several years 
ago, children in rural 
Mexico (pictured) 
built foam flies while 
learning that the 
insects transmit river 
blindness. Today, 
Mexico is free of the 
parasitic disease.
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GUINEA WORM ERADICATION PROGRAM
The race to eradicate Guinea worm disease 
is rounding the final turn. The Carter Center’s 
figures for 2016 indicate no human cases were 
reported in Mali and just 25 were reported in 
Chad, South Sudan, and Ethiopia. In Chad, 
the Center and its partners are testing remedies 
for infections in dogs.

There were 16 human cases of the 
parasitic disease in Chad, three in 

Ethiopia, and six in South Sudan. 
The 25 cases were spread among 

19 isolated villages, and all 
were contained within their 

countries of origin.

While there was a slight increase in human 
cases from 2015, when 22 cases were reported, 
the containment rate (cases that were identi-
fied before the disease could spread) increased 
from 36 percent in 2015 to 56 percent in 2016, 
an important indicator of future eradication 
results. The ministries of health of the four 
countries continue to persist in tracking down 
cases and rumors of cases, often in insecure 
areas.

Just 30 years ago, Guinea worm disease 
afflicted an estimated 3.5 million people a year 
in 21 countries in Africa and Asia. Today, 
eradication is within reach.

RIVER BLINDNESS PROGRAM
The Carter Center’s fight against river 
blindness reached a major milestone in 2016 as 
the World Health Organization verified that 
Guatemala has eliminated the disease. This 
achievement is especially meaningful because 
river blindness, also known as onchocerci-
asis, was first identified in the Americas in 
Guatemala and because that country once was 
the most endemic in the Western Hemisphere. 
Following in the footsteps of Colombia, 
Ecuador, and Mexico, Guatemala is the fourth 
country in the Americas to eliminate the 
disease, which remains only in a small, remote 
area along the Brazil-Venezuela border.

In Africa, where the disease is more 
pervasive, The Carter Center continues to 
partner with four African countries — Ethiopia, 
Nigeria, Sudan, and Uganda — to eliminate 
onchocerciasis through health education and 
mass distribution of Mectizan®, a drug donated 
by Merck.

River blindness is a parasitic infection that 
can cause intense itching, skin discoloration, 
rashes, and eye disease that often leads to 
permanent blindness. The parasite is spread by 
the bites of infected black flies that breed in 
rapidly flowing rivers.
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A
ntonella Lomong’o is one of the Carter Center’s 

Guinea worm guardians in South Sudan. The Kenyan 

nurse has been caring for patients in South Sudan for 

more than 12 years, and for the last five has trained 

all incoming case containment managers there. As 

the number of Guinea worm cases dwindles, Lomong’o also helps 

make house-to-house visits to provide health education and 

reminders about what the community can do to prevent trans-

mission. Lomong’o sees the eradication of Guinea worm disease 

as eminently attainable. “If all the local leaders and authorities 

unite — the chiefs, village elders, government, and the communi-

ties — then we’ll get rid of it,” she said.

Antonella Lomong’o
South Sudan

GUINEA WORM 
ERADICATION 
PROGRAM
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Mulat Zerihun
Ethiopia

Trachoma 
Control Program

W
orking in the Amhara region of Ethiopia for more 

than 10 years, Mulat Zerihun (pictured above 

at far right) has seen the toll of trachoma, a 

bacterial eye disease. “It is hard to ignore the 

groups of older ladies huddled under trees, nearly 

blinded by trachoma and in pain,” he said. As a regional manager 

for the Carter Center’s trachoma program, Zerihun spends his 

time helping communities with prevention and helping people 

who have the advanced stages of the disease get relief. The 

need is great: an estimated 1.2 million people in Ethiopia alone 

have the advanced form of the disease. But Zerihun is up for the 

challenge. “People need the chance for better sight so they can 

work more easily to feed their families and watch their children 

grow up healthy and strong,” he said.
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HISPANIOLA INITIATIVE
The Carter Center works with the minis-

tries of health in Haiti and the Dominican 
Republic to eliminate malaria and lymphatic 
filariasis from the countries’ shared island, 
Hispaniola, by 2020.

Hispaniola is the only island in the 
Caribbean with active malaria transmission. 
It also accounts for about 90 percent of the 
lymphatic filariasis burden in the Western 
Hemisphere. Both diseases are spread by 
mosquitoes.

Since 2008, The Carter Center has assisted 
both countries’ ministries of health by strength-
ening binational cooperation, providing 
technical assistance for elimination of both 
diseases, and helping to integrate activities 
between the countries’ malaria and lymphatic 
filariasis programs.

The work is paying off: Just a handful of 
lymphatic filariasis cases remain in both coun-
tries, and malaria cases dropped 79 percent 
between 2010 and 2015.

SUDAN PUBLIC HEALTH TRAINING INITIATIVE
The Sudan Public Health Training Initiative 
seeks to improve the learning environment of 
adult students enrolled in 50 health science 
training institutions in nine of Sudan’s 18 
states, train hundreds of health science educa-
tors and thousands of midwives and community 
health professionals, and produce health 
learning materials tailored to Sudan’s needs.

In collaboration with Emory University 
in Atlanta, The Carter Center works on the 

project with the Academy of Health Sciences 
under the Federal Ministry of Health in Sudan. 
The project aims to develop skilled workers 
who will provide health services to underserved 
rural areas, women, and children.

In February 2016, The Carter Center helped 
the Federal Ministry of Health acquire a large 
quantity of teaching supplies and equipment, 
including mannequins, computers, and more.

TRACHOMA CONTROL PROGRAM
Since 1998, The Carter Center has been 
a pioneer in the fight against trachoma and 
currently works to control and prevent the 
disease in Ethiopia, Mali, Niger, Sudan, South 
Sudan, and Uganda.

In August, The Carter Center and Noor 
Dubai Foundation announced a four-year 
partnership to accelerate efforts to eliminate 
blinding trachoma in Ethiopia by 2020, 
focusing on the Amhara region. In addition, 
Lions Clubs International Foundation, a long-
time partner, announced four more years of 
support for the Center’s trachoma work.

The Carter Center implements the World 
Health Organization-endorsed SAFE strategy 
for trachoma control, comprising surgery, anti-
biotics, facial cleanliness, and environmental 

improvement. This includes mass administra-
tion of Zithromax®, an antibiotic donated by 
Pfizer Inc. The program also assists in health 
education through school-based trachoma 
curricula and advocates for the construction 
and proper use of latrines to curtail breeding 
sites of the eye-seeking flies that are one of the 
transmission routes of the disease.

Advanced cases can cause the eyelashes to 
turn inward and painfully scrape the surface of 
the eye, which can lead to irreversible blind-
ness. A simple surgical procedure can correct 
the problem. In 2016, the Center supported 
119,365 free eyelid surgeries in countries where 
it assists with the implementation of the full 
SAFE strategy.
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LYMPHATIC FILARIASIS ELIMINATION PROGRAM
Lymphatic filariasis can have disfiguring 
symptoms that bring about devastating social 
stigma, but The Carter Center is pressing 
the mosquito-borne parasitic disease in four 
countries.

The Center helps ministries of health 
in Africa and on the island of Hispaniola 
distribute the drugs Mectizan® (donated 
by Merck), albendazole, and DEC. These 
medicines are taken in combination — the 
combination varies by country — to stop 
mosquitoes from transmitting the parasite from 
infected to uninfected people.

The Center in September 2016 announced 
an effort to accelerate elimination of the 
disease, along with malaria, in the Dominican 
Republic and Haiti.

In Nigeria, the Carter Center’s pioneering 
integration of drug treatments for lymphatic 
filariasis, schistosomiasis, and river blindness 
has saved significant program costs as well as 
time for community members who distribute 
the drugs.

SCHISTOSOMIASIS CONTROL PROGRAM
Schistosomiasis is caused by parasites 
carried by small snails in water sources. In 
terms of socioeconomic and public health 
impact, it is one of the most devastating para-
sitic diseases in tropical countries. Nigeria is 
the most endemic country for schistosomiasis, 
with 20 million people —mostly children —
needing treatment. The combination of 
poverty, anemia, and schistosomiasis can cause 
stunted growth and development, chronic 

debility, interrupted education, and even 
premature death.

However, as a result of a Carter Center-led 
effort to distribute the anti-parasitic drug 
praziquantel in six Nigerian states, blood 
in schoolchildren’s urine — a symptom of 
schistosomiasis —has been reduced by some 
94 percent in Nigeria’s Plateau and Nasarawa 
states and 88 percent in Delta state.

MENTAL HEALTH PROGRAM
The Carter Center Mental Health Program 
increased its international reach in 2016. The 
Rosalynn Carter Mental Health Journalism 
Fellowships expanded to include the United 
Arab Emirates and Qatar. The fellowships 
provide stipends, training, and support for 
journalists to explore mental health issues, with 
the goal of increasing public understanding and 
reducing stigma.

The Carter Center entered into a partner-
ship with the UBS Optimus Foundation to 
improve the well-being of vulnerable youth in 
Liberia. The two-year collaboration aims to 

train 130 health and education professionals 
with skills to identify and treat the mental 
health needs of youth. In addition, three 
school-based clinics are planned.

In November, more than 140 health and 
corporate wellness leaders attended the 32nd 
Rosalynn Carter Symposium on Mental Health 
Policy. “Widening the Circle of Health & 
Wellness: The Central Role of Behavioral 
Health” focused on ways to address mental 
health within communities, organizations, and 
other defined populations.
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Gabriel Ani
Nigeria

Community Drug 
Distributor

F
armer and schoolteacher Gabriel Ani volunteered to be 

a Carter Center–trained community drug distributor in 

2009. Now the father of four provides health education 

and medication for river blindness to more than 1,000 

people in 129 households in his village in southeastern 

Nigeria. Because of his careful recordkeeping and deep com-

mitment, in 2016 his supervisor with the Enugu State Ministry 

of Health named Ani the best distributor in the state. “My son 

is proud of me,” he said. “He asked me, ‘Dad, why do you want to 

help people all the time?’ I told him that it’s in my blood, that I 

love it. And he told me that when he grows up he’s going to be 

like me.”
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A woman passes a boat on dry land in 
Cape Coast, Ghana. Over the years, The 
Carter Center has worked in the country 
to fight Guinea worm and trachoma, 
observe elections, and assist in 
advancing the rights of women.
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A Message About Our Donors

A
s a not-for-profit organization, The Carter 
Center can realize its mission to wage peace, 
fight disease, and build hope around the 

world only through generous support from individ-
uals, foundations, corporations, and governments. 
More than 115,400 donors contributed $306 million 
in cash, pledges, and in-kind gifts in 2015–2016 to 
support the Center’s peace and health programs.

The Latin America and Caribbean Program is 
able to deploy resources to the region rapidly thanks 
to a robust system of partnerships, including support 
from a group of business leaders and philanthropists 
in Latin America, known as the Circle of Friends. 
Because of this group’s commitment to The Carter 
Center, the program has been able to provide key 
support to the implementation of the Colombian 
peace accord, send high-level delegations to elec-
tions in Guatemala and Peru, and advance electoral 
reform efforts in Argentina. These activities also 
are made possible with support from CAF (Latin 
American Development Bank), which has made 
long-term investments to advance and preserve 
democratic stability in the Western Hemisphere.

The Rosalynn Carter Fellowships for Mental 
Health Journalism added to its international reach 
in 2016: The Al Jalila Foundation and the Qatar 
Foundation each entered into agreements with The 

Carter Center to award one-year mental health 
fellowships to journalists in the United Arab 
Emirates and Qatar over the next five years, at 
which time the programs’ ownership will transition 
from The Carter Center to the countries. In Qatar, 
this initiative complements the nation’s national 
mental health strategy, the first of its kind in 
the region.

The Carter Center’s Global Access to 
Information Program now has completed studies in 
Liberia, Guatemala, and Bangladesh to identify the 
main obstacles facing women in accessing informa-
tion. These studies and related programming are 
possible thanks to funding from the United States 
Agency for International Development, Making All 
Voices Count, and the P Twenty-One Foundation.

Individual donors play a significant role in the 
work of The Carter Center. According to supporters 
Brenda and Wade Woodson, “The Carter Center’s 
work has focused on human rights for more than 
three decades — whether it is the focus on neglected 
tropical diseases or peace and democracy promo-
tion. We are proud to support this tireless effort to 
improve the lives of so many in need around the 
world and are heartened to see the difference it 
makes. More than ever, The Carter Center remains 
a beacon for hope.”

Sources of Support: 
Fiscal Year 2015–2016

Foundations 
11%

Individuals
9%

Governments 
(U.S. and Foreign)
8%

Other 
1%

Corporations* 
66%

Total Expenses: 
Fiscal Year 2015–2016

Fundraising 
3%

Administration 
3%

Programs 
94%

Trusts and Estates 
5%

*Note: Majority of corporate giving relates to in-kind medical supplies.
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Dyonah Thomas
Liberia

Mental Health 
Program

D
yonah Thomas is helping 

to build mental resilience 

in the citizens of Liberia. 

A project coordinator for 

The Carter Center, Thomas 

leads a program that trains, supports, 

and develops mental health capacity 

in Margibi and Montserrado counties, 

two of the most affected by the Ebola 

crisis of 2014 and 2015. His work is 

part of the Supporting Psychosocial 

Health and Resilience in Liberia 

project, funded by Japan through the 

Japanese Social Development Fund, a 

trust fund administered by the World 

Bank. The project is expected to reach 

some 18,000 people in the two coun-

ties. So far, 45 health care facilities 

provide mental health services with 

trained health care clinicians, 16 peer 

support groups have been established, 

40 treatment groups are underway, 

and 12 community dialogues have 

been held.

The Carter Center appreciates the 
support of its many donors. Although 
we are able to list only those gifts 
that totaled $1,000 or more from 
Sept. 1, 2015, through Aug. 31, 2016, 
we are grateful for each gift that 
helps to support the vital work of 
The Carter Center. Every effort has 
been made for accuracy. Should 
there be any omission or error, we 
apologize and ask that it be brought 
to our attention.

A Note 
to DonorsSome 144 volunteers 

in the Atlanta area donated 

8,188 hours of service in 

2015–2016. Their energy and 

devotion help the Center achieve 

much more with the resources 

it receives from its financial 

contributors. We thank these 

volunteers for their support.

Volunteers
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Lord and Lady Michael A. Ashcroft
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Canadian International 
Development Agency
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and Prevention
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Foundation UK
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Government of Denmark

Mr. Dermot Desmond

Mr. and Mrs. Pete Docter

Du Pont

Estate of Mark Eisner Jr.
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for Global Health

Google.org

GSK

Estate of Claus Halle

Dr. Sidney Harman and 
The Honorable Jane Frank Harman

Donors with Cumulative 
Lifetime Giving of 
$1 Million or More

When she was 10, Mila Juarez Alvarez 
had nodules on her skin, a sign of river 
blindness. Fifty years later, she and 
her community of Finca Conception, 
Guatemala, are permanently free from 
the parasitic disease, thanks to years 
of treatment spearheaded by the Carter 
Center’s Onchocerciasis Elimination 
Program for the Americas.
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Development Bank
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Ms. Jennifer Moores
Estate of Harold E. Morris
Mr. and Mrs. Michael E. Motes
National Geographic Society
Mr. Kent C. Nelson and 

Ms. Ann Starr
Newman’s Own Foundation
Nicholl Family Foundation
Ms. Teresa A. Nicholl
Northern Trust Company
Mr. and Mrs. Lowell Northrop
Mr. Kenneth Olivier and 

Ms. Angela Nomellini
Dr. Gilbert S. Omenn and 

Ms. Martha A. Darling
Dr. Eunice B. Ordman and 

Dr. Edward T. Ordman
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel L. Ostrander
Mrs. Dorothy B. Padgett
Pan American Health 

Organization
Dr. Corey and Mrs. Ellen Pavitt
Dr. and Mrs. Theodore Petroulas
Mr. Robert Pew and 

Ms. Susan Taylor
Mrs. Nan Powell
The Prentice Foundation
Qatar Foundation
Mr. Kurt N. Rathjen
Ratliff Charitable Foundation
Mr. William T. Ratliff Jr.
Mr. Tilman Reinhardt
Mr. John W. Rendon Jr. and 

Ms. Sandra L. Libby
Dr. Gary L. Rich and 

Dr. Deanna S. Mitchell
Robert M. Rogers Investments
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Rogers
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald A. 

Rosenthal
The Rotary Foundation
Mr. Doug Rottman
Mrs. Fritz M. Rottman
Rottman Family Charitable 

Foundation
The Sage Foundation
Estate of Harold Salmanowitz
Mr. and Mrs. Michael L. Sanders
Mr. and Mrs. Floyd C. Sanger Jr.
The Honorable Leah Sears and 

Mr. Haskell Ward
Ms. Deborah Selby
Mr. Gary S. Selken

Mr. and Mrs. Brent L. Slay
Mr. George Soros
Mr. and Mrs. John P. Squires
Mr. Frank Su
Systematic Management Services
Ms. Beverly Tarbell
Tarbell Family Foundation
Tides Center
Mr. and Mrs. Mark S. Turner
United Nations Development 

Programme
Ms. Wang Decai
Dr. and Mrs. John D. Welch
Dr. Stephen Wheeler and 

Dr. Patricia Wheeler

$10,000–$24,999
Anonymous (11)
Mr. John B. Adams
Dr. and Mrs. Heinz Aeschbach
Al Jalila Foundation
Mr. S. Decker Anstrom and 

Ms. Sherron L. Hiemstra
Dr. and Mrs. Michael A. Arrow
Mr. and Mrs. James H. Averill Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Jerry Babicka
Mr. and Mrs. Jack L. Bacon
Mr. and Mrs. David Max Baker
Mr. and Mrs. Karl E. Bakhtiari
Mr. James F. Barksdale
Estate of Gertrud H. Barsch
Mr. Joseph Bates and 

Ms. Lillie McAllister
Mrs. Wilma Baumgartner
Ms. Elisabeth Cordy Beckstead
Beightler Squires Charitable 

Trust
Benson Family Foundation
Mr. Robert S. Benson
Mrs. Charles W. Benton
Young Boozer Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Charles M. Brewer
The Virginia and Charles Brewer 

Family Foundation
Estate of Alene E. Bricken
Ms. Ginger L. Brookover
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald E. 

Burmeister
Mr. and Mrs. William H. Cable
Mr. and Mrs. Michael D. Cannon
Ms. Vanessa E. Cannon
Thalia & Michael C. Carlos 

Foundation
Dr. Thomas J. Carter
Ting Tsung and Wei Fong Chao 

Foundation
Ms. Karen Clark
Dr. Gail L. Clifford
Mr. John R. Clifford
Mr. and Mrs. David P. Cohn
Ms. Catherine P. Cole
The Commonwealth Fund
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Dr. Maysoon S. Ali
Dr. Subhi D. Ali and 

Dr. Maysoon S. Ali
Ms. Barbara J. Allain
Mr. H. Inman Allen
Mrs. Margaret Allen
The Honorable and 

Mrs. Brady Anderson
The Arches Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. H. Ross Arnold III
Jane C. Artz & Frederick J. Artz 

Fund
The AtLee Family Foundation
Mrs. Patricia K. AtLee
Mr. Bernard Attal and 

Ms. Gerluze Santana
Sirdar Aly Aziz
Dr. and Mrs. Emerson M. Babb
Mr. Norman S. Baier
Mr. and Mrs. Marvin L. Bailey
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Baker
Mr. Robert E. Baker
Dr. and Mrs. Jens Bakke
Mr. and Mrs. J. Gregory 

Ballentine
Mr. James A. Barker
Estate of Eugene and Rubie 

Barmore
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A. 

Barrow III
Ms. Susan J. Bedford
Brad and Mary Frances Benton
Dr. and Mrs. Robert A. Berenson
Ms. Susan E. Bevington
Dr. and Mrs. David F. Bishop
Mr. Lawrence Blaskopf
Ms. Deborah Bombard
Mr. and Mrs. Gordon S. Bonham
Mr. and Mrs. Kent R. Bourquin
Ms. Nancy Bride
Ms. Jan W. Briscoe
Broadlands Charitable Lead 

Annuity Trust
Ms. Martha Finn Brooks
Mr. Joe Browder and 

Ms. Louise Dunlap
Harold and Colene Brown Family 

Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Harold Brown
Mr. Richard R. Brown and 

Ms. Sandra Jean Zaremba
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Bruhn
The Brzezinski Family Foundation
The Honorable and 

Ms. Zbigniew Brzezinski
Ms. Terri D. Bullock
Mr. and Mrs. Scott Burnett
Mrs. Elizabeth Carabillo
Mr. and Mrs. John Cassidy
Mr. and Mrs. John K. Chalmers
Ms. Linda M. Clary
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas G. Cline

Dr. and Mrs. W. Randall Cline
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph A. Coleman
Mrs. Rosemary W. Colgate
Ken and Sandy Collier
Mr. James Connor
Mr. Robert A. Cook
Mr. and Mrs. John H. Costello III
Mr. Mark A. Craig
Chaplain (Lt. Col.) Tammie E. 

Crews
Mr. and Mrs. Michael D. Culver
Dr. George W. Cunningham
Mr. Bradley N. Currey Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Larry Curry
The Darwin Foundation
Rev. Bruce Davidson and 

Mr. Donald Barb
Mr. William A. Deacon
Ms. C. Maury Devine
Estate of Earl and Mary Dibert
Mr. and Mrs. Charley Dobson
Mr. Eric Dodds
Mrs. Wilma R. Doll
Mrs. Kimiko W. Dornburg
Ms. Rebecca Dowdakin and 

Ms. Flora McMartin
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley F. 

Drezek Jr.
Estate of Elizabeth and John 

Droege
Dr. Bruce E. Duke and 

Dr. Janice Duke
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin M. Duke
Mr. Douglas Dunn and 

Mrs. Donna Gaab
Estate of Richard E. Dwyer
Mrs. Shirley H. Elliott
Dr. Antoinette S. Emch
Ms. Marietta M. Ethier
Mr. Joseph W. Evans
Mr. and Mrs. Bob Farese
Professor and Mrs. Joseph Farrell
Mr. Robert K. Federal
The Honorable R. Keegan 

Federal Jr.
Mr. Jay M. Feinman and 

Ms. Carole A. Wood
Mr. and Mrs. James W. Felt
Dr. and Mrs. Ricardo A. 

Fernandez
Mr. Kevin Filter
Finn Brooks Family Foundation
Mr. Geoffrey Fisher and 

Ms. Anna Turner
Ms. Carol Tucker Foreman
Ms. Nancy V. Foster
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Free
Estate of Edward and Joyce Fried
Ms. Phyllis K. Friedman
Mr. Robert E. Friedman and 

Ms. Kristina Kiehl

Dr. Tim Fritz and 
Dr. Frances Chames

FThree Foundation
Mr. J. Rex Fuqua
G.D.S. Legacy Foundation
Robert E. Gallagher 

Charitable Trust
Mr. James F. Gammill and 

Ms. Susan H. Alexander
Ms. Mala Gaonkar
Ms. Amy Gazard
Mr. Safar I. Ghazal
Dr. Nancy E. Gibbs
Mr. and Mrs. John A. Gilmartin
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence D. Gilson
Mr. and Mrs. Rex L. Granum
Mr. and Mrs. Charles E. Graves
Mr. Fred Grob and 

Ms. Dorothy Kinney
Mr. and Mrs. Philip J. Grosz
Ms. Virginia L. Hajeian
Ms. Martha C. Hall
Mr. and Mrs. Richard J. 

Hamilton
Mr. Paul B. Hammond
Mr. and Mrs. Hubert L. Harris Jr.
Mrs. Francis W. Hatch
Healthcare Georgia Foundation
Ms. Ann D. Herbert
Dr. Donald Hopkins and 

Dr. Ernestine Hopkins
Dr. Nelson D. Horseman
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Housh
Ms. Margaret Hughes
Dr. Matthew and Linda Hulbert
Ms. Ellin M. Irwin
Mrs. Mavis D. James
Rev. Dr. Riley Jensen and 

Dr. Pamela Kidd
Mr. and Mrs. Alan H. Jobe
Mr. Frederick D. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Bill Jones
Ms. Marilee Jones
Ms. Nancy Jones
Mr. and Mrs. John W. 

Kapouch Jr.
Mr. Kenneth Carroll Kaufman
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher A. 

Keenan
Mr. Edward Keiderling
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J. Kelly
Ms. Kristina Kiehl
Ms. Mary Pat Killian
Mrs. Lyn B. Kirkland
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Kobs
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Koran
Dr. Wayne A. Kradjan and 

Mrs. Carolyn L. Kradjan
Drs. Mark and Diana Kudes
L4 Foundation
Rev. and Mrs. Gary R. LaCroix
Dr. Susan M. Laing

Mr. and Mrs. Robert A. Shevlin
Mr. and Mrs. Brian J. Smith
Mr. Corey R. Smith
Mr. David C. Smith
Mr. Doug P. Smith
Dr. Forrest A. Smith
Richard O. and June C. Smith 

Fund
Mr. Charles Smith-Dewey
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald C. Souza
John and Polly Sparks 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. James A. Squires
Mr. Edward Stern and 

Ms. Claudia Hearn
The Claudia Hearn and Edward 

Stern Foundation
Stonesfair Financial Corporation
Suggs Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Sidney V. Suggs
Mr. Greg Teeters
Mr. and Mrs. Frederick Teutsch
Mr. and Mrs. Michael R. Thomas
Andrew Tobias
Turner Enterprises Inc.
Mr. Robert E. Turner III
Two or More Foundation
UCB
The UPS Foundation
Mary and Lowell Van DeRiet 

Family Fund of the Minneapolis 
Foundation

Mr. David R. Virden
VitalSmarts
Mr. Paul E. von Kuster III
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Warlick
Sarah R. Wetherbee Charitable 

Trust
Mr. Michael J. Wetherbee
The WhyNot Initiative
Jesse Parker Williams Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Edward J. Wilson
Dr. Joseph N. Wilson and 

Dr. Selma P. Wilson
Ms. Joanne Woodward
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Mark 

Wright
Wrocklage Family Charitable 

Foundation
Ms. Lynne E. Wrocklage
Dr. and Mrs. Cary Yeh
Ms. Margaret Young
Ms. Yuan Yue

$5,000–$9,999
Anonymous (13)
2X4 Design
Mr. and Mrs. Henry L. Aaron
Abbott
Mr. William B. Ackerman
Dr. and Mrs. Joseph Alexander
Ms. Priscilla Alexander
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Pacific Resources
Mr. Chang K. Park
The Domenico Paulon 

Foundation
Mr. Peter J. Petkas
Mr. Nicholas Petraglia
PGA Tour
Mr. and Mrs. James A. Poole
Dr. Keith W. Prasse and 

Dr. Susan W. Prasse
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Dr. Robert J. Puckett
Mrs. Rita Coveney Pudenz
Dr. Russell Rainey and 

Dr. Cheryl Rainey
Dr. and Mrs. H. Rudy Ramsey
Mrs. Sita Rao
Mr. James C. Rawls
Ms. Ruth G. Reeder
Ms. Anne Martin Reynolds
Mr. Paul F. Rizza
Rogers Family Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Edward H. Romond
The Barbara Ross Charitable 

Trust
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald R. Rudolph
Dr. Ernesto Ruiz-Tiben and 

Mrs. Emilia Ruiz
Mr. and Mrs. Albert H. Rusher
Nathan & Shelly Sarkisian 

Foundation
Mrs. John H. Schaff
Mr. Robert L. Schmerker
The John and Kathleen Schreiber 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. John Schreiber
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Seele
Ms. Doris J. Seely
Mr. Marcus A. Shaw
Ms. Jane E. Shivers and 

Mr. William M. Sharp Sr.
The Sikand Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory R. Simpson
Dr. Brett T. Brinker and 

Dr. Heather A. Slay
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence P. Smith
Dr. and Mrs. R. Bob Smith III
The Smith-Free Group
Mr. and Mrs. Mike D. Snegg
Mr. Brent A. Sowers
Ms. Margaret J. Spencer and 

Ms. Patricia J. Lahti
Mr. Robert Stets Jr.
Sun Culture Foundation
Mr. Siva Suresh
Surgo Foundation
Sutter Instrument Company
Dr. Peter Swift
Professor Steven Tanksley
Ms. Carol Tauer
Ms. Jennifer C. Taylor
Ms. Suzanne K. Taylor

Dr. Samuel T. Test
ThinFilms Inc.
Dr. Gail E. Thomas and 

Dr. James E. Moore
Mr. and Mrs. Mark W. Tipton
Mr. and Mrs. Lloyd S. Troyer
Ms. Martha L. Vaughan
The Honorable Paul A. Volcker
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald K. 

Wackowski
Mr. Bruce Wahle
Mr. Dougin Walker and 

Ms. Elizabeth Bromley
Ms. Nancy Wallace
The Ward Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Ward
Commander Peter Ward
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy A. Watt
Ms. Ann Rhodes White
Malcolm Hewitt Wiener 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Malcolm H. Wiener
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Williams
Dr. Marilyn Williams
Dr. and Mrs. Peter Windhorst
Dr. Robert L. Wintermyer
The Kate and Richard Wolters 

Foundation
The Kate and Richard Wolters 

Foundation
Ms. Grace Wooding
World Health Organization
Mr. Xu Feng
Mr. Peter Yarrow
Mr. Robert A. Yellowlees
Dr. Katrina Yielding
Dr. David S. Zamierowski
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy D. Zeak
Peggy and Lee Zeigler
ZTE USA
Mr. Richard W. Zurek

$1,000–$4,999
Anonymous (51)
Mr. Eugene Aaron
Ms. Kathleen M. Abbey
Mr. Warren Abbey
Mr. and Mrs. Charles F. Abboud
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin Abel
Ms. Tamara Abell
Mr. and Mrs. W. Randall Abney
Mr. Alan R. Abrams
Ms. Denise Abrams
Abrams Foundation, Inc
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Abrams
Mrs. Lois Abrams
Mr. and Mrs. Daryl Ackerman
Ms. Kay E. Adair
Mr. Jeffrey Adamczak
Dr. Alan Adams and 

Ms. Kathryn A. Lyons

Dr. Curtis E. Adams and 
Mrs. Toni Chancellor-Adams

Mr. Donald Adams and 
Ms. Ellen Maland

Mr. James F. Adams
Mr. Thomas Adams and 

Ms. Erin Bell
Mr. and Mrs. Art Adie
Ms. Catherine M. Adler
Ms. Deborah J. Adler
Mr. and Mrs. Shawn M. Aebi
Walter and Leticia Aeschbach
Dr. and Mrs. Ravinder Agarwal
Mr. Damien Agostinelli
Mr. and Mrs. David Aha
Dr. M. Basheeruddin Ahmed and 

Dr. Shakila Ahmed
Ms. Sandra J. Ahn
Mr. and Mrs. Edwin Aiken
Dr. Gillian Air
Mr. Lon P. Akerberg
Mr. and Mrs. Mark E. Alberts
Mr. and Mrs. Frank S. Alexander
Mr. and Mrs. Silvio P. Alfeo
The Allan and Lalita Charitable 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Allen
Mr. Ken Allen
Ms. Sylvia E. Allen
Mrs. Tricia Allen
Mr. and Mrs. Charles Allton
Ms. Susan W. Almy
Mr. Steve M. Alpers
Ms. Eleanor Alston
Ms. Elkin Goddard Alston
Mr. Edward E. Altemus
Ms. Susan C. Alvey
Mr. and Mrs. Edward A. Ambs
AMG Engineering & Machining
Dr. and Mrs. Sam J. Amirfar
Ms. Angelique Anderson and 

Mr. Jeffrey Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Bob Anderson
Dr. Cris J. Anderson
Ms. Elizabeth Anderson
Dr. Larry J. Anderson and 

Ms. Karen Torghele
Ms. Mary Lee Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Roger Anderson
Sherman Michael Anderson 

Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Weston A. 

Anderson
Mrs. Jean Andreen and 

Mr. Wayne Andreen
Mr. David M. Andreotta
Mr. Markus Andres
Dr. and Mrs. Charles A. Andrews
Dr. and Mrs. Athar Ansari
Azam Ansari, M.D.
Dr. Roberto Oscar Aquilano
Ms. Miriam N. Arbelo

Landis Construction Co.
Dr. James T. Langland and 

Dr. Penny I. Langland
Mr. and Mrs. James M. LaRowe
Mr. and Mrs. Matt Leacock
Ms. Jessica Ledbetter and 

Ms. Ranee Barsanti
Mr. Dale W. Leibach
Mr. and Mrs. David R. Lewis
David R. and Betsy Lewis 

Foundation
Mr. Bruce C. Lincoln
Dr. Stan M. Lindenfeld
Mr. and Mrs. David Liner
Mr. Lawrence P. Littlewood and 

Dr. Edna M. Littlewood
Lockheed Martin Aeronautics
LPL Financial
Ms. Kathryn Lynn
Mr. Richard F. Lyon and 

Ms. Martha McMahon
Mr. Carl Malcolm
Mr. Robert Marsh
Mr. Abit Massey
John Ray Mattheis, M.D.
Mr. Brandon McCall and 

Ms. Tracie Diamond
Mrs. Lynne B. McClendon
The Honorable and 

Mrs. Alonzo L. McDonald Jr.
Ms. Susanne McMillan
Mr. and Mrs. Rudy McVicker
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Merrill
Mr. and Mrs. Edward G. Merritt
Dr. Gary L. McKown and 

Ms. Jill M. Meuser
Ms. Margery Meyer
Ms. Phyllis Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Richard B. Miller
Dr. Masakazu Miyagi and 

Dr. Mary Miyagi
Ms. Maria A. Montalvo and 

Representative Strom Peterson
Dr. James E. Moore
Ms. Tertia Moore
Mr. Richard A. Muller
Mr. Leo F. Mullin
Mr. and Mrs. Glen Mumey
Mr. Arshad Mumtaz
Ms. Myra M. Munson
Mr. Peter M. Musser
Ms. Lee Ann Myers
Mr. Michael Nelson and 

Ms. Louise Durocher
Ms. Penny Norman
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Norton
Father William Olesik
Mr. and Mrs. Eric Olsen
Optum
Ms. Lisa Orberg
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas G. 

O’Riordan
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Ms. Janet M. Bartlett
Mrs. Margaret Bartlett
Mr. Donald Barton
Mr. John J. Barton
Mr. Todd Barton
Mr. David W. Barts
Mr. David W. Bartz
Mr. Darrel Bateman
Mr. Stephen Bates
Mr. Michael Batte and 

Ms. Wanda Kile
Mr. Richard A. Baumgartner
Mr. Alan Baxter
Ms. Patti Baynham
Dr. Robert E. Beach and 

Dr. Patricia S. Beach
Mr. Michael D. Beachy
Ms. Caryl Conry Beal
Mr. and Mrs. Jeff Beal
Mr. Horace E. Bearzi
Mr. and Mrs. Byron T. Beasley
Ms. Lauren Beaudry
Ms. Mary W. Beazley
Mr. and Mrs. Bryan T. Bebb
Mr. and Mrs. Bryce L. Beck
Mrs. Darla Beck
Mr. Jay Beck
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Becker
Dr. Jonathan Becker
Ms. Sheri Beckler
Ms. Susan J. Bedford
The Beggs Family Foundation
Ms. Sandi Jo Behnken
Mr. Kenneth Belcher
Reverend Emily Bell and 

Mr. Bob Bell
Dr. Gregory J. Bell
Mr. and Mrs. Louis Bellardo
Albert & Pamela Bendich 

Charitable Trust
Mrs. Albert Bendich
Mr. Richard Benfield
Mr. Magnus Bennedsen
Mr. David L. Bennett
Mr. E. Kenneth Bennett
Mr. and Mrs. John Bennett
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Beran
Mr. and Mrs. Donald E. Berg
Ms. Catherine M. Berger
Mr. Laurence N. Berking
Mr. Richard Berkins
Mr. and Mrs. Michael S. Berman
Mr. Thomas Bernadzikowski
Mr. and Mrs. Scott Bernecker
Carol Lavin Bernick Family 

Foundation
Dr. David A. Bernstein
Rev. and Mrs. James G. Berry
Mr. and Mrs. John T. Berry
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Berry

Mr. Wayne Bert and 
Ms. Kerstin Jagerbo

Mr. and Mrs. William O. 
Bertelsman

Ms. Nancy Bethke
Mrs. Kathy Betty
Mr. Jim Betz
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth D. Betz
Ms. Caroline Beverstock
Ms. Paula Lawton Bevington
Ms. Annamae M. Beyette
Mrs. Victoria Beynon
Mr. Bruce Bidle
Mr. David G. Biemiller
Ms. Suzanne Binder
Mr. and Mrs. S. W. Binkley
Mr. Robert A. Binnie
Mr. and Mrs. Robert R. Binns
Ms. Ada Lea N. Birnie
Ms. Flores W. Bishop
Mr. William Bishop
Mr. Philip G. Black
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Black
Mr. Ronnie Blake
Dr. Tallis Blalack and 

 Ms. Katherine Weller
Dr. Kendall Blanchard and 

Dr. Connie Blanchard
Mr. and Mrs. Lee N. Blatt
Mr. and Mrs. Francis J. Blesso Jr.
Ms. Teri Bleuel and 

Dr. Charles McCalla
Blistex
Mr. William K. Block
Mr. John W. Bloom
Ms. Barbara D. Blum
Mr. and Mrs. Glendon W. Blume
Ms. Elayne M. Blumhagen
Mr. Wayne Blythe and 

Dr. Cheryl Blythe
BMI-Rupp Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Fred Bockman
Mrs. Sue Bockman
Mr. and Mrs. David L. Boddy
The Boeing Company
Mr. Adam C. Boese
Mrs. Robert C. Bogenpohl
Mr. and Mrs. Joshua Boger
Mr. Scott Boggess
Ms. Joan W. Boggs
Mr. and Mrs. Frederic Bohl
Ms. Sandra Bohman
Dr. and Mrs. John K. Boitnott
Mr. Franz-Josef Boll
Melanie and James Bollinger
Mr. Herbert T. Bolton
Mr. and Mrs. Ross Bolton
Mr. and Mrs. Edwin Bond
Mr. Geoffrey Bond
Ms. Nina Boniske

Mr. and Mrs. Thomas H. 
Boone Jr.

Dr. Carol C. Borden
Dr. Leslie McIntosh Borrelli
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Bottge
Mrs. Elisabeth Bottler
Dr. Kenneth Boudreau and 

Dr. Karen Boudreau
Mr. and Mrs. John A. Boudreaux
Mrs. Patricia Bourland
Ms. Roseann H. Bove
Ms. Kathleen Bovid
Deborah and Josh Boyce
Mr. John Boyd
Mr. and Mrs. William E. Boys
Ms. Olivia Bozik
Helen V. Brach Foundation
Mr. Todd C. Bradbury
John and Kristine Bradley
Mr. Neal Bradsher and 

Ms. Elizabeth Johnson
Mr. Charles W. Brady
Mr. and Mrs. Greg Brand
Mr. Albert Brandel and 

Dr. Maureen Murphy
Mr. David F. Brandt
Ms. Susan E. Brandt
Ms. Birke Breckwoldt
Mr. John P. Bremer
Estate of Howard S. Bremond
Mr. Sean M. Brennan
Mr. Scott Brennan
Ms. Virginia G. Brey
Mr. and Mrs. John Briedis
Mr. Harold C. Brockman
Ms. Marilyn L. Brodie
Mr. and Mrs. Reade Brower
Mr. Corey Brown
Mr. and Mrs. David P. Brown
Reverend and Mrs. John Brown
Mr. Johnnie Brown
Ms. Kellie R. Brown
Mr. and Mrs. Matthew J. Brown
Mr. Robert Clarke Brown
Mr. and Mrs. Stuart H. Brown
Mr. Willard B. Brown
Dr. William T. Browne and 

Dr. Evelyn W. Browne
Ms. Millicent Bruce
Dr. David Brunco
Mrs. James I. Brunell
Ms. Barbara A. Bruner
Dr. C. Hal Brunt
Mr. David H. Bryan
Ms. Cecelia E. Bryant
Ms. Cynthia Rose Bryant
Ms. Rose Bryant
Mr. Scott Bryson
Mr. and Mrs. Frederick L. Budde
Dr. Robert E. Budin and 

Dr. Diane A. Lowe

Mr. Brian Arbogast and 
Ms. Valerie Tarico

Mr. and Mrs. Bruce H. 
Armstrong

Mr. Norman A. Arnold
Mr. Kevin W. Arthur
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas S. Arthur
Dr. Kazuko K. Artus
Ms. Ann M. Ashton
Mrs. W. F. Askins
Mr. Harold Atchley
David A. Atefi, M.D.
athenahealth
Mr. Roger Atkinson and 

Ms. Janet Arey
Atlanta Woman’s Club
Mrs. Phoebe Atwood
Mrs. Julia E. Austbo
Ms. Anita Austin
Mr. Charles W. Austin
Mr. Clarence Avant
Mr. and Mrs. Moses Awe
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Aweida
Mr. Peter Babbidge
Mr. and Mrs. James F. Backman
Mr. Abdulla Badsha
Ms. Elizabeth L. Bailey
Mr. and Mrs. Jeff C. Bailey
Ms. Virginia R. Bailey
Dr. and Mrs. Alfred L. Baker
Mr. Bill R. Baker
Mr. and Mrs. Gareth D. Baker
Dr. William Baker
Mr. and Mrs. James V. Bala
Mrs. Lloyd B. Baldwin
Dr. John R. Ball
Mr. and Mrs. W. Thomas 

Ballantine
Ms. Laurie Balmuth
Mr. and Mrs. Parmanand 

Balsaver
Mr. Joseph L. Balwierczak
Mr. Joe T. Bamberg
Mrs. Margaret L. Banister
Mr. Kifle Bantayehu
Mr. Mihai Bantos
Ms. Rosemarie Baratta
Mr. William Barclay III and 

Ms. Elizabeth K. Taylor
Mr. Paul L. Barden
Mr. Robert L. Barkley
Ms. Jan C. Barlow
Mr. Jeff Barnes
Ms. Anne Barnett
Mr. and Mrs. George D. Barnhart
Ms. Elaine Barnhill
Mr. and Mrs. Lloyd J. Baroody
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas Barringer
Dr. Joseph Barry
Mr. Robert H. Bartels
Mr. William C. Bartholomay
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Mr. Kent H. Carlsen
Mrs. Linda B. Carlyle
Dr. Amee F. Carmines
Mr. Bertram W. Carp and 

Ms. Lynn McReynolds
Minda and Andrew Carpenter
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J. Carpenter
Mr. James R. Carr
Ms. Susan A. Carr
Mr. Wayne Carriere
Mr. and Mrs. Cameron 

Carrington
Mr. Charles W. Carson Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. James B. Carson Jr.
The Calvin W. Carter Family
Dr. Jean Carter and 

Mr. Michael Carter
Mr. and Mrs. John Carter
Dr. and Mrs. John B. Carter
Dr. Ronald D. Carter and 

Ms. Judith Carter
Ms. Victoria P. Carver
Mr. Daniel Casey and 

Ms. Dolores Connolly
Mr. Roger D. Cash
Ms. Sharon L. Cassidy
Ms. Cecily L. Cassum
Dr. Ana M. Castellanos
Mr. Dan T. Cathy
Ms. Theresa Catino
Mr. Daniel G. Caton
Dr. James G. Caya
The Cedars Foundation
Dr. Louis Centofanti and 

Ms. Wanda Rachels
Dr. and Mrs. Arthur Chaffee
Ms. Christina Chalkley
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy N Chang
Ms. Miriam D. Chapman
Mr. and Mrs. Gary A. Charles
Estate of Della M. Chase
Mr. Ken Chase
Dr. Michael D. Chase
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Chase
Mr. David Chasson
Dr. Charles S. Chen
Ms. Laura Chenel
Cherokee Foundation
Ms. Diane M. Chestnut
Mr. Daniel M. Chew
Mr. Albert Chiang
Mr. Sam Childers and 

Mr. Jeff Hemphill
Mr. Philip S. Chordas
Dr. and Mrs. Paul M. Christensen
Mr. Richard Christensen
Mr. and Mrs. Lynn Christiansen
Julia and Brian Christman
Mr. and Mrs. David Christopher
Chiwei Chuang
Mrs. Julia Horne Church

The Honorable and 
Mrs. Benjamin R. Civiletti

Mr. and Mrs. Allen T. Clark
Dr. Diane Clark
Paul W. Clark Family Foundation
Ms. Frances P. Clark
Mrs. Charles E. Clark
Mr. Paul W. Clark
Mr. and Mrs. Terry M. Clark
Mr. Russell K. Clayton
Ms. Suzette J. Clayton
Mr. and Mrs. Walter L. 

Cleaver Jr.
Mr. D. Elwood Clinard
Ms. Rebekah Clower
Mr. Thomas Clower Jr.
Mr. John S. Clyde
Ms. Marge Coahran
Mr. Howard K. Coburn
Ms. Regina Cocanougher
Mr. and Mrs. James Cochran
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas M. 

Cochrane
Mr. George Cocks
Mr. Alan M. Cody
Mr. Mark Coffman
Mr. David H. Cofrin and 

Ms. Christine Tryba-Cofrin
Mrs. Ruth Cogswell
Mr. and Mrs. Darvy M. Cohan
Mr. Edward B. Cohen and 

Ambassador Charlene 
Barshefsky

Mr. and Mrs. Harvey M. Cohen
Mr. Mark B. Cohen and 

Ms. Sheila M. Fyfe
Ms. Sheryl Cole
Ms. Roberta K. Coleman
Mr. David Coler
Reverend David Coles
Mr. Robert B. Colgin
Ms. Nancy F. Collier
Ms. Emma Lou Collins
Mr. and Mrs. Richard B. Collins
Mr. Roger C. Conant
Mr. Bryan Conley and 

Ms. Monika Nikore
Ms. Susan E. Conner
Mr. Basil J. Connor
Dr. K. T. Connor and 

Mr. Jere Robings
Conway Family Foundation
Ms. Carolyn L. Cook
Ms. Margaret A. Cook Levy
Mr. William Cook and 

Ms. Monika Mevenkamp
Mr. and Mrs. Allen Cooke
Mr. Raymond Jervis Cooke
Dr. Sarah Cookinham
Mr. Mark J. Coolican and 

Ms. Susan J. Blotzer
Dr. and Mrs. Max Cooper

Ms. Susan Cooper
Mr. James M. Copeland Jr. and 

Ms. Deborah E. McFarland
Ms. Doris J. Coplien
The Honorable Samuel G. 

Coppersmith
Ms. Alyse Lucas Corcoran and 

Mr. John L. Morrison
Dr. and Mrs. Eugene H. Cordes
Ms. Ellyn Corey and 

Mr. Thomas Sartor
Dr. Lynn D. Cornell
Mr. Rod Corvo
Dr. and Mrs. Michael F. Coscia
Ms. Suzan L. Costantini
Mr. and Mrs. John M. Cotton
Ms. Christine R. Cottrell
Mr. Stuart W. Couch
Mr. and Mrs. William M. Coulter
Mr. and Mrs. Charles M. Couric
Dr. Shawn Cowper and 

Dr. Carolyn Rambus
Mr. Gary S. Cox
Ms. Marcia Cox
Mr. and Mrs. Rodney B. Cox
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Cox
Mr. Michael Craib
Ms. Nancy W. Craig
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Crain
Mr. and Mrs. Maury S. Cralle Jr.
Mr. Irl Cramer
Mr. David C. Crane
Mr. Erik Crank and 

Mrs. Laura Arbilla
Ms. Shelley Cranley and 

Mr. Marcelino Duran
Mr. Charles B. Crawford Jr.
Ms. Dona L. Crawford
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Creger
Ms. Lisa M. Cremin and 

Mr. W. Bruce Harlan
Dr. Melinda Crenshaw
Ms. Linda K. Criminger
Mrs. Pamelia Crockett
Ms. Patricia J. Crockett
Dr. Gary Cromer and 

Ms. Judy Porter
Ms. Mary Karen Cronin
Ms. Eleanor B. Crook
Mrs. Louis C. Crouch
Mr. and Mrs. Dwight Crowder
Areta Crowell and Russell Smith
Ms. Anne B. Crumpler
Mr. Phil Cubeta, MSFS, CLU, 

ChFC, CAP
Ms. Judy M. Culbreath
Ms. Janice A. Culpepper
Culver Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. J. Bart Culver
Mr. Danny Cupit
Mr. and Mrs. John Cummings
Ms. Mary E. Cupp

Mr. Mike R. Budzik and 
Ms. Sarah A. Tacoma

Mr. and Mrs. Thomas S. 
Buechner III

Mr. and Mrs. William J. Bugg Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Allen C. Buhler
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne L. 

Bullaughey
Mr. and Mrs. Steve Bunce
Ms. Mary Catherine Bunting
Ms. Mary Alice Burack
Ms. Shannon Burch
Ms. Treava W. Burgess
Ms. Mary Stewart Burgher
Dr. Kathleen M. Burke
Ms. Theodora L. Burke
Ralph Burnham Charitable 

Lead Trust
Mr. and Mrs. James Burnis
Mr. James Burns
Ms. Nell Burns
Dr. Annie H. Burriss
Dr. and Mrs. William J. Burtis
Mr. and Mrs. Henry L. Burton
Ms. Susan Okie Bush
Ms. Enid J. Busser
Dr. David M. Butler
Mr. L. Headley Butler
Dr. and Mrs. Paul R. Butler
Mr. Gary A. Butts
Byers Engineering Company
Mr. Kenneth G. Byers Jr.
Sandra and Kevin Byers
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew W. Byrd
Mr. and Mrs. Jerry M. Byrd
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce C. Byrne
Ms. Kris Byrne
Ms. Sandra Cable and 

Mr. Ed Cable
Ms. Patty Cabot
Mr. and Mrs. Christophe Cadiou
Ms. Cindy Calbaum
Mr. Christopher A. Calhoun
Ms. Anne L. Calkins
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Camara
Mr. Timothy J. Cambias Sr.
Dr. and Mrs. Bruce Camitta
Dr. Elizabeth E. Campbell
Mr. James H. Campbell
Ms. Jane Campbell
Mr. Phil W. Campbell
Dr. Cecilia H. Cantrell
Mr. and Mrs. Steven Capella
Ms. Felicia Cappadona
Catherine and Robert Capriles
Ms. Carole M. Carey
Ms. Kathleen Carey and 

Mr. Jeffrey Carey
Ms. Statia Carey
Mr. David Carlino
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald Carlisle
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Ms. Francoise Denis
Mr. and Mrs. Geoffrey E. J. 

Dennis
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey V. Dennler
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. 

Denny Jr.
Mr. Edward V. Desantis
Mr. Glenn Dettinger
Ms. Sarah Deutsch and 

Mr. Eli Eilbott
Mrs. Irene Devine
Mr. Denis C. Devlin
Mrs. Carol Devoss
Ms. Tina Devries
Mr. and Mrs. Charles F. Dewald
Ms. Pacia T. S. Dewald
Mr. George T. Dewey III
Mr. and Mrs. Donald N. Dial
Mr. Richard A. Diamond
Ms. Sandra Diaz
Dr. John Dick
Dr. Claudia Dickerson
Mr. Mark Dickinson
Dr. and Mrs. W. Reed Dickinson
Dickson Family Fund
Ms. Marion Diener
Mr. Richard H. W. Dillard
Ms. Jean Marie Dillon
Ms. Teresa Disspain
Ms. Janet Dixon
Ms. Mary C. Dixon
Mr. and Mrs. Phil Dixon
Mr. Martin Doblmeier
Ms. Eileen Docekal
Mr. Carl J. Doerksen
Mr. William Doerrer
Ms. Elizabeth A. Doherty
Mr. Arlen D. Dominek and 

Mr. A.J. Young
Dr. Taymon Domzalski and 

Dr. Lisa Ann Cavanaugh
Mr. John D. Donahue
Mr. Michael Donnantuono
Mr. and Mrs. Edward Keith 

Donnelly
Mr. and Mrs. J. Lawrence 

Donoghue Jr.
Mr. Paul Dooley and 

Ms. Winnie Holzman
Mrs. Robert J. Dorwart
Mr. and Mrs. Glenn R. Doshay
Mr. and Mrs. John Doucette
Ms. Betsy Downey
Dr. Deborah Downs
Ms. Christine Doyle and 

Mr. Michael Yessick
Mr. and Mrs. John Doyle
Mr. John Doyle
Miss Yvonne D. Doyle
Mr. Douglas O. Drake
Dr. Robert Numan and 

Dr. Diane E. Dreher

Ms. Susan Driscoll
Mr. and Mrs. Rodney Driver
Mr. and Mrs. Cornelis J. Drost
Mr. and Mrs. Clarence 

Drummond
Ms. Karen I. Duckett
Ms. Kathleen Duffy and 

Mr. Drew Dolak
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Duffy
Mr. Robert J. Duffy and 

Ms. Betty Liles
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Dull
Mr. Frank Dunau and 

Ms. Amy Davis
Ms. Lisa A. Dunavin
Ms. Anneliese H. Duncan
Ms. Deborah Dunevant
Ms. Marcia F. Dunscomb
Mr. and Mrs. William J. 

Durako Jr.
Ms. Judy A. Dwyer
Dr. and Mrs. David S. Dyke
Eagan Family Foundation
Mr. John F. Eagan
East Coast Stainless
Ms. Sharon Easterling
Mr. Thomas A. Ebert
Ms. Evelyn Echevarria
George H. Eddings Sr. and 

Alfreda R. Eddings Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. George H. 

Eddings Sr.
Mr. and Mrs. Bert P. Eder Sr.
Estate of Doris Edwards
Ms. Genelle Edwards
Ms. Kimberly A. Edwards
Ms. Marigold A. Edwards and 

Ms. Nora B. Runsdorf
Mr. and Mrs. William T. Edwards
Mr. and Mrs. William 

Eerdmans Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Edmund A. Egan
Mr. M. Michael Egan
Ms. Laura M. Egger
Ms. Marci Eggers
Mr. and Mrs. David Eggert
Dr. and Mrs. Bryon Ehlmann
Ms. Marypat T. Ehlmann
Ms. Irene A. Ehret
The Honorable Stuart E. 

Eizenstat
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J. Ekman
Dr. Mouradi B. Elchahal
Mr. and Mrs. Eric Elfner
Mr. and Mrs. Kamal Elias
Mr. Edward Ellefsen
Mr. and Mrs. Eldon Eller
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel W. Elliott
Mr. Al Ellis
Ms. Rosanda Ellsworth
Mrs. Julia S. Elsee
Dr. and Mrs. Dirk M. Elston

EnCana Cares (USA) 
Foundation

Dr. and Mrs. Steven Ender
Ms. Kathryn Engholm and 

Mr. Jeffrey Earls
The Honorable and 

Mrs. James C. England
Dr. Mary Jane England
Mr. Gordon L. Enns and 

Ms. Robin Eichenberg
Ms. Helen L. Enslow
Mr. Brian Epstein
Mr. and Mrs. John D. Epstein
Ms. Barbara J. Ericson
Ms. Dianne Erickson and 

Ms. Lois Pettinger
Ms. Sheila Erlach
Dr. and Mrs. Trent Erney
Ms. Catherine Erny
Mr. Joseph W. Esherick and 

Ms. Wa Ye
Ms. Lisa Esherick
Mr. Daniel Esrey
Mr. Robert J. Essick
Mr. and Mrs. C. Paul Estep
Ms. Christine Evans and 

Mr. John Gland
Mr. and Mrs. David Evans
Mr. and Mrs. Edward R. Evans
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas N. Evans
Ms. Kellie Evans-O’Connor
Dr. and Mrs. Frederick F. 

Everhart
Mr. Benjamin L. Everitt
Mr. Robert V. Evers
Dr. and Mrs. Edward Ewing
Mrs. Susan Ewing
Experimur, LLC
Ms. Barbara Faga and 

Mr. Paul C. Kulinski
Mr. and Mrs. Michael P. Fahey
Mr. John W. Failor
Mrs. Dara Fairgrieves
Mr. Patrick R. Falkner
Dr. Harlicia F. Farley
Dr. and Mrs. Neil Farris
Mr. Joseph Fata
Dr. Catherine A. Faver
Mr. Joel Fechter
The Federal Firm, LLC
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas V. 

Fehsenfeld
Mr. and Mrs. William S. 

Fehsenfeld
Mr. and Mrs. David Fein
Ms. Elaine J. Felde
Mr. and Mrs. Henry David 

Fellows Jr.
Dr. Flora Fennimore
Dr. R. Fenton-May
Ms. Laura M. Ferenc

Mrs. Carleton E. Curran
Mr. and Mrs. Gilbert Curry Jr.
Dr. Roy Curtiss
Ms. Kristin A. Cutler
Mr. and Mrs. W. Bowman Cutter
Ms. Marlene Czarkowski
Mr. and Mrs. Robert K. 

Dace-Smith
Reeshad Dalal, Ph.D.
Mr. and Mrs. Cameron Dales
Ms. Colleen Daly
Mr. Scott M. Daniel
Mrs. Billie Jacquelyn Daniels
Ms. Melonee A. Daniels
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen S. 

Danielsen
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Dannevik
Mr. Kelly M. Darden Jr.
Dr. Carol F. Daron
Dart Bank
Dr. Sita K. Dash
Mr. and Mrs. Gastón O. Daumy
Mr. Daniel H. Davenport
Mr. Michael Davern
Mr. Daniel B. Davidson
Mr. John P. Davidson
Mr. Roger C. Davidson
Mr. Alan J. Davino
Dr. Alison E. Davis
Ms. Ann G. Davis
Ms. Barbara M. Davis
Mr. Christopher L. Davis
Dr. Donald M. Davis
Mr. and Mrs. Erroll B. Davis Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. F. T. Davis Jr.
Ms. Jonis Davis
Dr. Margaret D. Davis
Mr. and Mrs. Don A. Davis Jr.
Ms. Kathleen Day
Mr. and Mrs. Deane K. Dayton
Ms. Susan D. De George
Mr. and Mrs. Justin De Graaf
Mr. William J. de Groot
Mr. Wynand De Puy
Mr. P. De Villiers
Mr. and Mrs. Charles A. 

DeBenedittis
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory J. Debor
Mr. Brian Decker
Mr. and Mrs. Michael L. Dehm
Mr. Tim Delaney
Mr. Edward Delaplaine II
Mr. Ismet Deletioglu
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Delgado
Dr. Nancy Dell-Steele
DeltaSigma LLC
Dr. Jeffrey Demouy and 

Dr. Therese Demouy
Reverend Catherine B. 

Dempesy-Sims
Ms. Pete Dempesy-Sims
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Mr. John M. Franz
Mr. Andy Fraser
Mr. Donald Fraser
Mr. and Mrs. Matthew S. Frazier
Ms. Estelle Freedman
Robert and Sheril Freedman 

Family Foundation
Ms. Sheril Freedman
Mr. S. David Freeman
Dr. Christopher P. French
Mr. and Mrs. James B. French
Ms. Jeanna French
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph C. French
Mr. Peter Frentzel
Ms. Beth Frey
Mr. and Mrs. Paul J. Friedman
Mr. John Fries
Dr. Max L. Fritzler and 

Ms. Gayle Haugen
Mr. David J. Froba
Mr. Markus Fromherz and 

Ms. Heike Schmitz
Mr. and Mrs. John Fry
Mr. Kenneth B. Fry
Dr. Colony Fugate
Mr. Phillip T. Fujii
Dr. Charles L. Fuller
Mr. and Mrs. Randy Fulmer
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Funk
Mr. and Mrs. William Gagen
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley A. Galanski
Mr. Tracy Gallagher
Ms. Carol Gallant
Ms. Theresa M. Gallant
Ms. Alison Gallaway and 

Mr. Andy Carson
Ms. Sabra Gallo and 

Mr. Frederick Post
Mrs. David E. Gamper
Ms. Stephanie Garber and 

Mr. David M. Collins
Ms. Beverly Garcia
Ms. Michelle Garcia-Daniels
Ms. Inez Garrett
Mr. Lester L. Garrison
Mrs. Virginia Garrison
Ms. Joan E. Gates
Mr. and Mrs. William P. Gaupp
Mr. Kenneth J. Gaylord
Mr. Harry W. Gedney
Estate of Liliane Geisseler
Mr. Stephen Gelardi
General Atomics
Ms. Janine B. Gensheimer
Mr. and Mrs. Richard J. 

Geoghegan
Ms. Margaret H. George
Ms. Venita Georgieff
Ms. Jennifer E. Gernatt
Mr. Lewis Gershman
Mrs. Will R. Getz

Mr. and Mrs. Praveen Ghanta
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J. Gibbons
Ms. Sharon M. Gibbons
Estate of Marjorie Gibson
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald J. Gibson
Mr. John M. Gilbert and 

Ms. Maria V. Moreira
Mr. Richard Gillespie
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Gillig
Dr. Pat Ingle Gillis
Mr. Reginald B. Gillmor and 

Mrs. Linda Plunket
Mr. Owen Buck Gilmore
Ms. Elizabeth G. Ginsberg
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A. 

Giordano
Mr. and Mrs. William W. Givens
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Glasscock
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Glasser
Mr. and Mrs. Jack Gleason
Ms. Ann H. Gloag
Mr. Jim Glockner
Ms. Ann C. Gobeski
Mr. and Mrs. Bobby D. Godbee
Mr. and Mrs. John W. Godden
Mr. and Mrs. Nitin Godiwala
Mr. Judd Goldberg
Ms. Shelley Gale Goldsmith
Mr. and Mrs. Geraldo Gomes
Dr. Kathryn Gonzalez
Google
Dr. Pat Gordin and 

Mr. Larry Gordin
Ms. Gail Gordon
Mr. Alan Gore
Mrs. Julia Goss
Abe Graber Memorial Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel Graber
Mr. and Mrs. Kostyantyn L. 

Grabovskyy
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffery J. Grace
Mr. and Mrs. James M. Gracey
Mr. and Mrs. Robert D. Graff
Mr. and Mrs. Robert H. Graham
Mr. James Grahn
Ms. Marlys Gramley
Dr. Cheryln S. Granrose
Mr. and Mrs. Curtis Grant
Mr. Roderick M. Grant
Ms. Judith Grassilli
Ms. Annette Grattan
Mr. Paul N. Gray
Greater Greenville Family 

Health, LLC
Mr. Douglas Green
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph H. Green
Mr. Kevin F. Green
Mr. and Mrs. Chesley M. Greene
Mr. and Mrs. Robert A. Greene
Ms. Suzanne Greenleaf
Dr. and Mrs. Robert Greenspan

Dr. Lawrence Greenwald
Mr. E. Alex Gregory
Dr. and Mrs. Martin C. Gregory
Mr. Michael Gregory
Dr. David Grenda
Mr. Jeffrey Greve
Ms. Tilly M. Grey
Dr. E. Rawson Griffin III and 

Ms. D. Clark Griffin-Eddings
Mr. and Mrs. Gene Griffin
Joanne and Tim Griffin
Ms. Josephine Griffin and 

Ms. Ellen Stinnett
Ms. Linda Griffin
Ms. Sarah H. Griffin
Mr. John H. Griffith
Mr. and Mrs. Charles W. Grigg
Mr. and Mrs. Arthur E. Grim
Mr. Charles Grimes
Mr. Dennis Grimes
Mr. and Mrs. J. D. Grimsbo
Dr. and Mrs. James L. Groskreutz
Charley and Jill Gross
Ms. Georgia Grummon
Ms. Fran Grunden
Ms. Rochelle Guillory
Mr. Warren Gump
Mr. Richard G. Gudgel and 

Rev. Lisa Lancaster
Mr. and Mrs. Charles J. 

Gunderson
Mr. W. Franklin Gunion
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Gunning
Dr. and Mrs. Surendra Gupta
Vivian Hays Guthrie Charitable 

Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Gutierrez
Joanne and Peter Haas Jr. Fund
Mr. Stuart Haber
Mr. John Paul Haberman
Mr. Edward E. Haddock III
Edward E. Haddock Jr. Family 

Foundation
Ms. Ann H. Hadfield
Ms. Mary Haering
Mr. Robert S. Hagge Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Damon Haggerty
Mr. and Mrs. Raymond L. 

Hagrman
Mr. Martin Haig
Mr. and Mrs. Richard W. 

Haining
Mr. and Mrs. Gulam A. Hajat
Mr. David P. Hale and 

Ms. Laura A. Torres
Mr. and Mrs. Emmett M. Hale
The Hale Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. James W. Hale
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce S. Hall
Bruce S. & Betty L. Hall 

Charitable Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Donald R. Hall

Mr. Rodney Ferguson and 
Ms. Kathleen Egan

Mrs. Jeanne Fermier
Ms. Sarah Ferrari
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Ferrell
Mrs. Scott Ferris
Ms. Susan S. Ferson
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey C. Fetzer
Dr. and Mrs. James M. Fico
Mr. Aaron Field
Ms. Robin Figueroa
Mr. and Mrs. Russell C. Filbeck
Mr. David R. Finch
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Finger
Mr. Leroy M. Fingerson
The Samuel Finkel Foundation
Mr. Howard B. Finkel
Dr. Gregory Finn
Mr. and Mrs. Maurice Finucan
The Firefly Trust
Dr. and Mrs. Jonathan H. Fisher
Mr. and Mrs. Mike Fisher
Mr. David Fisk
Ms. Catherine Fissell
Reverend Sue Fitzgerald
Ms. Kathleen L. Fitzgerald
Mr. Christophe Flament
Ms. Elsebeth Flarup
Mr. David Fleming
Mr. and Mrs. Maurice R. Fliess
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Flood
Floradon Foundation
Ms. Sarah L. Flosi
Dr. Nancy C. Flowers
Rev. Ralph Fogal
Ms. Pegi Follachio
Reverend Austin M. Ford
Ms. Patricia R. Forman
Mr. John S. Forrer
Mr. William Forrest and 

Ms. Nancie Julian
Ms. Sumarie Bass Forrester
Ms. Norma Fosgate
Ms. Karen Fouad
Mrs. Frances W. Fowler
Mr. and Mrs. R. Dean Fowler
Mr. and Mrs. Dale Fox Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Fox
Mr. Michael Francini and 

Ms. Alys Milner
Mr. Ralph C. Francis
Estate of Charles J. Francisco
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen R. 

Francisco
Mr. and Mrs. Arthur W. Frank Jr.
A. J. Frank Family Foundation
Mrs. Janice F. Frank
Dr. Mary B. Frankis
Mr. Robert Frankland and 

Ms. Kathryn Scott
Mr. and Mrs. Darrell E. Franklin
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Dr. and Mrs. George N. Hay
Mrs. Judith Hays
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth S. Hays Jr.
Ms. Barbara W. Hazelett
Ms. Vivian J. Headings
Mr. and Mrs. Richard W. Healey
Health & Development 

International
Patricia and Christopher Healy
Dr. Patrick Hearing and 

Dr. Janet Hearing
Dr. James Hebrard
Mr. George M. Hecht
Mr. Greg K. Hecht
Mr. and Mrs. James J. 

Heckenbach
Estate of Hulda Heidelberg
Mr. and Mrs. Steven Heilmann
Mr. Robert B. Heinemann
Mrs. Carol L. Held
Mr. Preston F. Helgren
Dr. and Mrs. Gerard L. Helinek
Hellgate High School
Dr. Russell Helms and 

Dr. Wendy Faye Greene
Mr. and Mrs. Eric Helpenstell
Mr. Merrit A. Heminway
Ms. Babette Henagan
The Henagan Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Larry L. Henderson
Ms. Laurel Henderson
Dr. and Mrs. Ralph H. 

Henderson
Mr. and Mrs. Sammy Henderson
Mr. and Mrs. Joshua Henney 

Stokes
Dr. Caroll Henry
Mr. Jon Herber
Mr. Joseph E. Herbst
Ms. Sandra Heritsch
Dr. and Mrs. Emery C. 

Herman Jr.
Ms. Jean Herman
Mr. Ronald Herrmann
Mr. Willis S. Hesselroth
Mr. and Mrs. Robert G. Hestand
Ms. Susan A. Heule
Dr. Kenneth R. Hey
Dr. and Mrs. Carlton T. Hicks
Ms. Melva Hicks
Mr. and Mrs. James D. Hier
Dr. John Higgins
Ms. Teresa Hildebrand
Mrs. Jesse Hill Jr.
Dr. and Mrs. David W. Hill
Mr. and Mrs. James L. Hilton
Mr. Alan R. Hinds
Mr. and Mrs. Steven Hirdes
Ms. Joyce Hirman
Ann and Bill Hirt
Dr. Rich Hiskes and 

Dr. Anne Hiskes

Mr. and Mrs. Wayne E. 
Hochstetler

Mr. James Hodges
Jim Hodges Studio Inc.
Ms. Joanne Hoemberg
Mr. and Mrs. Dan Hoeprich
Mr. and Mrs. David B. Hoffman
Mr. Paul Hogben
Mr. and Mrs. Charles A. 

Holdener
Ann M. & Robert M. Holder 

Foundation
Mr. John R. Holder
Holder Properties
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. 

Holder Jr.
Dr. and Mrs. Walter D. Holder Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Philip E. 

Holladay Jr.
Mr. William Hollamon
Mr. Larry N. Holland
Dr. and Mrs. William Holleman
Mr. Dennis Hollins
Dr. and Mrs. Peter Holm
Dr. Thomas R. Holmes and 

Dr. Grace Holmes
Mr. William G. Holt
Ms. Deborah Holtz
Mr. Neal Holtzer
Dr. Paul Holzman and 

Dr. Barbara Crass
Mrs. Dana Homonek
Mr. Patrick Hook
Dr. Ann Elizabeth Hoos
Mr. and Mrs. Alan Horne
Ms. Kelly Horner
Horrigan Foundation
Mr. Vittorio Hosle
Ms. Cindy R. Hostetler
Dr. and Mrs. Leslie S. Hough
Mr. Donald G. Houk
Ms. Elizabeth D. Kallenbach 

Howard
Mr. Robert W. Howard
Mr. and Mrs. Lembhard G. 

Howell
Mr. and Mrs. Edward S. Howle
Ms. Susan Hrib
Ms. Ann Hriciga and 

Mr. Michael Coughlin
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Hruska
Mrs. Elizabeth B. Hubbard
Mr. Donald H. Hubbs
James Hudson and Julia R. 

Knox-Hudson
Mr. and Mrs. Dane Hudson
Mr. Richard A. Hudson
Ms. Sharon L. Hudson
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth B. Huesby
Drs. Kenneth and Britt Huff
Ms. Bastiaan Hugenholtz
Ms. Leah Hughes

Mr. and Mrs. Robert Hugi
Mrs. Shirma Huizenga
Hull Family Foundation
Mr. M. Blair Hull
Mr. David C. Humm
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel S. Hummel
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas N. Hunt
F. A. Hunter & Associates
Mr. Farley A. Hunter
Professor Howard O. Hunter
Mr. John D. Hunter
Mr. and Mrs. G. David Hurd
Mr. Jeff Hurlow and 

Ms. Jennifer Irish
Mr. Elvin W. Hurst
Dr. Naghma Husain
Ms. Susan Hunsinger
Miss Rebekah Huskamp
Mr. Robert P. Huston
Mr. Richard G. Hutcheson III 

and Mr. C. Robert Kincaid
Mr. and Mrs. Terry L. 

Hutchinson
Mr. and Mrs. Richard W. Hutson
Mr. and Mrs. Richard J.  

Hutto, J.D.
Mr. and Mrs. Robert D. Huxley
Mr. and Mrs. Michael H. 

Iacolucci
Ms. Sarah Iarussi
Ms. Diane Ichiyasu
Ms. Jacqueline Ikeda
Mr. Toby Imler
Ms. Henna Inam
Ms. Syeda R. Inamdar
Dr. Syeda R. Inamdar
Mr. Walter E. Ingram
Admiral and Mrs. Bobby R. 

Inman
The Inman Foundation
Intuit
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Irish
Mr. and Mrs. B. William Irlbeck
Mr. Zephyr Isely and 

Ms. Fruzan Parvanta
Mr. Keith Ito
Mr. David Iverson
Dr. Linda Izquierdo
J.G. Dyer Elementary School
Dr. Shirin Jabbarzadeh and 

Dr. Kambiz Nayebi
Dr. and Mrs. Chris A. Jackson
Dr. Donna R. Jackson
Ms. Jo Bess Jackson
Mrs. William J. Jackson
Ms. Omega A. Jackson
Ms. Pamela Jackson
Ms. Vivian Jackson
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne Jackson
Mr. and Mrs. Anthony E. Jacobs
Mr. and Mrs. H. Craig Jacobs
Mr. and Mrs. Paul J. Jacobs

Mr. Robert S. Hall
Mr. Jeffrey J. Hallett and 

Mrs. Debra Ann Cameron
Ms. Kathleen M. Halsey
Mr. Tahir Hamid
Mr. Art Hamilton
Mr. and Mrs. Herman H. 

Hamilton
Ms. Florence B. Hamlin
Mr. George R. Hamm
Mr. and Mrs. Earl G. Hammond
Mr. Scott D. Hammond
Hammond Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy J. 

Hampton
Ms. Patricia Haneline
Ms. Joanna R. Hanes-Lahr
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Hanley
The Robert T. Hanley 

Foundation
Mr. Robert T. Hanley
Mr. John B. Hanlon
Reverend and Mrs. Earl K. 

Hanna
Dr. and Mrs. David G. Hannay
Mr. Charles C. Hansen III
Dr. and Mrs. M. Emdadul Haque
Mr. and Mrs. Sam Harben, Jr.
Mr. Richard M. Harden
Ms. Karen Hardiman
The Honorable Hal D. Hardin
Ms. Rochelle Hardin
Ms. Mary A. Hardy
Ms. Tracy L. Hardy
Estate of Lucile M. Harford
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Hargadon
Ms. Janet Harkness
Mr. Colby A. Harmon
Mr. Kenneth C. Harper
Mr. William T. Harper and 

Ms. Brida M. Smith
Ms. Patricia G. Harrington
Ms. Carolyn L. Harris
Ms. Hollis Harris
Ms. Margaret Harris
Mr. Kenneth Harstad
Ms. Carol S. Hart
Ms. Susan Riley Hart
Mr. Phillip Harth
Ms. Ann-Marie Hartline
Dr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Hartung
Susan and Jeffrey Hartwick
Ms. Jennifer Hatch
Mr. Stephen Hatcher and 

Ms. Joy Ellis
Mr. Antoine G. Hatoun and 

Ms. Andrea G. Levitt
Mr. Stephen Haug
Ms. Judith J. Havens
Drs. Harry and Lynne Haverkos
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. 

Haviland

Donors During 2015–2016

40



Bob and Diane Jorgensen
Ms. Judy M. Judd
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce A. Judson
Mr. Michael C. Just
Mr. and Mrs. Irvin Kaage III
Ms. Katherine Kademian
Ms. Marsha A. Kademian
Dr. Julian Kadish
Dr. Alice Kagan
Mr. and Mrs. John S. Kahler
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Kaiser
Mr. Dale S. Kammerlohr
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin Kanda
Ms. Kris L. Kandler and 

Ms. Kim Kandler
Mrs. Carol F. Kane
Dr. and Mrs. Norman M. Kane
Mr. Nahaliel Kanfer
Ms. Nancy Kaplan
Mr. and Mrs. Partap Kapoor 

and Family
Ms. Audra Karasa
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Kaste
Dr. Daniel A. Kaufman and 

Ms. Taylor Brooks
Ms. Virginia R. Kaufmann
Mr. and Mrs. John T. Kautzer
Dr. Charles D. Kay and 

Ms. Margaret Trageser-Kay
Mr. Raymond Keating
Trini and John Keenan
Mr. Stanley E. Kehl and 

Ms. Karen Fie
Mr. James Kelleher
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey S. Kelley
Mr. Michael W. Kelley
Mr. David W. Kelly
Mr. John Kemmerer
Ms. Kathleen Kenn
Mr. and Mrs. James E. Kennedy
Dr. and Mrs. Robert P. Kennedy
Ms. Susan Lillia Kennedy
Ms. Joan M. Kent
Donald and Marilyn Keough 

Foundation
Mrs. Donald R. Keough
Ms. Florence Kerkhoff
Mr. Mike Kerr
Dr. and Mrs. Onnik Keshishian
Ms. Merrilynn W. Kessler
Ms. Mary E. Kester
Mr. Jayant S. Khadilkar and 

Ms. Manjushree R. Karkare
Mr. and Mrs. Ashraf R. Khalaf
Mr. Rashid Khan
Dr. Sarah E. Kidd
Estate of Janet W. Kielsmeier
Mr. John B. Kilbane
Mr. and Mrs. Michael G. Kilgore
Mr. Randy S. Kilpatric
The Reverend Billy Kim

Mr. and Mrs. Douglas Kindschi
Mr. Paul L. King
Mr. and Mrs. Richard J. King
Mr. Roger Kinnaman
Mrs. Dorothy Kinney
Ms. Mary Kinsey
Dr. David Kirk
Mr. David Kirk
Mr. Adam Klein
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Klein
Ms. Norma Klein
Ms. Carolyn Klinger and 

Mr. Donn Williams
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan B. Kluger
Steven and Diane Knapp
Mr. Jeffrey Knauth
Ms. Marily Knieriemen
Ms. Esther P. Knierim
Ms. Janice J. Knight
Mr. Robert N. Knight Jr.
Ms. Julia Knispel
Knopf Family Foundation
Mr. Jim Knopf
Mr. and Mrs. Gearold L. Knowles
Mr. James T. Knowles
Mrs. Susan Knowles
Ms. Kristin L. Koblish
Mr. and Mrs. Eric K. Kocher
Mr. Bruce J. Koehler
Mr. Keith D. Kofoed
Ms. Mary Kay Kohles-Baker
Mr. Kerry W. Kohnen
Mr. and Mrs. Ray E. Kohring
Hey-Jin Kong
Konu Town
Mr. and Mrs. Jason Kopanke
Ms. Susan K. Koralik
Ms. Eleanor M. W. Kornbau
Ms. Darlene S. Kostrub
Ms. Linda Kotis
Dr. and Mrs. M. Roman Kotlarek
Dr. Robert C. Kowerski
Mr. and Mrs. Myron E. Kownacki
Mr. Franklin D. Kraai
Mr. Donald Kraft
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy E. Kraft
Mr. and Mrs. David F. Krahn
Mr. and Mrs. James M. Kramer
Mr. Orin S. Kramer
Mr. Steven J. Kramer
Ms. Melissa Krause
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Krepick
Mr. Seth Krieger and 

Ms. Katherine Peres
Ms. Elise Kroeber
Mr. Steve S. Krogh and 

Ms. Kerry D. Molln
Kyle Krohn
Ms. Leigh-Anne Krometis
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. Kruse
Kugelman Family Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence N. 
Kugelman

Mr. and Mrs. Franklin R. 
Kuhlman

Dr. Bradley Kunz
Ms. Debbie Kusaka
Dr. Arden Kwan
Ms. Julia I. Kyle
Reverend Myrna Kysar
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J. 

Labowsky
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis R. Lacroix
Ms. Virginia L. Lacy
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Mr. and Mrs. Douglas R. Smith
Ms. Evelyn Smith
Ms. Frances A. Smith
Mr. George D. Smith III
Mr. and Mrs. Francis J. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Joel Smith
Dr. Leon Smith
Ms. Marsha N. Smith and 

Ms. Laurel A. Bleak
Dr. Marshall S. Smith and 

Dr. Louise N. Smith
Ms. Martha F. Smith
Mr. Matthew D. Smith
Neal & Bea Smith Family 

Foundation
Patricia K. Smith Charitable 

Foundation Trust
Dr. and Mrs. Philip O. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Richard M. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Sanford V. Smith

Mr. and Mrs. David I. Roberts
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas Roberts
Nora Roberts Foundation
Mr. Jerry B. Roberts
Mr. Scott Roberts
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley Roberts
Dr. Teresa L. Roberts
Ms. Barbara Robinson
Ms. Faith A. Robinson
Dr. Harriet L. Robinson
Nancy A. Robinson, M.D.
Mr. Larry Rockefeller
Dr. Daniel Rodeheaver and 

Dr. Denise Rodeheaver
Mr. and Mrs. Larry W. Rodgers
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Rodman
Dr. and Mrs. Juan Rodriguez
Mr. and Mrs. Manuel V. 

Rodriguez
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas S. Roeder
Mr. Lee J. Roehrdanz
Mr. G. William Rogers Jr.
Ms. Mary Gayle Rogers
Ms. Virginia B. Rogers
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald M. Rohan
Ms. Wendy B. Rohman
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew Rollins
Ms. Marsha Rooks
Roman Dental
Mr. Paul Romano
Ms. Alice W. Ronke
Mr. Michael Y. Roos
Mr. and Mrs. Bob Rosebrough
Mr. David Allan Ross
Ms. Diane Ross
Dr. James A. Ross
Mr. Francis M. Rotella
Mr. and Mrs. Donald J. Roth
Mr. and Mrs. Paul L. Roth
Mr. Scott Rothermel
Dr. Benoit Rousseau
Mr. James H. Rowe III
Mr. James S. Rowe
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A. Rowe
Mrs. Luana D. Rubin
Mr. and Mrs. William Rubley
Mr. William J. Rucklidge and 

Ms. Mona Akerblom
Mr. Sebastian Ruggiero
Mr. Jerry and Dr. Mary Rupley
Mr. Alois Rupp
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Russ
Ms. Roselinde H. Russell
Ms. Trina P. Russell
Ms. Marion Rust
Mr. F. James Rutherford
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce D. Ryan
Mr. John E. Ryan
Mr. and Mrs. Nicholas M. Ryan
Mr. and Mrs. Paul F. Ryan
The S & C Harvest Foundation

This report reflects donations made during the Carter Center’s fiscal year: Sept. 1, 2015 – Aug. 31, 2016.
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Ms. Connie W. Stewart and 
Mr. Nicholas Vista

Ms. Jackie Stewart
Dr. and Mrs. Verner Stillner
Mark and Mary Ellen Stinski 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Stinski
Mr. Steven Stockman
Ms. Phyllis Stoecklein
Mr. and Mrs. N. Robert Stoll
Ms. Sharon F. Stollings
Mr. and Mrs. John Stolzenberg
Mr. and Mrs. James M. Stone
Mr. Robert M. Stone and 

Ms. Diane E. Christensen
Mr. and Mrs. Curtis B. Storlie
Mr. Robert C. Storlie
Mr. William D. Story
Dr. Barbara S. Stowe
Mr. and Mrs. John Strange
Mr. and Mrs. Mike Straub
Ms. Lisa Strick
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Stripe
Ms. Lisa Strongin
Mr. and Mrs. John D. Stuart
Ms. Belinda Stubblefield
Mr. Walter Stuber
Mr. and Mrs. Talmadge Stuckey 

and Mr. Joey Stuckey
Mr. and Mrs. Don Stucky
Estate of Steven E. Studt
Mr. David W. Stump
Mrs. Michael P. Sturdivant
Judge David L. Stutzman and 

Dr. Wendy Blank
Mr. Sidney K. Suggs
Mr. John Summerhays
Mr. James Eric Summers
Mr. James E. Summerville Jr.
Sun Hill Family Foundation
Mr. Delmont R. Sunderland
Ms. Mary P. Sundheimer
Ms. Elizabeth C. Sussman
Mr. John Sutter
Mr. Steven Swalgen
Dr. Constance Swank
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Swank
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald A. Swanson
Mr. William O. Swanson
Mr. Bob Swanton
Mr. and Mrs. Edward L. Sweeney
Ms. Jeanne Swen
Ms. Amy Swenson
Ms. Carla Susannah Swickerath
Mr. Robert Synk
Mr. Richard Szeliski and 

Ms. Lyn McCoy
Mr. Douglas Szperka and 

Dr. Christina Szperka
Ms. Genevieve M. Szuba
Ms. Fay Szwast

Taipei Economic and Cultural 
Office in Atlanta

Ms. Margarete Talarico
Mr. William Steele Talley
Ms. Agnes Tam
Mr. and Mrs. Jerome Tamm
Mr. Deane Tank and 

Ms. Jolene Gardner
Ms. Carol Tarnowski
Mr. and Mrs. James Tartaglia
Ms. Mary Jean Tate
Dr. Philip M. Tate
Mr. and Mrs. Keith S. Tattersall
Mr. Allan Taylor
Mr. Daniel Taylor and 

Ms. Trellan Smith
Dr. Jean E. Taylor
Mr. R. Scott Taylor Jr.
Dr. Steven S. Taylor
Ms. Janice E. Tazelaar
Ms. Barbara Teichert
Temcov Foundation
Mr. Michael Temcov
Mrs. Mark R. Templeton
Mr. Patrick A. Terry
Ms. Paula Terry
Thomas R. Terry
Mr. and Mrs. Carl Terwilliger
Dr. Tina Tessina and 

Mr. Richard Sharrard
Mr. and Mrs. David L. Thayer
Ms. Mary C. Thayer
Mrs. Navarre Them
Mr. and Mrs. William 

Thibodeaux
Mr. Jean-Claude Thomas
Ms. Melinda M. Thomas
Mr. Morris T. Thomas
Mr. Theodore H. Thomas and 

Ms. Colette Chabbott
Dr. Darrell J. Thompson
Mr. Ernie Thompson
Ms. Jane E. Thompson
Ms. Janice Thompson
Ms. M. Melinda Thompson
Ms. Monica Thompson
Ms. Rita Lee Thompson
Ms. Lisa T. Thomson
Mr. Richard C. Thomson
Mr. Robert Thomson and 

Ms. Anita Sanborn
Mr. and Mrs. John A. Thonet
Ms. Gillann Thorndill
Mr. Charles Thornton-Kolbe
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan C. 

Throop
TIAA-CREF
Mr. David T. Tichenor
Ms. Patricia Tidmarsh
Mrs. Laura Tietz
Mrs. Olive Tiller
Ms. Carolyn O. Tillman

Mr. and Mrs. Alvin Tollestrup
Ms. Linn Tonstad
Ms. Mary Tooley
Ms. Theresa Z. Torian
Dr. Ronald Townsend
Ms. Barbara Tracey
Miss My Luong Tran
Ms. Bettina Trautmann
Dr. Darlene A. Treese
Ms. Phyllis Trible
Mr. and Mrs. Roland D. Trietsch
Ms. Lori Triplett
Ms. Dari Tritt
Ms. Diane Troth
Mr. and Mrs. LeRoy S. Troyer
Mr. Tony Truong
Mrs. Ruth Tsu
Tudor Family Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas G. Tudor
The Tufenkian Foundation
Mr. James Tufenkian
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy C. Tuff
Mr. David W. Tuffy
Turandstrom, Inc
Ms. Marcella Turk
Turner Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Leslie G. Turner
Mr. Paul Turner and 

Mrs. Wendy Gruen
Mr. and Mrs. Michael D. Tveite
Mr. James R. Uber
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick J. Uding
Dr. John R. Uglum III
Dr. Michiel E. Ultee and 

Dr. Patricia L. Dedert
Mr. Peter Ungar
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas R. 

Unnasch
The Upper Crust
Mr. Rudolf Urban
Mr. Richard H. Usher
Mr. H. Rao Vaitla
Ms. Susan M. van den Toorn
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Van Sant
The Melinda and William J. 

vanden Heuvel Foundation
Ambassador and Mrs. William J. 

vanden Heuvel
Ms. Joanne Marie Vanderbilt
Mr. Gary Vanderwerf
Ms. Saber W. VanDetta
Mr. and Mrs. J. Edward Varallo
Mr. and Mrs. Neil Vassau
Mr. Brian Vaughan and 

Ms. Ruth McKee
Ms. Carmen L. Velasquez-

Hernandez
Mr. Eon Verrall
Dr. Piero Verro
Vica Foundation
Mr. Robert Viducich

Mr. and Mrs. Timothy G. Smith
Ms. Tresa V. Smith
Mr. William H. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Snider
Dr. David A. Snow
Ms. Donna Snyder
Ms. Marguerite Soffa
Dr. and Mrs. Alan Solway
Ms. Dorothy G. Somers
Mr. Jordan Sorensen
Mr. and Mrs. Bernard A. Sottili
Ms. Lauren Southerland
Mr. Matthew Sowd
Ms. Annie Spade
Mr. and Mrs. James M. Spain
Mr. and Mrs. John P. Spalding
Mr. Jim Spearman
Ms. Phyllis J. Specht
Dr. Stuart Speedie and 

Dr. Marilyn Speedie
Mr. Joel Spenner
Ms. Elizabeth Morgan Spiegel
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Spiner
Mr. and Mrs. John D. Spragins
Ms. Diana D. Springer
Ms. Joanne Springer
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Spruill
Dr. Jane P. Srinivasan
Mr. Donald R Stiver
Ms. Martha St. Onge
St. Thomas Aquinas Parish
Ms. Elizabeth C. Staiger
Mr. Stephen B. Stancliff
Mr. and Mrs. Shelton g. Stanfill
Mr. William Stanhope and 

Ms. Kristen Keirsey
Mr. Robert E. Stanley
Mr. Thomas O. Stanley
Dr. Michael D. Stargel
Dr. Courtney Starks and 

Dr. Joseph Jez
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Starks
Mr. and Mrs. David Starkweather
Dr. Thad Starner and 

Ms. Tavenner Hall
Ms. Eleanor L. Starr
Dr. and Mrs. Jery R. Stedinger
Ms. Elizabeth Steele
Mr. and Mrs. John Steele
Ms. Jackie Steg
Ms. Wilhelmina M. Stemmer
Ms. Heidi Stensby
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Stensrud
Mr. Panos Stephens and 

Dr. Natalie Stephens
Mr. and Ms. Scott G. Stephenson
Mr. and Mrs. W. Rod Stern
Mr. John Stevens
Mr. Michael J. Stevens
Dr. and Mrs. James Stevenson
Ms. Marilyn S. Steward

Donors During 2015–2016
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Mr. Marvin F. Weissberg
Ms. Claire E. Welsh
Mrs. Edward Welch
Mr. Harrison Wellford
Estate of Janet Welsh
Mr. and Mrs. Robert C. Welter
Ms. Betty A. Welty
Drs. Thomas and Edith Welty
Mr. and Mrs. Max W. Wendell
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher Wendt
Ms. Wendy K. Werby
Mr. Ted Werthman
Ms. Helen H. West
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew Westbrook
Dr. Susan M. Wester
Dr. and Mrs. W. Daniel 

Westerkam
Mr. A. E. Westmoreland
Mr. James G. Wetrich
Mr. Eugene D. Weymouth
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin Whalen
Ms. Marilee Wheeler
Rev. Dr. and Mrs. Craig M. 

Whitcher
Dr. Jane White and 

Mr. Joe Amerling
Ms. Lynn C. White
Mr. Robert M. White
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas White
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Whitehead
Mr. Robert Whitfield
Ms. Dorothy G. Whitmore
Ms. Nancy G. Whitney
Ms. Mary Whooley and 

Mr. James Gross
Dr. and Mrs. Per H. Wickstrom
Mr. Hank Widenmann
Dr. David A. Wiebe
Dr. and Mrs. David Wiegman
Mr. Peter D. Wildes and 

Dr. Julia W. Wildes
John and Marcia Wilkinson
Williams Family Foundation
Mr. James Williams
Mr. Jeff Williams
Mrs. Lillie B. Williams
Ms. Sandra S. Williams
Mr. Tim Williams
Mr. Walker Williams
Dr. John S. Willis and 

Dr. Judith H. Willis
Ms. Dena G. Willmore
Mrs. Mary D. Wilsey
Ms. Aletta T. Wilson
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Wilson
Ms. Pamela Wilson
Ms. Gloria Wilt
Mr. and Mrs. Larry Wiltrout
Mr. Steven V. Winthrop and 

Ms. M. Jane Williamson
Allison and Phil Wise

Miss Rainey Isabel Wise
Dr. Edward Witten and 

Dr. Chiara Nappi
Dr. Jacqueline Wittmeyer and 

Dr. Christopher Hill
Ms. Jan Wlodarkiewicz
Ms. Janna Wofford
Mr. Theodore Wold
Mr. and Mrs. Charles L. Wolf
Ms. Patricia C. Wolf
Ms. Susan Wolf
Mr. Peter M. Wolter
Ms. Kim Wong
Mr. Alexander Woo
Mr. and Mrs. Charles O. Wood
Mr. and Mrs. Hoyt H. Wood
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Wood
Dr. Patricia A. Woodall
Ms. Marion Woodfield and 

Mr. Marc Weinberg
Mr. and Mrs. Jack Woods
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald K. Woods
Mr. and Mrs. J. Allen Woodward
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth M. 

Woodworth
Mr. Kevin R. Woolf
Mrs. Stinson E. Worley
Mr. and Mrs. Alan Wortman
Ms. Deborah Faye Wright
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis C. Wright
Mr. Homer E. Wright Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Kelly Wright
Mr. Rex Wright
Mr. Walter Wurfel and 

Ms. Sara Fitzgerald
Mr. William W. Wynn
Dr. Barbara Yager
Ms. Elaine Yakura

Mr. Tuen Ping Yang and 
Ms. Ann Na Dong

Mr. David Yates
Mrs. Madonna Yates
Ms. Mildred J. Yearby
Dr. Clarice Yentsch
Mr. and Mrs. Michael V. Yester
Mr. George B. Yntema
Mr. and Mrs. Barry York
Mr. Joe Young
Mr. Michael E. Young
Mr. and Mrs. Stuart Young
Mr. Max H. Yount
Ms. Marie Yovanovitch
Mr. Yu Tao
Anna and Mark Yuhas
Mrs. Steven E. Yuhas
Mrs. Judy Zaban
Jan Zahrly
Mr. and Mrs. Safwat H. Zahry
Dr. Carol Zapalowski
Ms. Theresa L. Zapotocky
The JV Schiro Zavela Foundation
Jean Schiro-Zavela and 

Vance Zavela
Ms. Clare P. Zens
Mr. Nathan Zerbe and 

Ms. Joan Nichols
Mr. James R. Ziegler
Ms. Bernadette Zigalo-Del 

Braccio
Dr. Susan Zimicki
Dr. Phyllis Arn Zimmer
Ms. Marilyn R. Zitterkopf
Ms. Deborah J. Zorn
Mr. and Mrs. Arthur Zrimsek
Dr. Sape A. Zylstra

Ms. Kathleen Viereg
Rev. Audrey Vincent
Mr. and Mrs. John G. Viner
Mr. and Mrs. Dan Vogel
Ms. Suzann W. Voigt
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Vorsatz
Mr. John Vottero
Mr. Pranav Vyas
Ms. Brenda J. Wade
Dr. Judith Elaine Wade
Mr. Steven Wadsworth
Ms. Santoshi Wagner-Anue
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Wales
Ms. Carolyn Walker
James and Jackie Wall
Mr. Lester D. Wallace
Reverend Martha E. Wallace
Ms. May S. Wang
Dr. Susan Wang
Mrs. Arnold Wangerin
Ms. Marion Wanless
Ms. Ruth Warbington
Mr. Albert J. Ward
Professor and Mrs. Barclay Ward
Mr. Donald J. Ward and 

Ms. Jennifer L. Eis
The Honorable Horace T. Ward
Ms. Shirley E. Ward
Ms. Evelyn Ware and 

Mr. Darien Ware
Mr. and Mrs. Frank W. 

Warner III
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Warner
Ms. Elizabeth C. Warren
Ms. Kathryn L. Warren
Warren Family Fund of The 

Columbus Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas H. Warren
Ms. Cathryn A. Wasson
Ms. Becky S. Watson
Mr. David Watson
Mr. and Mrs. Jack H. Watson Jr.
Ms. Alecia L. Wawrzynski
Mr. and Mrs. Sam A. Way III
Ms. Suzanne Way
Dr. J. Dix Wayman
Ms. Margo Weaver
Ms. Nancy J. Weaver
Mr. Jack Webb
Mrs. Elfrieda A. Weber
Mr. Chris Wedge and 

Ms. Jeanne M. Markel
Dr. Janna P. Wehrle
Ms. Nell V. Weidenhammer
Ms. Dorle E. Weil
Mr. Kenneth S. Weiner and 

Ms. Kathy Fletcher
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas L. 

Weinman
Mrs. Eric Weinmann
Mr. George Keith Weiss

This report reflects donations made during the Carter Center’s fiscal year: Sept. 1, 2015 – Aug. 31, 2016.

A woman sits outside her home on election day in Guyana. The 
Carter Center has observed four elections in the country.
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Mr. and Mrs. Robert Eccles
The Edgerley Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Paul B. Edgerley
Mr. Alex E. Embrey
Engelke Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Engelke
Ms. Jennifer C. Farb
Mr. and Mrs. Russell Foszcz
Mr. and Mrs. Cameron H. Fowler
Mr. and Mrs. Charles French
Full Circle Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. David H. Gambrell
David Gambrell Endowment 

Fund
Dr. Paul W. Gerke
The Joan L. & Robert C. 

Gilkison Family Foundation
Ms. Joan L. Gilkison
Mr. and Mrs. David D. Gill
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. 

Goodrich
Mr. and Mrs. Donald G. 

Goodwin
Donald G. Goodwin Family 

Foundation
Mr. Donal Grogan
Mr. Jeffrey B. Grossman
Mr. and Mrs. Walter E. Grubbs
Mr. and Mrs. Edward Grzedzinski
The Geoffrey Gund Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Geoffrey Gund
Mr. Carroll J. Haas Sr.
Mr. and Mrs. Donald L. Habig
Mr. and Mrs. Clifford J. Hall
Mr. and Mrs. Peter V. Harris
Mr. and Mrs. Steven F. Hauser
Mr. Rick Meeker Hayman
Ms. Rebecca S. Heider
Ms. Courtney S. Henderson
Mr. J. William Hernandez
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. Hill
Ms. Alice Houseknecht
Alice and Jaclyn Houseknecht 

Foundation
Dr. Marla S. Howard
Mr. Chris Hughes
John C. and Karyl Kay Hughes 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Mark R. Humphrey
Mr. and Mrs. Phil Hurt
Ms. Margaret M. Hyatt
Mr. and Mrs. Charles A. Jenkins 

Jr.
Dr. Robert C. Jespersen
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen D. 

Johnston
Mr. Chris Jones and 

Mrs. Barb Jones
Mr. John A. Kazanjian
Mr. Philip D. Kearns and 

Mrs. Grace E. Ray
Ms. Carol S. Keller

Mr. James K. Keller
Mr. and Mrs. Richard C. Kerns
Mr. and Mrs. William H. Kleh
Sonja and Tom Koenig and 

Family
Dr. Charles J. Kurth
Frank S. and Julia M. Ladner 

Family Foundation
Mrs. Julia M. Ladner
Mr. Michael Lebowitz
Mr. and Mrs. Robert N. Lemaire
Ms. Elizabeth A. Liebman
Mr. and Mrs. Kurt Limbach
Mr. Stephen Lockyer
Mr. and Mrs. Russell S. Lyon
Dr. and Mrs. Stephen A. Maas
Mr. Edward Magarian
Loris Masterton Family 

Foundation UAD
Mrs. William L. Masterton
Jeffrey and Karen McHenry
Mr. Robert H. McKinney
Mr. and Mrs. Hugh J. McLellan
Mr. and Mrs. Jim McNamara
Mr. Stuart Mills and 

Mrs. Helen Probst Mills
Milner Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. James Milner
Mr. Kent C. Nelson and 

Ms. Ann Starr
Nicholl Family Foundation
Ms. Teresa A. Nicholl
Mr. and Mrs. Lowell Northrop
Mr. Kenneth Olivier and 

Ms. Angela Nomellini
Dr. Eunice B. Ordman and 

Dr. Edward T. Ordman

Ms. F. Taylor Pape and 
Mr. Haddon Hufford

Dr. Corey and Mrs. Ellen Pavitt
Dr. and Mrs. Theodore Petroulas
Mr. Robert Pew and 

Ms. Susan Taylor
Dr. and Mrs. Keith H. Randall
Mr. Kurt N. Rathjen
Ratliff Charitable Foundation
Mr. Tilman Reinhardt
Robert M. Rogers Investments
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Rogers
Mr. Doug Rottman
Mrs. Fritz M. Rottman
Rottman Family Charitable 

Foundation
The Sage Foundation
Sandy Oaks Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Floyd C. Sanger Jr.
Dame Marjorie M. Scardino
Ms. Deborah Selby
Mr. Gary S. Selken
Mr. and Mrs. Robert A. Shevlin
Mr. and Mrs. Brian J. Smith
Mr. Corey R. Smith
Mr. David C. Smith
Mr. Douglas P. Smith
Dr. Forrest A. Smith
Richard O. and June C. Smith 

Fund
Mr. Charles Smith-Dewey
Ms. Abbie P. Sprunger
Mr. and Mrs. James A. Squires
Mr. and Mrs. John P. Squires
Mr. Edward Stern and 

Ms. Claudia Hearn

Cabinet $10,000+
Anonymous (10)
Mr. John B. Adams
Dr. and Mrs. Heinz Aeschbach
Ms. Esther Ando
Dr. and Mrs. Michael A. Arrow
Mr. and Mrs. James H. Averill Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Jack L. Bacon
Mr. and Mrs. Karl E. Bakhtiari
Mr. James F. Barksdale
Mr. Joseph Bates and 

Ms. Lillie McAllister
Mrs. Wilma Baumgartner
Beightler Squires Charitable 

Trust
Mrs. Charles W. Benton
Robert and Joan Blackman 

Family Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Robert Blackman
Mr. and Mrs. Casey Blood
Mr. and Mrs. Charles M. Brewer
The Virginia and Charles Brewer 

Family Foundation
Mr. Charles Kent Brodie
Bruce Family Limited Partnership
Mr. Robert C. Bruce
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald E. 

Burmeister
Drs. Steven and Barbara Burrall
Mr. and Mrs. Michael D. Cannon
Ms. Vanessa E. Cannon
Dr. Thomas J. Carter
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas W. Caves
Ting Tsung and Wei Fong Chao 

Foundation
Ms. Karen Clark
Mr. John R. Clifford
Mrs. Anne Covert
Dr. Frank A. Critz
Mr. and Mrs. John J. Cross
The Honorable and Mrs. John H. 

Dalton
Mr. and Mrs. Lynn R. Davis
Mr. and Mrs. David Dawson
Ms. Dawn Day and 

Mr. Reuben Cohen
Dr. and Mrs. Clayton Dean
Mr. and Mrs. Steven A. Denning
Mr. and Mrs. David B. Dillard
Mr. and Mrs. Pete Docter
Douglas Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Kirk Douglas
Mr. Charles M. Doyle and Ms. 

Jocelyn A. Holash
Mr. Robert A. Dudley
Mr. and Mrs. Charles W. Duncan 

Jr.
Dr. Brad Dyke
Walter and Ursula Eberspacher 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Walter Eberspacher
The Eccles Family Foundation

Ambassadors Circle 2015–2016

Buthaina Mohammed Al-Janahi, a columnist at Qatar’s Al 
Arab newspaper, attends a meeting in Atlanta of Rosalynn 
Carter journalism fellows. For her fellowship project, Al-Janahi 
planned to investigate and report on the mental health of 
working mothers in Qatar.
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Mr. and Mrs. David Max Baker
Dr. and Mrs. Jens Bakke
Mr. and Mrs. J. Gregory 

Ballentine
Mr. James A. Barker
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A. Barrow 

III
Ms. Elisabeth Cordy Beckstead
Brad and Mary Frances Benton
Dr. and Mrs. Robert A. Berenson
Ms. Susan E. Bevington
Dr. and Mrs. David F. Bishop
Mr. Lawrence Blaskopf
Ms. Deborah Bombard
Mr. and Mrs. Gordon S. Bonham
Mr. and Mrs. Kent R. Bourquin
Ms. Nancy Bride
Ms. Jan W. Briscoe
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Bruhn
The Brzezinski Family Foundation
The Honorable and Ms. Zbigniew 

Brzezinski
Mrs. Elizabeth Carabillo
Mr. and Mrs. John Cassidy
Mr. and Mrs. John K. Chalmers
Ms. Linda M. Clary
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas G. Cline
Dr. and Mrs. W. Randall Cline
Mrs. Rosemary W. Colgate
Ken and Sandy Collier
Mr. James Connor
Mr. Robert A. Cook
Mr. and Mrs. John H. Costello III
Mr. and Mrs. Michael D. Culver
Mr. Bradley N. Currey Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Larry Curry
Rev. Bruce Davidson and 

Mr. Donald Barb
Mr. William A. Deacon
Mr. and Mrs. Charley Dobson
Mr. Eric Dodds
Mrs. Wilma R. Doll
Mrs. Kimiko W. Dornburg
Dr. Bruce E. Duke and 

Dr. Janice Duke
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin M. Duke
Mr. Douglas Dunn and 

Mrs. Donna Gaab
Mrs. Shirley H. Elliott
Ms. Marietta M. Ethier
Mr. and Mrs. Bob Farese
Professor and Mrs. Joseph Farrell
Mr. Jay M. Feinman and 

Ms. Carole A. Wood
Mr. and Mrs. James W. Felt
Mr. Kevin Filter
Mr. Geoffrey Fisher and 

Ms. Anna Turner
Ms. Carol Tucker Foreman
Ms. Nancy V. Foster
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Free
Ms. Phyllis K. Friedman

Dr. Tim Fritz and Dr. Frances 
Chames

FThree Foundation
Mr. J. Rex Fuqua
G.D.S. Legacy Foundation
Robert E. Gallagher Charitable 

Trust
Ms. Amy Gazard
Mr. Safar I. Ghazal
Dr. Nancy E. Gibbs
Mr. and Mrs. John A. Gilmartin
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence D. Gilson
Mr. Fred Grob and 

Ms. Dorothy Kinney
Mr. and Mrs. Philip J. Grosz
Mr. R. Todd Hagemeyer
Ms. Virginia L. Hajeian
Mr. and Mrs. Richard J. 

Hamilton
Mr. Paul B. Hammond
Mrs. Francis W. Hatch
Ms. Ann D. Herbert
Mr. and Mrs. James D. Hier
Dr. Donald Hopkins and 

Dr. Ernestine Hopkins
Dr. Nelson D. Horseman
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Housh
Ms. Margaret Hughes
Dr. Matthew and Linda Hulbert
Ms. Ellin M. Irwin
Mrs. Mavis D. James
Rev. Dr. Riley Jensen and 

Dr. Pamela Kidd
Mr. and Mrs. Alan H. Jobe
Mr. Frederick D. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Bill Jones
Ms. Marilee Jones
Ms. Nancy Jones
Mr. and Mrs. John W. Kapouch 

Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher A. 

Keenan
Mr. Edward Keiderling
Mr. and Mrs. Michael J. Kelly
Ms. Mary Pat Killian
Mrs. Lyn B. Kirkland
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Kobs
Drs. Mark and Diana Kudes
L4 Foundation
Rev. and Mrs. Gary R. LaCroix
Dr. Susan M. Laing
Dr. James T. Langland and 

Dr. Penny I. Langland
Mr. and Mrs. James M. LaRowe
Mr. and Mrs. Matt Leacock
Ms. Jessica Ledbetter and 

Ms. Ranee Barsanti
Mr. and Mrs. David R. Lewis
David R. and Betsy Lewis 

Foundation
Mr. Bruce C. Lincoln
Dr. Stan M. Lindenfeld

Mr. and Mrs. David Liner
Mr. Lawrence P. Littlewood and 

Dr. Edna M. Littlewood
Dr. Willa Dean Lowery
Mr. Richard F. Lyon and 

Ms. Martha McMahon
Mr. Carl Malcolm
Mr. Robert Marsh
John Ray Mattheis, M.D.
Mr. Brandon McCall and 

Ms. Tracie Diamond
Mrs. Lynne B. McClendon
The Honorable and Mrs. Alonzo 

L. McDonald Jr.
Ms. Susanne McMillan
Mr. and Mrs. Rudy McVicker
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Merrill
Mr. and Mrs. Edward G. Merritt
Ms. Phyllis Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Richard B. Miller
Dr. Masakazu Miyagi and 

Dr. Mary Miyagi
Ms. Maria A. Montalvo and 

Representative Strom Peterson
Ms. Tertia Moore
Mr. Richard A. Muller
Mr. Leo F. Mullin
Mr. and Mrs. Glen Mumey
Mr. Arshad Mumtaz
Ms. Myra M. Munson
Mr. Peter M. Musser
Ms. Lee Ann Myers
Ms. Penny Norman
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Norton
Father William Olesik
Mr. and Mrs. Eric Olsen
Ms. Lisa Orberg
Mr. Chang K. Park
Mr. Peter J. Petkas
Mr. Nicholas Petraglia
Mr. and Mrs. James A. Poole
Dr. Keith W. Prasse and 

Dr. Susan W. Prasse
Mrs. Rita Coveney Pudenz
Dr. and Mrs. H. Rudy Ramsey
Mrs. Sita Rao
Mr. James C. Rawls
Ms. Ruth G. Reeder
Ms. Anne Martin Reynolds
Mr. Paul F. Rizza
Rogers Family Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Edward H. Romond
The Barbara Ross Charitable 

Trust
Dr. Ernesto Ruiz-Tiben and 

Mrs. Emilia Ruiz
Nathan & Shelly Sarkisian 

Foundation
Mrs. John H. Schaff
Mr. Robert L. Schmerker
The John and Kathleen Schreiber 

Foundation

The Claudia Hearn and 
Edward Stern Foundation

Ms. Jenny B. Stoddard
Elizabeth Jardina and 

Brian Stoler
Stonesfair Financial Corporation
Suggs Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Sidney V. Suggs
Ms. Anne E. Swenson
Mr. Greg Teeters
Mr. and Mrs. Frederick Teutsch
Mr. and Mrs. Michael R. Thomas
Andrew Tobias
Turner Enterprises
Mr. Robert E. Turner III
Two or More Foundation
Mary and Lowell Van DeRiet 

Family Fund of the Minneapolis 
Foundation

Mr. David R. Virden
Mr. Paul E. von Kuster III
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Warlick
Dr. and Mrs. John D. Welch
Sarah R. Wetherbee Charitable 

Trust
Mr. Michael J. Wetherbee
Dr. Stephen Wheeler and 

Dr. Patricia Wheeler
The Willow Springs Foundation
Mr. David Douglas Wilson and 

Mrs. Melody Wilder Wilson
Mr. and Mrs. Edward J. Wilson
The Wilson Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Mark 

Wright
Wrocklage Family Charitable 

Foundation
Ms. Lynne E. Wrocklage
Mr. William E. Chapman and 

Dr. Ellen H. Yankellow
Dr. and Mrs. Cary Yeh
Ms. Margaret Young

Diplomat $5,000–$9,999
Anonymous (9)
2X4 Design
Mr. William B. Ackerman
Dr. and Mrs. Joseph Alexander
Ms. Priscilla Alexander
Ms. Barbara J. Allain
Mr. H. Inman Allen
Mrs. Margaret Allen
The Honorable and Mrs. Brady 

Anderson
The Arches Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. H. Ross Arnold III
Mr. Bernard Attal and 

Ms. Gerluze Santana
Sirdar Aly Aziz
Dr. and Mrs. Emerson M. Babb
Mr. Norman S. Baier
Mr. and Mrs. Marvin L. Bailey

Members of the Ambassadors Circle contribute unrestricted gifts of $1,000 or more to the Carter Center Annual Fund.
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Mr. Brian Arbogast and 
Ms. Valerie Tarico

Dr. Kazuko K. Artus
Ms. Ann M. Ashton
David A. Atefi, M.D.
Mr. and Mrs. James V. Bala
Ms. Laurie Balmuth
Ms. Janet M. Bartlett
Mr. Michael Batte and 

Ms. Wanda Kile
Ms. Caryl Conry Beal
Mr. Horace E. Bearzi
Mr. and Mrs. Bryan T. Bebb
Albert & Pamela Bendich 

Charitable Trust
Mrs. Albert Bendich
Mr. John W. Bloom
Mr. Wayne Blythe and 

Dr. Cheryl Blythe
BMI-Rupp Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Fred Bockman
Mrs. Sue Bockman
Mr. and Mrs. Joshua Boger
Mr. Franz-Josef Boll
Mr. Robert Clarke Brown
Mr. Willard B. Brown
Dr. William T. Browne and 

Dr. Evelyn W. Browne
Mr. Mike R. Budzik and 

Ms. Sarah A. Tacoma
Ms. Mary Alice Burack
Dr. Kathleen M. Burke
Ms. Susan Okie Bush
Dr. and Mrs. Paul R. Butler
Mr. and Mrs. Christophe Cadiou
Ms. Kathleen Carey and 

Mr. Jeffrey Carey
Mr. David Carlino
Mr. and Mrs. Cameron 

Carrington
Mr. Daniel Casey and 

Ms. Dolores Connolly
Mr. Dan T. Cathy
The Cedars Foundation
Dr. Louis Centofanti and 

Ms. Wanda Rachels
Mr. Albert Chiang
Dr. and Mrs. Paul M. Christensen
Mr. and Mrs. Walter L. Cleaver 

Jr.
Ms. Marge Coahran
Ms. Regina Cocanougher
Mr. Mark B. Cohen and 

Ms. Sheila M. Fyfe
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph A. Coleman
Mr. Basil J. Connor
Conway Family Foundation
Mr. Raymond Jervis Cooke
Mr. Irl Cramer
Mr. Erik Crank and 

Mrs. Laura Arbilla
Mrs. Pamelia Crockett

Mr. and Mrs. W. Bowman Cutter
Mr. and Mrs. Cameron Dales
Dr. Carol F. Daron
Mr. Wynand De Puy
Mr. Denis C. Devlin
Ms. Tina Devries
Mr. Mark Dickinson
Mr. and Mrs. Phil Dixon
Mr. John D. Donahue
Mr. and Mrs. Edward Keith 

Donnelly
Ms. Betsy Downey
Mr. Douglas O. Drake
Mr. Frank Dunau and 

Ms. Amy Davis
Ms. Lisa A. Dunavin
Eagan Family Foundation
Mr. John F. Eagan
Mr. and Mrs. David Eggert
Mrs. Jawaid Elahi
Mr. and Mrs. Eric Elfner
Dr. Antoinette S. Emch
Mr. Robert V. Evers
Dr. and Mrs. Edward Ewing
Mrs. Susan Ewing
Experimur, LLC
Mr. John W. Failor
Mrs. Dara Fairgrieves
Dr. Catherine A. Faver
Dr. R. Fenton-May
Mr. Rodney Ferguson and 

Ms. Kathleen Egan
Ms. Sarah Ferrari
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Ferrell
The Firefly Trust
Mr. Ralph C. Francis
Mr. and Mrs. Matthew S. Frazier
Mr. Markus Fromherz and 

Ms. Heike Schmitz
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Funk
Ms. Theresa M. Gallant
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald J. Gibson
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Gillig
Mr. and Mrs. Charles E. Graves
Mr. Kevin F. Green
Mr. and Mrs. Chesley M. Greene
Dr. and Mrs. Robert Greenspan
Dr. and Mrs. Martin C. Gregory
Dr. E. Rawson Griffin III and 

Ms. D. Clark Griffin-Eddings
Dr. and Mrs. James L. Groskreutz
Mr. Stuart Haber
Ms. Ann H. Hadfield
Mr. Robert S. Hagge Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce S. Hall
Bruce S. & Betty L. Hall 

Charitable Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Herman H. 

Hamilton
Ms. Patricia Haneline
Dr. and Mrs. M. Emdadul Haque

Dr. and Mrs. John B. Hardman
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Hargadon
Ms. Patricia G. Harrington
Ms. Ann-Marie Hartline
Drs. Harry and Lynne Haverkos
Mrs. Judith Hays
Mr. George M. Hecht
Mr. Greg K. Hecht
Mr. and Mrs. James J. 

Heckenbach
Mr. and Mrs. Joshua Henney 

Stokes
Mr. Joseph E. Herbst
Dr. and Mrs. Emery C. Herman 

Jr.
Ms. Melva Hicks
Mr. and Mrs. Philip E. Holladay 

Jr.
Mr. William G. Holt
Mr. and Mrs. Alan Horne
Horrigan Foundation
Mr. Donald G. Houk
Mr. and Mrs. Edward S. Howle
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Hruska
F. A. Hunter & Associates
Mr. Farley A. Hunter
Mr. John D. Hunter
Mr. Richard G. Hutcheson III 

and Mr. C. Robert Kincaid
Mr. and Mrs. Michael H. 

Iacolucci
Mr. Zephyr Isely and 

Ms. Fruzan Parvanta
Mr. and Mrs. Anthony E. Jacobs
Jalima Holdings, Ltd.
Jana Foundation
Mr. Richard J. Jasculca
Ms. Isabel H. Jasinowski
Mr. and Mrs. Jerry J. Jasinowski
Mr. Robert L. Jennings Jr. and 

Ms. Barbara H. Bott
Ms. Kelley Jewett and 

Ms. Kristi Adams
Mr. and Mrs. Charles A. Johnson
Mr. Charles E. Jones
Mrs. Kimberly A. Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce A. Judson
Ms. Florence Kerkhoff
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan B. Kluger
Mr. and Mrs. Gearold L. Knowles
Mr. Kerry W. Kohnen
Dr. and Mrs. M. Roman Kotlarek
Mr. Orin S. Kramer
Kugelman Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence N. 

Kugelman
Reverend Myrna Kysar
Ambassador and Mrs. James T. 

Laney
Mr. David Lee and 

Ms. Lyn Jakeman
Mrs. Judith C. Lee

Mr. and Mrs. John Schreiber
The Honorable Leah Sears and 

Mr. Haskell Ward
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Seele
Ms. Doris J. Seely
Mr. Marcus A. Shaw
Ms. Jane E. Shivers and 

Mr. William M. Sharp Sr.
The Sikand Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory R. Simpson
Dr. Brett T. Brinker and 

Dr. Heather A. Slay
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence P. Smith
Dr. and Mrs. R. Bob Smith III
Mr. Brent A. Sowers
Ms. Margaret J. Spencer and Ms. 

Patricia J. Lahti
Mr. Robert Stets Jr.
Mr. Siva Suresh
Sutter Instrument Company
Dr. Peter Swift
Professor Steven Tanksley
Ms. Carol Tauer
Ms. Jennifer C. Taylor
Dr. Samuel T. Test
ThinFilms
Mr. and Mrs. Mark W. Tipton
Ms. Martha L. Vaughan
Mr. and Mrs. Royall Victor III
The Honorable Paul A. Volcker
Mr. Dougin Walker and Ms. 

Elizabeth Bromley
Ms. Nancy Wallace
The Ward Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. John F. Ward
Commander Peter Ward
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy A. Watt
Ms. Ann Rhodes White
Malcolm Hewitt Wiener 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Malcolm H. Wiener
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Williams
Dr. Marilyn Williams
Dr. and Mrs. Peter Windhorst
Dr. Robert L. Wintermyer
The Kate and Richard Wolters 

Foundation
Ms. Grace Wooding
Dr. Katrina Yielding
Dr. David S. Zamierowski
Peggy and Lee Zeigler
Mr. Richard W. Zurek

Envoy $2,500–$4,999
Anonymous (3)
Mr. and Mrs. Silvio P. Alfeo
Ms. Susan W. Almy
Ms. Eleanor Alston
Ms. Elizabeth Anderson
Dr. Larry J. Anderson and 

Ms. Karen Torghele
Dr. and Mrs. Athar Ansari
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Mr. and Mrs. John R. Paddison
Mr. and Mrs. Paul H. Page
Mr. and Mrs. Robert N. Parke
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher D. 

Patton
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel K. Paulien
PDM, Inc.
Mr. and Mrs. William P. Peabody
Pee Dee Orchards
Dr. Deborah S. Lee and 

Mr. John W. Peifer
Ms. Laura A. Petersen
Mr. Frank A. Petrus
Mr. and Mrs. Guy D. Pfeiffer
Mr. James M. Phillips
Mr. and Mrs. Steven Pieper
Mr. Gunnar Plake
Mr. Anders Platou
Ms. Kathleen Poon
Mrs. Lawrence E. Poorman
Mr. and Mrs. Robert N. Prentiss 

Jr.
Mrs. Jacki Prevenas
Dr. Khusro Rashid
Mr. and Mrs. William T. Ratliff 

III
Red Truck, Inc.
Mr. and Mrs. D. Paul Regan
Ms. Monique M. Regard
Daniel L. and Sophie K. Reiber 

Charitable Trust
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas Reppun
Mr. Sung Rhee and Ms. 

Stephanie Baker
Ms. Kathleen Rice
Ms. Laura M. Rice
Ms. Christina Lyn Cooley Rivers
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas S. Roeder
Mr. Lee J. Roehrdanz
Ms. Virginia B. Rogers
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald M. Rohan
Roman Dental
Mr. Paul Romano
Mr. Alois Rupp
Ms. Trina P. Russell
Mr. F. James Rutherford
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Sablesak
Mr. Noel Sanborn and 

Ms. Virginia Lee
Mr. and Mrs. Michael L. Sanders
Mr. and Mrs. Carl W. Sandlin
Dr. and Mrs. Lanny D. Schmidt
Mr. and Mrs. Tim Schnabel
Mr. Philip E. Schoene and 

Ms. Amy Bolton
Mr. and Mrs. Harold Schofield
Mr. and Mrs. Taylor Schollmaier
Mr. and Mrs. William 

Schumacher
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Searson
Mr. and Mrs. Julian D. Sharpton
Ms. Cathy Sheafor

Mr. Richard L. Shewell Jr.
Ms. Kathleen A. Shiel
Dr. Scott L. Siegal and 

Dr. Suzanne Shenk
Mr. Joseph F. Sifer
Mr. and Mrs. Tim Simonec
Mr. Robert O. Simons
Dr. Murali Sivarajan and 

Dr. Gouri Sivarajan
Mr. Thomas W. Slankard
Mr. and Mrs. Charles O. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Joel Smith
Dr. Marshall S. Smith and 

Dr. Louise N. Smith
Mr. William Stanhope and 

Ms. Kristen Keirsey
Ms. Elizabeth Steele
Ms. Wilhelmina M. Stemmer
Mr. Robert C. Storlie
Dr. Barbara S. Stowe
Mr. and Mrs. John Strange
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Stripe
Ms. Amy Swenson
Mr. Douglas Szperka and 

Dr. Christina Szperka
Mr. and Mrs. Jerome Tamm
Ms. Mary Jean Tate
Mr. and Mrs. Keith S. Tattersall
Ms. Barbara Teichert
Mr. and Mrs. William 

Thibodeaux
Mr. Jean-Claude Thomas
Ms. Janice Thompson
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathan C. 

Throop
Mr. David T. Tichenor
Mrs. Laura Tietz
Mr. and Mrs. LeRoy S. Troyer
Mrs. Ruth Tsu
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy C. Tuff

Mr. and Mrs. Dan Vogel
Mr. and Mrs. Jack H. Watson Jr.
Ms. Betty A. Welty
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher Wendt
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew Westbrook
Ms. Dorothy G. Whitmore
Mr. Jeff Williams
Mr. Tim Williams
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth M. 

Woodworth
Ms. Elaine Yakura
Mr. David Yates
Mrs. Steven E. Yuhas
Mrs. Judy Zaban
Dr. Susan Zimicki
Dr. Sape A. Zylstra

Emissary $1,000–$2,499
Anonymous (42)
Mr. Eugene Aaron
Ms. Kathleen M. Abbey
Mr. Warren Abbey
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin Abel
Ms. Tamara Abell
Mr. and Mrs. W. Randall Abney
Mr. Alan R. Abrams
Ms. Denise Abrams
Abrams Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Abrams
Mr. and Mrs. Daryl Ackerman
Ms. Kay E. Adair
Mr. Jeffrey Adamczak
Dr. Alan Adams and 

Ms. Kathryn A. Lyons
Mr. Donald Adams and 

Ms. Ellen Maland
Mr. James F. Adams
Mr. Thomas Adams and 

Ms. Erin Bell
Mr. and Mrs. Art Adie

LeFort-Martin Fund of The 
Chicago Community 
Foundation

Mr. and Mrs. Paul R. Leonard Jr.
Ms. Sue Leong
Dr. Roberta G. Lessor
Ms. Elsa Limbach
Mr. Gregory Loek and 

Ms. Kathleen Rice
Ms. Karen E. Lotz-McMillen
Ms. Anne Marie Macari
Marquis George MacDonald 

Foundation
Mr. Joseph MacDonald
Ms. Patricia B. Maloomian
Mr. and Mrs. James F.  

Marchman III
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas F. Maser
Mr. and Mrs. Richard T. Mason
The John J. and Maryanne T. 

Mauriel Family Foundation
Mr. Brian K. Mazar and 

Mrs. Anne S. Mazar
Mr. James A. McBride and 

Ms. Mary Morse
Mr. and Mrs. Alex F. McCalla
Ms. Dianne McCarthy
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin McEntee
Dr. Mary Jo McGee-Brown
Mr. Wade F. McKenzie
Mr. and Mrs. James M. 

McKinney
Mr. Scott McLaughlin
Ms. Cynthia A. Merrill
Ms. Julie Millane
Dr. and Mrs. Dayton Miller
Ms. Maggie Mitchell-Salem
Ms. Betty J. Mizek
Dr. and Mrs. Harvey 

Mohrenweiser
Mr. and Mrs. Scott T. 

Montgomery
Mr. and Mrs. Richard L. Moody
The Honorable Ambler H. Moss 

Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Michael E. Motes
Dr. Christopher Mullin and 

Dr. Sarah Gaffen
Ms. Barbara Munn
Mr. Robert R. Munoz and 

Ms. Pamela Hughes
Mr. and Mrs. Glen Murphy
Mr. and Mrs. William B. Neely
Mr. Michael Nelson and Ms. 

Louise Durocher
Win & Christie Neuger Family 

Foundation
Mr. Win Neuger and 

Dr. Christie Neuger
New World Library
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Noonan
Ms. Esther M. Novak
Ms. Leslie O’Loughlin

Members of the Ambassadors Circle contribute unrestricted gifts of $1,000 or more to the Carter Center Annual Fund.

Musicians play in Naciona, Colombia. The Carter Center helped 
facilitate talks to end the 50-year civil war between the 
Colombian government and the Revolutionary Armed Forces 
of Colombia (FARC), but the resulting peace accord was 
narrowly rejected by Colombian voters in October 2016.
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Dr. and Mrs. Charles A. Andrews
Dr. Roberto Oscar Aquilano
Ms. Miriam N. Arbelo
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce H. 

Armstrong
Mr. Norman A. Arnold
Mr. Kevin W. Arthur
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas S. Arthur
Mrs. W. F. Askins
athenahealth
Mr. Roger Atkinson and 

Ms. Janet Arey
Mrs. Phoebe Atwood
Mrs. Julia E. Austbo
Ms. Anita Austin
Mr. Clarence Avant
Mr. and Mrs. Moses Awe
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Aweida
Mr. Peter Babbidge
Mr. and Mrs. James F. Backman
Ms. Elizabeth L. Bailey
Mr. and Mrs. Jeff C. Bailey
Dr. and Mrs. Alfred L. Baker
Mr. Bill R. Baker
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Baker
Mr. and Mrs. Gareth D. Baker
Mrs. Lloyd B. Baldwin
Dr. John R. Ball
Mr. and Mrs. W. Thomas 

Ballantine
Mr. and Mrs. Parmanand 

Balsaver
Mr. Joseph L. Balwierczak
Mrs. Margaret L. Banister
Mr. Kifle Bantayehu
Mr. Mihai Bantos
Ms. Rosemarie Baratta
Mr. Paul L. Barden

Ms. Jan C. Barlow
Ms. Anne Barnett
Mr. and Mrs. George D. Barnhart
Ms. Elaine Barnhill
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas Barringer
Dr. Joseph Barry
Mr. Robert H. Bartels
Mr. William C. Bartholomay
Mr. John J. Barton
Mr. Todd Barton
Mr. David W. Barts
Mr. David W. Bartz
Mr. Darrel Bateman
Mr. Stephen Bates
Mr. Richard A. Baumgartner
Mr. Alan Baxter
Ms. Patti Baynham
Dr. Robert E. Beach and 

Dr. Patricia S. Beach
Mr. and Mrs. Jeff Beal
Mr. and Mrs. Byron T. Beasley
Ms. Lauren Beaudry
Mr. and Mrs. Bryce L. Beck
Mrs. Darla Beck
Mr. and Mrs. Donald Becker
Dr. Jonathan Becker
Ms. Sheri Beckler
Ms. Susan J. Bedford
The Beggs Family Foundation
Ms. Sandi Jo Behnken
Mr. Kenneth Belcher
Reverend Emily Bell and 

Mr. Bob Bell
Dr. Gregory J. Bell
Mr. and Mrs. Louis Bellardo
Mr. Richard Benfield
Mr. David L. Bennett
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Beran

Mr. and Mrs. Donald E. Berg
Ms. Catherine M. Berger
Mr. Laurence N. Berking
Mr. Richard Berkins
Mr. and Mrs. Michael S. Berman
Mr. Thomas Bernadzikowski
Mr. and Mrs. Scott Bernecker
Carol Lavin Bernick Family 

Foundation
Dr. David A. Bernstein
Rev. and Mrs. James G. Berry
Mr. and Mrs. John T. Berry
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Berry
Mr. Wayne Bert and 

Ms. Kerstin Jagerbo
Mr. and Mrs. William O. 

Bertelsman
Ms. Nancy Bethke
Mrs. Kathy Betty
Mr. Jim Betz
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth D. Betz
Ms. Annamae M. Beyette
Mrs. Victoria Beynon
Mr. Bruce Bidle
Ms. Suzanne Binder
Mr. and Mrs. Robert R. Binns
Ms. Ada Lea N. Birnie
Ms. Flores W. Bishop
Mr. William Bishop
Mr. Philip G. Black
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Black
Dr. Tallis Blalack and 

Ms. Katherine Weller
Dr. Kendall Blanchard and 

Dr. Connie Blanchard
Ms. Diana Blank
Mr. and Mrs. Francis J. Blesso Jr.
Blistex
Mr. William K. Block
Ms. Barbara D. Blum
Mr. and Mrs. Glendon W. Blume
Ms. Elayne M. Blumhagen
Mr. and Mrs. David L. Boddy
Mrs. Robert C. Bogenpohl
Mr. Scott Boggess
Ms. Joan W. Boggs
Ms. Sandra Bohman
Dr. and Mrs. John K. Boitnott
Mr. Herbert T. Bolton
Mr. and Mrs. Ross Bolton
Mr. and Mrs. Edwin Bond
Mr. Geoffrey Bond
Ms. Nina Boniske
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas H. Boone 

Jr.
Young Boozer Family Foundation
Dr. Carol C. Borden
Dr. Leslie McIntosh Borrelli
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Bottge
Mrs. Elisabeth Bottler

Ambassadors Circle 2015–2016

Ms. Catherine M. Adler
Ms. Deborah J. Adler
Mr. and Mrs. Shawn M. Aebi
Walter and Leticia Aeschbach
Dr. and Mrs. Ravinder Agarwal
Mr. Damien Agostinelli
Mr. and Mrs. David Aha
Dr. M. Basheeruddin Ahmed and 

Dr. Shakila Ahmed
Ms. Sandra J. Ahn
Dr. Gillian Air
Mr. Lon P. Akerberg
Mr. and Mrs. Mark E. Alberts
Mr. and Mrs. Frank S. Alexander
The Allan and Lalita Charitable 

Foundation
Mr. Ken Allen
Ms. Sylvia E. Allen
Mrs. Tricia Allen
Mr. Steve M. Alpers
Ms. Elkin Goddard Alston
Mr. Edward E. Altemus
Ms. Susan C. Alvey
Mr. and Mrs. Edward A. Ambs
AMG Engineering & Machining
Ms. Angelique Anderson and 

Mr. Jeffrey Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Bob Anderson
Dr. Cris J. Anderson
Ms. Mary Lee Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Roger Anderson
Sherman Michael AndersonTrust
Mr. and Mrs. Weston A. 

Anderson
Mrs. Jean Andreen and Mr. 

Wayne Andreen
Mr. David M. Andreotta
Mr. Markus Andres

A Nigerian child takes a dose of medication to help prevent schistosomiasis, a parasitic 
disease that damages internal organs.
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Dr. and Mrs. William J. Burtis
Mr. and Mrs. Henry L. Burton
Ms. Enid J. Busser
Dr. David M. Butler
Mr. L. Headley Butler
Mr. Gary A. Butts
Byers Engineering Company
Mr. Kenneth G. Byers Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew W. Byrd
Mr. and Mrs. Jerry M. Byrd
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce C. Byrne
Ms. Kris Byrne
Ms. Sandra Cable and 

Mr. Ed Cable
Mr. and Mrs. William H. Cable
Ms. Cindy Calbaum
Mr. Christopher A. Calhoun
Ms. Anne L. Calkins
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Camara
Mr. Timothy J. Cambias Sr.
Dr. and Mrs. Bruce Camitta
Dr. Elizabeth E. Campbell
Mr. James H. Campbell
Ms. Jane Campbell
Dr. Cecilia H. Cantrell
Mr. and Mrs. Steven Capella
Ms. Felicia Cappadona
Ms. Carole M. Carey
Mr. Luke Benjamin Carey
Ms. Statia Carey
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald Carlisle
Mr. Kent H. Carlsen
Mrs. Linda B. Carlyle
Ms. Amy Carman
Dr. Amee F. Carmines
Mr. Bertram W. Carp and 

Ms. Lynn McReynolds
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J. Carpenter
Mr. James R. Carr
Ms. Susan A. Carr
Mr. Wayne Carriere
Mr. Charles W. Carson Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. James B. Carson Jr.
The Calvin W. Carter Family
Dr. Jean Carter and Mr. Michael 

Carter
Mr. and Mrs. John Carter
Dr. and Mrs. John B. Carter
Dr. Ronald D. Carter and 

Ms. Judith Carter
Ms. Victoria P. Carver
Mr. Roger D. Cash
Ms. Sharon L. Cassidy
Ms. Cecily L. Cassum
Dr. Ana M. Castellanos
Ms. Theresa Catino
Dr. James G. Caya
Dr. and Mrs. Arthur Chaffee
Ms. Christina Chalkley
Ms. Miriam D. Chapman
Mr. Ken Chase

Dr. Michael D. Chase
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Chase
Mr. David Chasson
Dr. Charles S. Chen
Ms. Laura Chenel
Cherokee Foundation
Ms. Diane M. Chestnut
Mr. Daniel M. Chew
Mr. Sam Childers and 

Mr. Jeff Hemphill
Ms. Tatiana Chin
Mr. Philip S. Chordas
Mr. and Mrs. Lynn Christiansen
Mr. and Mrs. David Christopher
Mrs. Julia Horne Church
The Honorable and Mrs. 

Benjamin R. Civiletti
Mr. and Mrs. Allen T. Clark
Dr. Diane Clark
Paul W. Clark Family Foundation
Ms. Frances P. Clark
Mrs. Charles E. Clark
Mr. Paul W. Clark
Mr. and Mrs. Terry M. Clark
Mr. Russell K. Clayton
Mr. D. Elwood Clinard
Ms. Rebekah Clower
Mr. John S. Clyde
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas M. 

Cochrane
Mr. George G. Cocks
Mr. Alan M. Cody
Mr. Mark Coffman
Mr. David H. Cofrin and 

Ms. Christine Tryba-Cofrin
Mr. and Mrs. Darvy M. Cohan
Mr. Edward B. Cohen and 

Ambassador Charlene 
Barshefsky

Mr. and Mrs. Harvey M. Cohen
Ms. Sheryl Cole
Mr. David Coler
Reverend David Coles
Mr. Robert B. Colgin
Ms. Emma Lou Collins
Mr. and Mrs. Richard B. Collins
Mr. Roger C. Conant
Mr. Bryan Conley and 

Ms. Monika Nikore
Ms. Susan E. Conner
Dr. Kate Connor
Ms. Margaret A. Cook Levy
Mr. William Cook and 

Ms. Monika Mevenkamp
Mr. and Mrs. Allen Cooke
Dr. Sarah Cookinham
Mr. Mark J. Coolican and 

Ms. Susan J. Blotzer
Dr. and Mrs. Max Cooper
Ms. Susan Cooper
Mr. James M. Copeland Jr. and 

Ms. Deborah E. McFarland

Ms. Doris J. Coplien
The Honorable Samuel G. 

Coppersmith
Ms. Alyse Lucas Corcoran and 

Mr. John L. Morrison
Dr. and Mrs. Eugene H. Cordes
Ms. Ellyn Corey and 

Mr. Thomas Sartor
Dr. Lynn D. Cornell
Mr. Rod Corvo
Dr. and Mrs. Michael F. Coscia
Ms. Suzan L. Costantini
Mr. and Mrs. John M. Cotton
Ms. Christine R. Cottrell
Mr. Stuart W. Couch
Mr. and Mrs. William M. Coulter
Mr. and Mrs. Charles M. Couric
Dr. Shawn Cowper and 

Dr. Carolyn Rambus
Ms. Marcia Cox
Mr. and Mrs. Rodney B. Cox
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Cox
Mr. Michael Craib
Mr. Mark A. Craig
Ms. Nancy W. Craig
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Crain
Mr. and Mrs. Maury S. Cralle Jr.
Mr. David C. Crane
Ms. Shelley Cranley and Mr. 

Marcelino Duran
Mr. Charles B. Crawford Jr.
Ms. Dona L. Crawford
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Creger
Ms. Lisa M. Cremin and 

Mr. W. Bruce Harlan
Dr. Melinda Crenshaw
Ms. Patricia J. Crockett
Dr. Gary Cromer and 

Ms. Judy Porter
Ms. Mary Karen Cronin
Ms. Eleanor B. Crook
Mrs. Louis C. Crouch
Mr. and Mrs. Dwight Crowder
Areta Crowell and Russell Smith
Ms. Anne B. Crumpler
Mr. Phil Cubeta, MSFS, CLU, 

ChFC, CAP
Ms. Judy M. Culbreath
Culver Family Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. J. Bart Culver
Mr. Danny Cupit
Mrs. Carleton E. Curran
Dr. Roy Curtiss
Ms. Kristin A. Cutler
Ms. Marlene Czarkowski
Mr. and Mrs. Robert K. 

Dace-Smith
Ms. Colleen Daly
Mr. Scott M. Daniel
Mrs. Billie Jacquelyn Daniels
Ms. Melonee A. Daniels

Dr. Kenneth Boudreau and 
Dr. Karen Boudreau

Mr. and Mrs. John A. Boudreaux
Ms. Roseann H. Bove
Ms. Kathleen Bovid
Mr. and Mrs. William E. Boys
Helen V. Brach Foundation
Mr. Todd C. Bradbury
John and Kristine Bradley
Mr. Neal Bradsher and 

Ms. Elizabeth Johnson
Mr. Charles W. Brady
Ms. Sarah Brady
Mr. Albert Brandel and 

Dr. Maureen Murphy
Mr. David F. Brandt
Ms. Susan E. Brandt
Ms. Birke Breckwoldt
Mr. John P. Bremer
Mr. Sean M. Brennan
Ms. Virginia G. Brey
Mr. and Mrs. James E. Bridges
Mr. and Mrs. John Briedis
Mr. Harold C. Brockman
Ms. Marilyn L. Brodie
Mr. and Mrs. Reade Brower
Mr. Corey Brown
Mr. and Mrs. David P. Brown
Reverend and Mrs. John Brown
Mr. Johnnie Brown
Ms. Kellie R. Brown
Mr. and Mrs. Matthew J. Brown
Mr. Richard R. Brown and 

Ms. Sandra Jean Zaremba
Mr. and Mrs. Stuart H. Brown
Dr. David Brunco
Mrs. James I. Brunell
Ms. Barbara A. Bruner
Dr. C. Hal Brunt
Mr. David H. Bryan
Ms. Cynthia Rose Bryant
Ms. Rose Bryant
Mr. and Mrs. Frederick L. Budde
Dr. Robert E. Budin and 

Dr. Diane A. Lowe
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas S. 

Buechner III
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Bugg Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Allen C. Buhler
Mr. John Buhler
Mr. Tom Buhler
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne L. 

Bullaughey
Mr. and Mrs. Steve Bunce
Ms. Mary Catherine Bunting
Ms. Treava W. Burgess
Ms. Mary Stewart Burgher
Ralph Burnham Charitable Lead 

Trust
Mr. and Mrs. James Burnis
Mr. James Burns
Ms. Nell Burns

Members of the Ambassadors Circle contribute unrestricted gifts of $1,000 or more to the Carter Center Annual Fund.
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Mr. Arlen D. Dominek and 
Mr. A.J. Young

Dr. Taymon Domzalski and 
Dr. Lisa Ann Cavanaugh

Mr. Michael Donnantuono
Mr. and Mrs. J. Lawrence 

Donoghue Jr.
Mr. Paul Dooley and 

Ms. Winnie Holzman
Mrs. Robert J. Dorwart
Mr. and Mrs. Glenn R. Doshay
Mr. and Mrs. John Doucette
Dr. Deborah Downs
Ms. Christine Doyle and 

Mr. Michael Yessick
Mr. John Doyle
Miss Yvonne D. Doyle
Dr. Robert Numan and 

Dr. Diane E. Dreher
Ms. Susan Driscoll
Mr. and Mrs. Rodney Driver
Mr. and Mrs. Cornelis J. Drost
Mr. and Mrs. Clarence 

Drummond
Ms. Karen I. Duckett
Ms. Kathleen Duffy and 

Mr. Drew Dolak
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Duffy
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Dull
Ms. Anneliese H. Duncan
Ms. Deborah Dunevant
Ms. Marcia F. Dunscomb
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Durako 

Jr.
Ms. Judy A. Dwyer
Dr. and Mrs. David S. Dyke
East Coast Stainless
Ms. Evelyn Echevarria
George H. Eddings Sr. and 

Alfreda R. Eddings Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. George H. Eddings 

Sr.
Mr. and Mrs. Bert P. Eder Sr.
Ms. Genelle Edwards
Ms. Kimberly A. Edwards
Ms. Marigold A. Edwards and Ms. 

Nora B. Runsdorf
Mr. and Mrs. William T. Edwards
Mr. and Mrs. William Eerdmans 

Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Edmund A. Egan
Mr. M. Michael Egan
Ms. Laura M. Egger
Ms. Marci Eggers
Dr. and Mrs. Bryon Ehlmann
Ms. Marypat T. Ehlmann
Ms. Irene A. Ehret
The Honorable Stuart E. 

Eizenstat
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J. Ekman
Dr. Mouradi B. Elchahal
Mr. and Mrs. Eldon Eller
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel W. Elliott

Ms. Rosanda Ellsworth
Mrs. Julia S. Elsee
Dr. and Mrs. Dirk M. Elston
Dr. Paul Emerson
Dr. and Mrs. Steven Ender
Ms. Kathryn Engholm and 

Mr. Jeffrey Earls
The Honorable and Mrs. James 

C. England
Dr. Mary Jane England
Ms. Helen L. Enslow
Mr. and Mrs. John D. Epstein
Ms. Dianne Erickson and 

Ms. Lois Pettinger
Ms. Sheila Erlach
Dr. and Mrs. Trent Erney
Ms. Catherine Erny
Mr. Joseph W. Esherick and 

Ms. Wa Ye
Ms. Lisa Esherick
Mr. Daniel Esrey
Mr. Robert J. Essick
Mr. and Mrs. C. Paul Estep
Mr. and Mrs. David Evans
Mr. and Mrs. Edward R. Evans
Mr. Joseph W. Evans
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas N. Evans
Ms. Kellie Evans-O’Connor
Dr. and Mrs. Frederick F. 

Everhart
Mr. Benjamin L. Everitt
Ms. Barbara Faga and Mr. Paul C. 

Kulinski
Mr. and Mrs. Michael P. Fahey
Dr. Harlicia F. Farley
Dr. and Mrs. Neil Farris
Mr. Joseph Fata
Mr. Joel Fechter
The Federal Firm, LLC
The Honorable R. Keegan 

Federal Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas V. 

Fehsenfeld
Mr. and Mrs. William S. 

Fehsenfeld
Mr. and Mrs. David Fein
Ms. Elaine J. Felde
Mr. and Mrs. Henry David 

Fellows Jr.
Dr. Flora Fennimore
Ms. Laura M. Ferenc
Mrs. Scott Ferris
Ms. Susan S. Ferson
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey C. Fetzer
Dr. and Mrs. James M. Fico
Mr. Aaron Field
Ms. Robin Figueroa
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Finger
Mr. Leroy M. Fingerson
The Samuel Finkel Foundation
Mr. Howard B. Finkel
Dr. Gregory Finn

Mr. and Mrs. Maurice Finucan
Mr. and Mrs. Mike Fisher
Mr. David Fisk
Ms. Catherine Fissell
Reverend Sue Fitzgerald
Ms. Kathleen L. Fitzgerald
Mr. Christophe Flament
Ms. Elsebeth Flarup
Mr. David Fleming
Mr. and Mrs. Maurice R. Fliess
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Flood
Ms. Sarah L. Flosi
Dr. Nancy C. Flowers
Rev. Ralph Fogal
Ms. Pegi Follachio
Reverend Austin M. Ford
Ms. Sarah Ford
Mr. John S. Forrer
Mr. William Forrest and 

Ms. Nancie Julian
Ms. Sumarie Bass Forrester
Ms. Norma Fosgate
Ms. Karen Fouad
Mrs. Frances W. Fowler
Mr. and Mrs. R. Dean Fowler
Mr. and Mrs. Dale Fox Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Fox
Mr. Michael Francini and 

Ms. Alys Milner
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen R. 

Francisco
Mr. and Mrs. Arthur W. Frank Jr.
A. J. Frank Family Foundation
Dr. Mary B. Frankis
Mr. Robert Frankland and 

Ms. Kathryn Scott
Mr. and Mrs. Darrell E. Franklin
Mr. Andy Fraser
Mr. Donald Fraser
Ms. Estelle Freedman
Robert and Sheril Freedman 

Family Foundation
Ms. Sheril Freedman
Mr. S. David Freeman
Dr. Christopher P. French
Ms. Jeanna French
Mr. Peter Frentzel
Ms. Beth Frey
Mr. and Mrs. Paul J. Friedman
Mr. David J. Froba
Mr. and Mrs. John Fry
Dr. Colony Fugate
Mr. Phillip T. Fujii
Dr. Charles L. Fuller
Mr. and Mrs. Randy Fulmer
Mr. and Mrs. William Gagen
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley A. Galanski
Mr. Tracy Gallagher
Ms. Carol Gallant
Ms. Alison Gallaway and 

Mr. Andy Carson
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Mr. and Mrs. Stephen S. 
Danielsen

Mr. and Mrs. Daniel Dannevik
Mr. Kelly M. Darden Jr.
Dart Bank
Dr. Sita K. Dash
Mr. and Mrs. Gastón O. Daumy
Mr. Daniel H. Davenport
Mr. John P. Davidson
Mr. Roger C. Davidson
Dr. Alison E. Davis
Ms. Ann G. Davis
Ms. Barbara M. Davis
Mr. Christopher L. Davis
Dr. Donald M. Davis
Mr. and Mrs. Erroll B. Davis Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. F. T. Davis Jr.
Ms. Jonis Davis
Dr. Margaret D. Davis
Mr. and Mrs. Don A. Davis Jr.
Ms. Kathleen Day
Mr. and Mrs. Deane K. Dayton
Mr. William J. de Groot
Mr. P. De Villiers
Mr. and Mrs. Charles A. 

DeBenedittis
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory J. Debor
Dr. Michiel E. Ultee and 

Dr. Patricia L. Dedert
Mr. and Mrs. Michael L. Dehm
Mr. Edward Delaplaine II
Mr. Ismet Deletioglu
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Delgado
Dr. Nancy Dell-Steele
DeltaSigma LLC
Ms. Pete Dempsey-Sims
Ms. Francoise Denis
Mr. and Mrs. Geoffrey E. J. 

Dennis
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. Denny 

Jr.
Mr. Glenn Dettinger
Ms. Sarah Deutsch and 

Mr. Eli Eilbott
Ms. C. Maury Devine
Mrs. Irene Devine
Mr. and Mrs. Charles F. Dewald
Mr. George T. Dewey III
Mr. and Mrs. Donald N. Dial
Dr. John Dick
Dr. Claudia Dickerson
Dr. and Mrs. W. Reed Dickinson
Dickson Family Fund
Ms. Marion Diener
Mr. Richard H. W. Dillard
Ms. Jean Marie Dillon
Ms. Teresa Disspain
Mr. Martin Doblmeier
Mr. William Doerrer
Ms. Elizabeth A. Doherty
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Mr. and Mrs. John W. Godden
Mr. and Mrs. Nitin Godiwala
Mr. Judd Goldberg
Mr. and Mrs. Geraldo Gomes
Dr. Kathryn Gonzalez
Dr. Pat Gordin and 

Mr. Larry Gordin
Ms. Gail Gordon
Mr. Robert C. Goree
Mrs. Julia Goss
Abe Graber Memorial Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel Graber
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffery J. Grace
Mr. and Mrs. James M. Gracey
Mr. and Mrs. Robert D. Graff
Mr. and Mrs. Robert H. Graham
Ms. Marlys Gramley
Dr. Cheryln S. Granrose
Mr. and Mrs. Curtis Grant
Ms. Judith Grassilli
Ms. Annette Grattan
Mr. Paul N. Gray
Greater Greenville Family 

Health, LLC
Mr. Douglas Green
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph H. Green
Mr. and Mrs. Robert A. Greene
Ms. Suzanne Greenleaf
Dr. Lawrence Greenwald
Mr. E. Alex Gregory
Dr. David Grenda
Ms. Tilly M. Grey
Mr. and Mrs. Gene Griffin

Joanne and Tim Griffin
Ms. Josephine Griffin and 

Ms. Ellen Stinnett
Ms. Sarah H. Griffin
Mr. John H. Griffith
Mr. and Mrs. Charles W. Grigg
Mr. and Mrs. Arthur E. Grim
Mr. Charles Grimes
Mr. Dennis Grimes
Mr. and Mrs. J. D. Grimsbo
Charley and Jill Gross
Ms. Georgia Grummon
Ms. Fran Grunden
Ms. Rochelle Guillory
Mr. Warren Gump
Mr. W. Franklin Gunion
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Gunning
Dr. and Mrs. Surendra Gupta
Vivian Hays Guthrie Charitable 

Fund
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Gutierrez
Joanne and Peter Haas Jr. Fund
Mr. John Paul Haberman
Mr. Edward E. Haddock III
Edward E. Haddock Jr. Family 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Damon Haggerty
Mr. Martin Haig
Mr. and Mrs. Richard W. 

Haining
Mr. David P. Hale and 

Ms. Laura A. Torres
Mr. and Mrs. Emmett M. Hale
The Hale Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. James W. Hale
Mr. and Mrs. Donald R. Hall
Mr. Robert S. Hall
Mr. Jeffrey J. Hallett and 

Mrs. Debra Ann Cameron
Ms. Kathleen M. Halsey
Mr. Tahir Hamid
Mr. Art Hamilton
Ms. Florence B. Hamlin
Mr. George R. Hamm
Mr. and Mrs. Earl G. Hammond
Hammond Family Foundation
Ms. Kay Hamner
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy J. 

Hampton
Ms. Joanna R. Hanes-Lahr
The Robert T. Hanley 

Foundation
Mr. Robert T. Hanley
Mr. John B. Hanlon
Reverend and Mrs. Earl K. 

Hanna
Dr. and Mrs. David G. Hannay
Mr. Charles C. Hansen III
Mr. and Mrs. Sam Harben Jr.
Mr. Richard M. Harden
Ms. Karen Hardiman
The Honorable Hal D. Hardin

Ms. Rochelle Hardin
Ms. Tracy L. Hardy
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Hargis
Mr. Kenneth C. Harper
Mr. William T. Harper and 

Ms. Brida M. Smith
Ms. Carolyn L. Harris
Ms. Hollis Harris
Ms. Margaret Harris
Ms. Carol S. Hart
Ms. Susan Riley Hart
Dr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Hartung
Ms. Jennifer Hatch
Mr. Stephen Hatcher and 

Ms. Joy Ellis
Mr. Antoine G. Hatoun and 

Ms. Andrea G. Levitt
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. 

Haviland
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth S. Hays Jr.
Ms. Rachel Hays
Ms. Barbara W. Hazelett
Ms. Vivian J. Headings
Mr. and Mrs. Richard W. Healey
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher C. 

Healy
Dr. Patrick Hearing and 

Dr. Janet Hearing
Mr. and Mrs. Steven Heilmann
Mrs. Carol L. Held
Mr. Preston F. Helgren
Dr. and Mrs. Gerard L. Helinek
Dr. Russell Helms and Dr. 

Wendy Faye Greene
Mr. and Mrs. Eric Helpenstell
Mr. Merrit A. Heminway
Ms. Babette Henagan
The Henagan Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Larry L. Henderson
Ms. Laurel Henderson
Dr. and Mrs. Ralph H. 

Henderson
Mr. Jon Herber
Ms. Jean Herman
Mr. Willis S. Hesselroth
Mr. and Mrs. Robert G. Hestand
Ms. Susan A. Heule
Dr. Kenneth R. Hey
Ms. Kimberly Z. Heyne
Dr. and Mrs. Carlton T. Hicks
Dr. John Higgins
Ms. Teresa Hildebrand
Mrs. Jesse Hill Jr.
Dr. and Mrs. David W. Hill
Mr. and Mrs. James L. Hilton
Mr. Alan R. Hinds
Ms. Joyce Hirman
Dr. Rich Hiskes and 

Dr. Anne Hiskes
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne E. 

Hochstetler
Mr. James Hodges

Ms. Sabra Gallo and 
Mr. Frederick Post

Mr. James F. Gammill and 
Ms. Susan H. Alexander

Mrs. David E. Gamper
Ms. Stephanie Garber and 

Mr. David M. Collins
Ms. Beverly Garcia
Ms. Michelle Garcia-Daniels
Ms. Inez Garrett
Mr. Lester L. Garrison
Ms. Joan E. Gates
Mr. and Mrs. William P. Gaupp
Mr. Kenneth J. Gaylord
Mr. Harry W. Gedney
General Atomics
Ms. Janine B. Gensheimer
Mr. and Mrs. Richard J. 

Geoghegan
Ms. Venita Georgieff
Mrs. Will R. Getz
Mr. and Mrs. Praveen Ghanta
Mr. and Mrs. Robert J. Gibbons
Ms. Sharon M. Gibbons
Mr. Richard Gillespie
Dr. Pat Ingle Gillis
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A. 

Giordano
Mr. and Mrs. William W. Givens
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Glasscock
Mr. and Mrs. William J. Glasser
Mr. and Mrs. Jack Gleason
Ms. Ann C. Gobeski
Mr. and Mrs. Bobby D. Godbee

Members of the Ambassadors Circle contribute unrestricted gifts of $1,000 or more to the Carter Center Annual Fund.

Ni Huixia is a farmer in Hetao village in China’s Yunnan 
province. The Carter Center is working on several fronts in 
China to foster collaboration between it and the United States.
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Mr. Toby Imler
Ms. Henna Inam
Ms. Syeda R. Inamdar
Dr. Syeda R. Inamdar
Mr. Walter E. Ingram
Admiral and Mrs. Bobby R. 

Inman
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Irish
Mr. and Mrs. B. William Irlbeck
Mr. Keith Ito
Dr. Linda Izquierdo
Dr. Shirin Jabbarzadeh and 

Dr. Kambiz Nayebi
Dr. and Mrs. Chris A. Jackson
Ms. Jo Bess Jackson
Mrs. William J. Jackson
Ms. Omega A. Jackson
Mr. and Mrs. H. Craig Jacobs
Mr. and Mrs. Paul J. Jacobs
Mr. David M. Jacobson
Mr. Mitchell B. Jacoby
Mr. and Mrs. Petter Jahnsen
Ms. Maria H. Jalics
Mr. Roland James
Mr. and Mrs. Ronnie Janey
Ms. Elizabeth A. Jaskoski
Ms. Barbara B. Javaras
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Jay
Mr. Robert D. Jenkins
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Jennaro
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Jensen
Mr. Steven Baughman Jensen 

and Dr. Rebecca McGowan 
Jensen

Mr. and Mrs. C. Gene Jester
Mr. George H. Johnson
Ms. Jennifer A. Johnson and 

Mr. Kenneth L. Grotewiel
Mr. Joe Johnson
Mr. Jon D. Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Larry A. Johnson
Ms. Luci Baines Johnson
Ms. Marilyn Johnson
Mr. Steve Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. Thad Johnson
Mr. and Mrs. W. Thomas 

Johnson
Ms. Jana Johnston and 

Mr. William Tomlinson
Ms. Karen L. Johnston
Mr. Eric J. Joiner
Mr. and Mrs. John W. Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Boisfeuillet Jones Jr.
Mr. G. Pownall Jones
Mr. and Mrs. George Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Gilbert G. Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Jones
Ms. Miyoung Joo and 

Mr. Michel Biard
Bob and Diane Jorgensen
Ms. Judy M. Judd
Mr. Michael C. Just

Mr. and Mrs. Irvin Kaage III
Ms. Marsha A. Kademian
Dr. Julian Kadish
Mr. and Mrs. John S. Kahler
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Kaiser
Mr. Dale S. Kammerlohr
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin Kanda
Ms. Kris L. Kandler and 

Ms. Kim Kandler
Mrs. Carol F. Kane
Dr. and Mrs. Norman M. Kane
Mr. Nahaliel Kanfer
Ms. Nancy Kaplan
Mr. and Mrs. Partap Kapoor and 

Family
Ms. Audra Karasa
Dr. Daniel A. Kaufman and 

Ms. Taylor Brooks
Mr. Kenneth Carroll Kaufman
Mr. and Mrs. John T. Kautzer
Dr. Charles D. Kay and 

Ms. Margaret Trageser-Kay
Mr. Stanley E. Kehl and 

Ms. Karen Fie
Mr. James Kelleher
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey S. Kelley
Mr. David W. Kelly
Mr. John Kemmerer
The Kendeda Fund
Ms. Kathleen A. Kenn
Mr. and Mrs. James E. Kennedy
Dr. and Mrs. Robert P. Kennedy
Ms. Susan Lillia Kennedy
Ms. Joan M. Kent
Donald and Marilyn Keough 

Foundation
Mr. Mike Kerr
Dr. and Mrs. Onnik Keshishian
Ms. Merrilynn W. Kessler
Ms. Mary E. Kester
Mr. and Mrs. Ashraf R. Khalaf
Dr. Sarah E. Kidd
Mr. John B. Kilbane
Mr. and Mrs. Michael G. Kilgore
The Reverend Billy Kim
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas Kindschi
Mr. Paul L. King
Mr. and Mrs. Richard J. King
Ms. Mary Kinsey
Dr. David Kirk
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Klein
Ms. Carolyn Klinger and 

Mr. Donn Williams
Steven and Diane Knapp
Mr. Jeffrey Knauth
Ms. Marily Knieriemen
Ms. Esther P. Knierim
Ms. Janice J. Knight
Mr. Robert N. Knight Jr.
Knopf Family Foundation
Mr. Jim Knopf

Mr. and Mrs. Eric K. Kocher
Mr. Bruce J. Koehler
Mr. Keith D. Kofoed
Konu Town
Mr. and Mrs. Jason Kopanke
Ms. Susan K. Koralik
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Koran
Ms. Darlene S. Kostrub
Ms. Linda Kotis
Dr. Robert C. Kowerski
Mr. and Mrs. Myron E. Kownacki
Mr. Franklin D. Kraai
Dr. Wayne A. Kradjan and 

Mrs. Carolyn L. Kradjan
Mr. Donald Kraft
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy E. Kraft
Mr. and Mrs. David F. Krahn
Mr. and Mrs. James M. Kramer
Mr. Steven J. Kramer
Ms. Melissa Krause
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Krepick
Ms. Elise Kroeber
Mr. Steve S. Krogh and 

Ms. Kerry D. Molln
Ms. Leigh-Anne Krometis
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. Kruse
Mr. and Mrs. Franklin R. 

Kuhlman
Mr. and Mrs. Dilip V. Kulkarni
Dr. Bradley Kunz
Ms. Debbie Kusaka
Dr. Arden Kwan
Ms. Julia I. Kyle
Mr. and Mrs. Dennis R. Lacroix
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Ladam
Mr. Michael Lahood
Mr. John R. Laing and 

Ms. Kathleen B. King
Mr. Kenneth Lake
Mr. and Mrs. John D. Lamb
Dr. Matthew J. Lambert III
Mr. and Mrs. David L. Lammert
Mr. Harry Lancaster
Mrs. Eleanor A. Lane
Ms. Linda Lang
Dr. and Mrs. Roger Lang
Mr. Frank J. Langben
Mr. David E. Lange
Dr. Jane Lannak
Mr. and Mrs. Ray A. Lapanse
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A. Larson
Ms. Mary Laschober
Ms. Linda M. Lasley
Mr. Thomas A. Last
Dr. Sharon L. Laubach
Ms. Mary C. Lawlor
Mr. Robert A. Lawrence
Mr. Steve Lazzareschi
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick T. Leahy
Ms. Ann K. Leake
Mr. Douglas Leal

Jim Hodges Studio
Mr. and Mrs. Dan Hoeprich
Mr. Paul Hogben
Mr. and Mrs. Charles A. 

Holdener
Mr. John R. Holder
Holder Properties
Mr. and Mrs. Robert M. Holder 

Jr.
Dr. and Mrs. Walter D. Holder Jr.
Mr. William Hollamon
Mr. Larry N. Holland
Dr. and Mrs. William Holleman
Mr. Dennis Hollins
Dr. and Mrs. Peter Holm
Dr. Thomas R. Holmes and 

Dr. Grace Holmes
Ms. Deborah Holtz
Mr. Neal Holtzer
Dr. Paul Holzman and 

Dr. Barbara Crass
Mrs. Dana Homonek
Mr. Patrick Hook
Dr. Ann Elizabeth Hoos
Ms. Kelly Horner
Mr. Vittorio Hosle
Ms. Cindy R. Hostetler
Dr. and Mrs. Leslie S. Hough
Mr. Robert W. Howard
Mr. and Mrs. Lembhard G. 

Howell
Mr. Thomas Karpinski and 

Ms. Christine Hrib-Karpinski
Ms. Ann Hriciga and 

Mr. Michael Coughlin
Mrs. Elizabeth B. Hubbard
James Hudson and Julia R. 

Knox-Hudson
Mr. and Mrs. Dane Hudson
Mr. Richard A. Hudson
Ms. Sharon L. Hudson
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth B. Huesby
Ms. Leah Hughes
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Hugi
Mrs. Shirma Huizenga
Mr. David C. Humm
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel S. Hummel
Professor Howard O. Hunter
Mr. and Mrs. G. David Hurd
Mr. Jeff Hurlow and 

Ms. Jennifer Irish
Mr. Elvin W. Hurst
Dr. Naghma Husain
Miss Rebekah Huskamp
Mr. Robert P. Huston
Mr. and Mrs. Terry L. 

Hutchinson
Mr. and Mrs. Richard W. Hutson
Mr. and Mrs. Richard J.  

Hutto, J.D.
Mr. and Mrs. Robert D. Huxley
Ms. Jacqueline Ikeda
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Mr. Christopher J. Ludewig
Ms. Barbara A. Luke
Ms. Dianne Luketic
Ms. Kirsten Lundergan-Linker
Mr. and Mrs. Vincent Lunetta
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Luongo
Mr. and Mrs. John A. Lupo
Ms. Julie Luton
Mr. James Lutz
Mr. and Mrs. Theodore C. Lutz
Ms. Joanne Lyman
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Lyttle
Ms. Belinda Ma
Mr. and Mrs. Louis Ma
Joseph and Katherine Macari 

Foundation
Mrs. Katherine Macari
Ms. Mary Mackenzie
Mr. Christopher M. Mackey and 

Ms. Donna L. Cherniak
Mr. and Mrs. Mark MacKinney
Ms. Karen A. Macko
Mr. and Mrs. D. Gordon Macleod
Mr. Grant Macleod
Ms. Kathy MacLeod
Ms. Megan R. MacMillan
Dr. Bryan F. MacPherson and 

Ms. Pamela M. Van Hine
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Maggio
Mr. and Mrs. Charlie Magill
Mr. and Mrs. James Mahony
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Mallon
Mr. Thomas W. Malone
Mr. J. Michael Maloney
Mrs. Sam Maloof
Dr. Alex D. Malter
Mr. and Mrs. Allyn Malventano
Mr. Mark Manasse and 

Dr. Janet Mohle-Boetani

Ms. Elena S. Manitzas
Ms. Laureen Mann
Mr. Clarence B. Manning
Mrs. Hilda Mansfield
Mr. and Mrs. Peter Mansour
Mr. A. Russell Marane
Dr. David R. Mares and 

Ms. Jane Milner Mares
Mr. Rick Mariano and The 

Honorable Katherine Feinstein
Mr. and Mrs. Fred Markham
Ms. Linda Marsh
Dr. and Mrs. William E. Marsh
Ms. Cassandra L. Marshall
Mr. and Mrs. James D. Martin
Dr. Jeannette Martin
Mr. and Mrs. John P. Martin
Ms. Bonnie Mason
Ms. Suzanne E. Massey
Mr. and Mrs. Steve Mathias
Dr. and Mrs. Randall Matthews
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas G. Mattia
Mrs. Raymond Maturski
Mr. Michael A. Matuson and 

Ms. Jean M. Suplick
Ms. Katharine W. Mauer
Mr. Michael John Mauriel
Mr. Paul B. Maxwell
Ms. Tatiana L. Maxwell
Mr. Robert T. and Susan H. 

Mayne
Dr. Wallace D. Mays
Mr. Riyad Maznavi and 

Ms. Sarah Dunn
Dr. Peter J. Mazzaglia
Dr. and Mrs. William J. Mazzei
Mr. David P. McCallie
Mr. Edward A. McCallum
Mr. and Mrs. John B. 

McCammon

Deborah and Stephen McCarter
Mr. and Mrs. George R. 

McCarthy
Dr. Susan A. McCarthy
Mr. and Mrs. Stuart McCarty
Dr. and Mrs. David McClean
Mr. and Mrs. Robert K. McCleary
Ms. Marilyn McCloskey
Ms. Erin K. McConahey
Dr. Robert McCormack and 

Mr. Andy Smith
Dr. Kimberly McCrea
Mr. and Mrs. Charles N. 

McCullough
Ms. Susan McCune
Mr. and Mrs. James M. McCurry
Mrs. Carolyn B. McDonald
Mr. and Mrs. David McElroy
Ms. J. E. McElroy
Mr. and Mrs. Carl McElwee
Dr. and Mrs. James McFarland
Dr. and Mrs. Sam G. McFarland
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce L. McFarlane
Ms. Janice McGarrah
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick M. 

McGeehan
Mr. Kevin D. McGowan
Ms. Sharon McGregor
Mr. Daniel McGuire
Mr. and Mrs. James T. McIntyre 

Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Steven A. 

McKenna
Ms. Stanna S. McKitrick
Mr. and Mrs. Paul McKown
Reverend Leslie McKown and 

Reverend Martha McKown
Ms. Carol R. McLachlan
John Luther McLean and Isabelle 

Gray McLean Trust

Mr. and Mrs. Gerald W. Leavell
Mr. Joel L. Lebowitz
Mr. and Mrs. John L. Ledman
Mr. and Mrs. Rodney M. Lee
Mr. Roger Lehecka
Dr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Lehmer
Mr. Dale W. Leibach
Mr. David O. Leiwant
Dr. and Mrs. Jeffrey D. Leman
Mr. Thomas P. Lemke
Mr. and Mrs. Jack W. Lentfer
Ms. Debbie G. LePage
Mr. Stephen Leppla
Mr. and Mrs. Larry N. Lesh
Mr. and Mrs. Raymond M. 

Leuthold
Mr. and Mrs. John Levay
Mr. Joshua Levy and 

Ms. Pamela Magnuson
Ms. Robley Levy
Mr. and Mrs. W. Steven 

Lewellen
Ms. Charlyn Lewis
Mr. and Mrs. David Lewis
Ms. Fay E. Lewis
Mr. and Mrs. James M. Lewis Sr.
Ms. Mary Lindsey Lewis
Mr. Scott Libson and Ms. 

Dorothy Rhodes
Lifshutz Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Ligertwood
Dr. and Mrs. Alfred R. Light
Mr. and Mrs. Charles R. Light
Ms. Meredith Lilley
Ms. Joanne Lincoln
Mr. Peter Lindsay and 

Ms. Kate Binzen
Ms. Lise Lindstrom
Mr. William H. Linginfelter
Mr. Gordon Lingley
Mr. Eugene M. Link and 

Ms. Ann Marie Hirsch
Ms. Kathleen Linney and 

Mr. Tom Moss
Mr. John Litmer
Mr. Robert Livsey and 

Ms. Rita Liston
Mr. Edgar Lo
Ms. Sarah L. Lockard
Ms. Dorothy Lockspeiser
Mr. Joe Logan
Dr. and Mrs. David L. Lohin
Mr. and Mrs. George Lohrer
Ms. Helen S. London
Ms. Marilyn Long
Ms. Mary Kate Long
Ms. Alicia Loo
Ms. Jane Loranger
Ms. Sheryl A. Louie
Ms. Jane Lubben
Ms. Jeanette L. Lucak-Schroeder
Ms. Christine E. Lucy

Members of the Ambassadors Circle contribute unrestricted gifts of $1,000 or more to the Carter Center Annual Fund.

Two Tunisian women vote in nationwide elections, which were observed by a team from The 
Carter Center.
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Mr. Emory Morsberger
Ms. Jill L. Mortensen and 

Ms. Sharon Kay Phillips
Ms. Jenna M. Morton
The Honorable Alfred H. Moses
Moss Foundation
Ann and Jerry Moss
Ms. Christina Moulson
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth F. 

Mountcastle Jr.
Ms. Tanya Mujica and 

Mr. Jeffrey Keenan
Dr. and Mrs. Sal Mukho
Dr. Gary Mullen
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher G. 

Mumford
Dr. and Mrs. Robert S.  

Munford III
Dr. and Mrs. James Murakami
Ms. Deirdre L. Murphy
Ms. Pamela Murphy
Ms. Christi Murray
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew W. Nagle
Mr. and Mrs. Ravi K. Nandigum
Mr. Jerome Natoli
Dr. and Mrs. John J. Naveau
Mr. and Mrs. Matthew D. 

Naveau
Ms. Violetta Neal-Leonard
Mr. John Neer
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel H. Neff
Ms. Lisa A. Nelms
Mr. George Nelsen and 

Ms. Therese Simon
Mr. Douglas W. Nelson
Nelson Family Foundation
Ms. Karen M. Nelson
Mr. Richard L. Nelson
Mr. and Mrs. Jeff Nesmith
Mr. Walter E. Netherland
New Horizon Foundation
Mr. Dana Newbauer and 

Dr. Lisa Nocera
Ms. Nancy J. Newman
Ms. Edith M. Ngan
Mr. and Mrs. James O. Nickel
Ms. Barbara J. Noel
Mr. and Mrs. Donald A. Nordine
Ms. Martha J. Nordsieck
The North Ridge Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Nowak
Mr. and Mrs. James R. Nowicki
Mr. James W. Noyes
Nurse Practioner Healthcare 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Donald E. Nygaard
Mr. and Mrs. Craig Oaks
Mr. and Mrs. James Obey
Mr. David O’Brien
Ms. Ellen O’Dea
Ms. Merry T. O’Donnell
Miss Nancy Lee Oetter

Sir Emeka Offor
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas H. Ogden
Dr. and Mrs. Mark D. Okusa
Mr. Nicholas Olcott
Mr. and Mrs. Cory Olson
Mr. David Olson
Mr. Gregg Olson
Ms. Carol Olwell
Reverend Robert O’Neil
Mr. and Mrs. James M. O’Neill
Dr. and Mrs. Kent L. Oots
Mr. George W. O’Quinn
Mr. Silas E. O’Quinn
Ms. Deborah L. Ornowski
Ms. Monique Osborn
Mr. Stephen W. Osborn
Mr. and Mrs. Charles F. Osgood
Dr. and Mrs. David W. Osgood
Mr. Tom Osowski
Mr. and Mrs. Matthew Oster
Dr. Geir Ostrem
Ms. Hilvie E. Ostrow
Dr. Harold E. Ott
Mr. David K. Owen
The OZMA Fund
Rusty and Connie Pace Family 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Rusty Pace
Mrs. Nancy Packard
Mrs. Dorothy B. Padgett
Mr. Felix Pai
Mr. and Mrs. Gary E. Pakulla
Dr. and Mrs. William P. Palmore
Parachin Design Studios, Ltd
Geraldine J. Parker
Ms. Mary Y. Parr
Ms. Noreen J. Parrett

Mr. and Mrs. Mark Parrott
Mr. James Parsons
Mrs. Robert A. Pastor
Ms. Margot Patterson
Ms. Monica Patterson
Mr. and Mrs. James L. Patton Jr.
Miss C. Sprague Paynter
Mr. Charles B. Pearson
Dr. Michele L. Pearson
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory B. Pease
Mr. and Mrs. Charles F. Pelzer
Mr. and Mrs. James E. Percifield
Dr. Daniel Perlman and 

Ms. Jane Katims
Mr. Fred Perpall
Mr. and Mrs. Godfrey Perrott
Mr. Egbert L. J. Perry
Mr. Ralph T. Perry and 

Mrs. Mary Louise Seldenfleur
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas C. Perry
Dr. Marjie L. Persons
Mr. and Mrs. Joshua Peters
Ambassador Mary Ann Peters
Mr. Grant Petersen and 

Ms. Mary Anderson
Mr. and Mrs. Stephan Petersen
Mr. and Mrs. Henry Peterson
Mr. and Mrs. John M. Peterson 

Jr.
Dr. John T. Peterson and 

Dr. Mary A. Vander Maten
Mr. and Mrs. Richard A. 

Peterson
Mr. Todd L. Peterson
Mr. and Mrs. William O. 

Peterson
Mr. William Wiegard and 

Ms. Judith Petroski
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Mr. and Mrs. Daniel McMorrow
Mr. David McMullen
Ms. Yone C. McNally
Robert & Margaret McNamara 

Foundation 2
Dr. Wayne F. McNett
Ms. Virginia L. McPhearson
Ms. Alice B. McReynolds
Mr. and Mrs. Joel McWilliams
Mr. Jonathan Mead
Ms. Janice A. Mears
Ms. Beverly L. Mecklenburg
Ms. Leila Meghji
Mr. and Mrs. Chet Mehta
Mr. and Mrs. Mathias Meinzinger
Ms. Rochelle Melton
Ms. Gretchen L. Messer
Dr. Gary L. McKown and 

Ms. Jill M. Meuser
Mr. and Mrs. John C. 

Middlebrooks
Ms. Kristin Milby
Mr. and Mrs. Gary B. Miles
Mr. and Mrs. Randall Mill
Mrs. C. David Miller
Ms. Christy L. Miller
Mr. Donald L. Miller
Mrs. Virgil L. Miller
Mr. Milton Miller II
Ms. Susan E. Miller-Tully
Dr. and Mrs. Wayne Milloy
Mrs. John Mills
Ms. Margaret K. Mills
Mr. and Mrs. John M. Mirsky
Mr. and Mrs. Clifton D. Mitchell
Mr. and Mrs. James M. 

Mitchelson
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas M. Mitro
Ms. Heather Miyagi
Ms. Anne Modarressi
Mr. Richard P. Moe
Ms. Diane L. Moffett
Ms. Kerry D. Molln
Mr. David Moninger
Ms. Lou Ann Montana and 

Mr. James Pflugrath
Ms. Lynn P. Montgomery
Reverie Moon
Mr. and Mrs. Melvin R. Moore
Mr. and Mrs. Ronald W. Moore
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas J. Moore
Ms. Anne C. Moos
Mr. Abel Mora
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas F. Moran
Mr. and Mrs. Jean Mori
Mr. and Mrs. David G. Moriarty
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory Morris
Ms. Phoebe Morris
Mr. Charles P. Morrison
Mr. Gary Morrison
Mr. and Mrs. John Morrison

Nigerian Martin Sinyong suffers from lymphatic filariasis, which 
causes swelling in limbs. He joined a support group sponsored 
by The Carter Center to learn more about how to take care of 
his swollen feet and talk to others with the disease.
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Dr. and Mrs. Donald J. Raithel
Dr. and Mrs. Vadrevu K. Raju
Mr. Wade A. Rakes II
Ms. Charlotte Randolph
Mr. Connor Randolph
Mr. and Mrs. Wallace L. Rank
Ms. Jeanne Rasmussen
Mr. Richard E. Ratliff
Mrs. Sam T. Ray
Mrs. Robert E. Ray
Mr. Douglas T. Raymond
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Raynor
Ms. Martha J. Reddout
Mr. Y. R. Reddy
Ms. Florence M. Reese
Mr. Peter Reich
Mr. Al B. Reid
Mr. Richard M. Reilly
Mr. Mark Reinhardt
Mr. Donald L. Reinking
Ms. Kimberly J. Rendleman
Do Not Publish Name
Mr. and Mrs. William Revelle
Dr. Charles F. Reynolds III
Ms. Ellen M. Reynolds
Ms. Paula G. Reynolds
RFB Advertising, LLC
Mr. Skip Rhodes
Dr. Gary L. Rich and 

Dr. Deanna S. Mitchell
Dr. Steve Anthony Rich
Susan and Robert Richane
Mr. Eric D. Cox and 

Ms. Gina Richard
Ms. Pamela Richard
The Grace Jones Richardson 

Charitable Trust
Ms. Reta Peoples Richardson
Mr. and Mrs. Norman Richie and 

Family
Ms. Marilynn Richtarik and 

Mr. Matt Bolch
Mr. and Mrs. Richard K. Riess
The Honorable Richard W. Riley
Mr. Victor Rink and 

Ms. Linda Bianchi
Mrs. Charles Rinker
Ms. Jorginna Rios
Mr. Martin Rist
Mr. William A. Ritter
Mrs. Barbara Rives
Mr. and Mrs. David I. Roberts
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas Roberts
Nora Roberts Foundation
Mr. Jerry B. Roberts
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley Roberts
Dr. Teresa L. Roberts
Mr. George S. Robalik
Ms. Faith A. Robinson
Dr. Harriet L. Robinson
Nancy A. Robinson, M.D.

Mr. Larry Rockefeller
Dr. Daniel Rodeheaver and 

Dr. Denise Rodeheaver
Mr. and Mrs. Larry W. Rodgers
Mr. and Mrs. Manuel V. 

Rodriguez
Ms. Mary Gayle Rogers
Ms. Wendy B. Rohman
Mr. and Mrs. Andrew Rollins
Ms. Alice W. Ronke
Mr. Michael Y. Roos
Mr. and Mrs. Bob Rosebrough
Ms. Diane Ross
Dr. James A. Ross
Mr. and Mrs. Donald J. Roth
Mr. and Mrs. Paul L. Roth
Dr. Benoit Rousseau
Mr. James H. Rowe III
Mr. James S. Rowe
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas A. Rowe
Mrs. Luana D. Rubin
Mr. and Mrs. William Rubley
Mr. Sebastian Ruggiero
Mr. Jerry and Dr. Mary Rupley
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Russ
Ms. Roselinde H. Russell
Ms. Marion Rust
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce D. Ryan
Mr. John E. Ryan
Mr. and Mrs. Nicholas M. Ryan
Mr. and Mrs. Paul F. Ryan
The S & C Harvest Foundation
Sacajawea Charitable Foundation
Mr. Thomas Safran
Ms. Martha Saitta
Ms. Emily A. Saliers
Mr. Harold Salverda
Mr. Myron L. Sandberg and 

Dr. Marva J. Dawn-Sandberg
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Sandberg-

Larsen
Ms. Della Sanderson
Mr. Daniel J. Sandin and 

Ms. Mary L. Rasmussen
Mr. William C. Sandlin
Mr. Zachary B. Sank
Mr. Glenn Sapa
Mr. and Mrs. Jonathon D. 

Saphier
Mr. and Mrs. Russell G. Sarner
Ms. Mary L. Sasse
Mr. and Mrs. J. Neal Sasser Jr.
Mrs. Michael R. Saunders
Mr. Albert J. Saur
Mr. D. Jack Sawyer Jr. and 

Dr. Bill Torres
Ms. Deb Sawyer
Mr. and Mrs. Wilson E. Sawyer
Ms. Meena Alim Sayeed
Scenery First LLC
Mr. James V. Schaefer and 

Ms. Gabrielle Tazzia

Ms. Carol Scharfer
Dr. and Mrs. David H. Schaub
Mr. David W. Scheible
Mr. Patrick J. Scheideler
Dr. Elinor A. Scheirer
Mr. Thomas Schelling
Mr. Sanford H. Schenbart
Mr. Philip Schentrup
Mr. Walter Schier
Mrs. Marylou L. Schimel
Mr. and Mrs. Richard C. Schlake
Leonard A. Schlossberg, M.D.
Mr. and Mrs. Andy Schmitt
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Schneider
Ms. Joan M. Schoenfeld
Ms. Anne-Marie Scholer
Mr. Eric J. Scholl
Ms. Elizabeth Schopler
Mr. Craig Schopmeyer
Ms. Daphne Schreiber
Mr. Jerry Schreiber and 

Ms. Carla Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Steven Schreiber
Dr. David T. Schreiner
Mr. and Mrs. Larry Schueren
Ms. Kathryn Schultz
Mr. Phillip A. Schuman
Dr. Audrey L. Scollan and 

Dr. Neil J. Scollan
Mr. Anthony M. Sease and 

Dr. Lorraine Sease
Ms. Barbara W. Seeburger
Mr. Gemal Kassem Seede
Richard Seigler, M.D.
Dr. Mridu Sekhar
Mr. and Mrs. Dean Sellers
Dr. Sabah Servaes
Mr. Michael F. Sexton
Ms. Laura Turner Seydel
Dr. Robert E. Seymour Jr.
Mrs. James H. Shackelford
Mr. and Mrs. David Shafer
Mr. Nadir Shams
Ms. Barbara C. Shane
Dr. Susan H. Shane
Mr. Ajeet Shankar
Ms. Janet M. Shapiro
Mr. and Mrs. Jim Sharkey
Ms. Louise M. Laufersweiler and 

Mr. Warren D. Sharp
Ms. Isabel F. Shaskan
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Shavlik
Dr. and Mrs. Robert A. Shaw
Mrs. Dudley Sheffler
Ms. Lalita Shenoi
Mr. and Mrs. Howard M. Shepard
Mr. and Mrs. John Shepard
Mr. and Mrs. John Sherman
Sheth Family Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Jagdish Sheth
Mr. Francois D. P. Shih

The Honorable Donald K. 
Petterson

Mr. and Mrs. John S. Pfister
Mrs. Katherine A. Phillips
Mr. William R. Phillips
Ms. Rebecca J. Phillips-Parker 

and Mr. Ronald J. Parker
The Honorable Thomas R. 

Pickering
Mr. and Mrs. Kent E. Ping
Mr. and Mrs. Dirk Pirwitz
Ms. Nancy Pitera
Mr. J. Randall Pitman
Mr. James Pittman
Ms. Susanna Badgley Place and 

Mr. Scott Stoll
Drs. John and Marie Plakos
Mrs. Rosemary Plane
Mrs. Penny Platnick
Ms. Joan Platt
Mr. and Mrs. Nicholas Platt
Dr. Robert French and 

Dr. Pamela Pletcher
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas S. Plum
Mr. John Poertner
Ms. Maura Polansky
Mrs. Linda Pollard
Ms. Susie Q. Pomares
Mr. and Mrs. John Michael 

Pongracz
Mr. David Poole
Mr. Waitat Poon
Mrs. John M. Pope
Dr. William Wade Pope
Lester Poretsky Family 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Joe Posey
Dr. and Mrs. Robert Potrzeba
Mr. and Mrs. Chris Potter
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce M. Powell
Mr. and Mrs. David Powell
Mr. Thomas A. Power
Mr. and Mrs. Steve R. Pozzi
Mr. Vish Prashad
Mr. and Mrs. J. Stephen 

Prestwood
Mr. Chesley H. Prince and 

Ms. Cathy A. Wilkins
Mr. Stephen Protulis
Mrs. Jenny Pruitt
Dr. William C. Pugh and 

Dr. Patricia Troncoso
Mr. and Mrs. Gabriel L. Pugliese
Ms. Anne L. Putnam
Ms. Laura Qualls
Ms. Janis M. Quinn
Ms. Angela J. Rabkin
Mr. Christopher Radko
Mr. Salvatore Ragucci
Dr. Russell Rainey and 

Dr. Cheryl Rainey
Mr. William L. Raiser
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Ms. Diana D. Springer
Ms. Joanne Springer
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Spruill
Dr. Jane P. Srinivasan
Ms. Martha St. Onge
Ms. Elizabeth C. Staiger
Mr. and Mrs. Shelton g. Stanfill
Mr. Robert E. Stanley
Mr. Thomas O. Stanley
Dr. Michael D. Stargel
Dr. Courtney Starks and 

Dr. Joseph Jez
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth Starks
Mr. and Mrs. David Starkweather
Dr. Thad Starner and Ms. 

Tavenner Hall
Dr. and Mrs. Jery R. Stedinger
Mr. and Mrs. John Steele
Ms. Jackie Steg
Ms. Heidi Stensby
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Stensrud
Mr. Panos Stephens and Dr. 

Natalie Stephens
Mr. and Ms. Scott G. Stephenson
Mr. and Mrs. W. Rod Stern
Mr. John Stevens
Mr. Michael J. Stevens
Dr. and Mrs. James Stevenson
Ms. Marilyn S. Steward
Ms. Connie W. Stewart and 

Mr. Nicholas Vista
Ms. Jackie Stewart
Dr. and Mrs. Verner Stillner
Mark and Mary Ellen Stinski 

Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Stinski
Ms. Phyllis Stoecklein
Mrs. Sharon F. Stollings
Mr. and Mrs. John Stolzenberg
Mr. and Mrs. James M. Stone
Mr. Robert M. Stone and 

Ms. Diane E. Christensen
Mr. William D. Story
Mr. and Mrs. Mike Straub
Ms. Lisa Strongin
Mrs. Irene Stuart
Ms. Belinda Stubblefield
Mr. and Mrs. Talmadge Stuckey 

and Mr. Joey Stuckey
Mr. and Mrs. Don Stucky
Mr. David W. Stump
Mrs. Michael P. Sturdivant
Mr. Sidney K. Suggs
Mr. John Summerhays
Mr. James E. Summerville Jr.
Mr. Delmont R. Sunderland
Ms. Mary P. Sundheimer
Ms. Elizabeth C. Sussman
Mr. John Sutter
Dr. Constance Swank
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Swank

Dr. and Mrs. Ronald A. Swanson
Mr. Bob Swanton
Mr. and Mrs. Edward L. Sweeney
Ms. Jeanne Swen
Ms. Carla Susannah Swickerath
Mr. and Mrs. Benedict Swiderek
Mr. Robert Synk
Mr. Richard Szeliski and 

Ms. Lyn McCoy
Ms. Genevieve M. Szuba
Ms. Fay Szwast
Taipei Economic and Cultural 

Office in Atlanta
Ms. Margarete Talarico
Mr. William Steele Talley
Ms. Agnes Tam
Mr. Deane Tank and 

Ms. Jolene Gardner
Ms. Carol Tarnowski
Mr. and Mrs. James Tartaglia
Dr. Philip M. Tate
Mr. Daniel Taylor and 

Ms. Trellan Smith
Dr. Jean E. Taylor
Mr. R. Scott Taylor Jr.
Dr. Steven S. Taylor
Ms. Janice E. Tazelaar
Temcov Foundation
Mr. Michael Temcov
Mrs. Mark R. Templeton
Mr. Patrick A. Terry
Mr. and Mrs. Carl Terwilliger
Dr. Tina Tessina and 

Mr. Richard Sharrard
Mr. and Mrs. David L. Thayer
Ms. Mary C. Thayer
Ms. Melinda M. Thomas
Mr. Theodore H. Thomas and 

Ms. Colette Chabbott
Dr. Darrell J. Thompson
Ms. Jane E. Thompson
Ms. M. Melinda Thompson
Mr. Richard C. Thomson
Mr. Robert Thomson and 

Ms. Anita Sanborn
Ms. Kathi B. Thonet
Ms. Gillann Thorndill
Mr. Charles Thornton-Kolbe
Ms. Patricia Tidmarsh
Mrs. Olive Tiller
Ms. Carolyn O. Tillman
Mr. and Mrs. Henry C. Tinsley
Mr. and Mrs. Alvin Tollestrup
Ms. Mary Tooley
Ms. Theresa Z. Torian
Dr. Ronald Townsend
Miss My Luong Tran
Dr. Darlene A. Treese
Ms. Phyllis Trible
Ms. Lori Triplett
Ms. Dari Tritt

Ms. Diane Troth
Mr. Tony Truong
Tudor Family Foundation
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas G. Tudor
The Tufenkian Foundation
Mr. James Tufenkian
Mr. David W. Tuffy
Turandstrom, Inc.
Ms. Marcella Turk
Mr. and Mrs. Leslie G. Turner
Mr. and Mrs. Michael D. Tveite
Mr. James R. Uber
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick J. Uding
Dr. John R. Uglum III
Mr. Peter Ungar
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas R. 

Unnasch
Mr. Rudolf Urban
Mr. Richard H. Usher
Mr. H. Rao Vaitla
Ms. Susan M. van den Toorn
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Van Sant
The Melinda and William J. 

vanden Heuvel Foundation
Ambassador and Mrs. William J. 

vanden Heuvel
Ms. Joanne Marie Vanderbilt
Mr. Gary Vanderwerf
Mr. Roy Vanderwerf
Mr. and Mrs. J. Edward Varallo
Mr. Brian Vaughan and 

Ms. Ruth McKee
Ms. Carmen L. Velasquez-

Hernandez
Mr. Eon Verrall
Dr. Piero Verro
Vica Foundation
Mr. Robert Viducich
Ms. Kathleen Viereg
Rev. Audrey Vincent
Mr. and Mrs. John G. Viner
Mr. and Mrs. Mark Vorsatz
Mr. John Vottero
Mr. Pranav Vyas
Ms. Brenda J. Wade
Dr. Judith Elaine Wade
Ms. Santoshi Wagner-Anue
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Wales
Ms. Carolyn Walker
James and Jackie Wall
Mr. Lester D. Wallace
Reverend Martha E. Wallace
Dr. Susan Wang
Mrs. Arnold Wangerin
Ms. Marion Wanless
Ms. Ruth Warbington
Mr. Albert J. Ward
Professor and Mrs. Barclay Ward
Mr. Donald J. Ward and 

Ms. Jennifer L. Eis
Ms. Shirley E. Ward
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Mr. and Mrs. Peter Shillingsburg
Dr. Mariko Shirazi
Ms. Gail D. Shore
Ms. Suzanne Shull
Ms. Ruth Shults and 

Mr. Charles Bradley
Dr. Vivian W. Siao
Mr. Martin Sidwell and 

Mrs. Felicity Sidwell
Mr. Ben Sihota
Ms. Jeffrey P. Silverstone
Mr. David E. Simpson
Ms. Linda J. Simpson
Ms. Mary Simun
Mr. and Mrs. Charles J. Singer
Mr. Peter L. Singer
Ms. Kala Sivasubramanian
Ms. Rochelle Sjolseth
Dr. Joy Slade
Mr. William Sloan and 

Ms. Sharon Gibb
Mr. George M. Small
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel B. Smart III
Bruce R. and Jane Scharding 

Smedley
Mr. and Mrs. John Smiley
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas R. Smith
Ms. Evelyn Smith
Ms. Frances A. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Francis J. Smith
Ms. Marsha N. Smith and 

Ms. Laurel A. Bleak
Ms. Martha F. Smith
Mr. Matthew D. Smith
Neal & Bea Smith Family 

Foundation
Patricia K. Smith Charitable 

Foundation Trust
Mr. and Mrs. Richard M. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Sanford V. Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy G. Smith
Ms. Tresa V. Smith
Mr. William H. Smith
Dr. David A. Snow
Ms. Marguerite Soffa
Dr. and Mrs. Alan Solway
Ms. Dorothy G. Somers
Mr. Jordan Sorensen
Mr. and Mrs. Bernard A. Sottili
Ms. Lauren Southerland
Mr. Matthew Sowd
Ms. Annie Spade
Mr. and Mrs. James M. Spain
Mr. and Mrs. John P. Spalding
Mr. Jim Spearman
Ms. Phyllis J. Specht
Dr. Stuart Speedie and 

Dr. Marilyn Speedie
Mr. Joel Spenner
Ms. Elizabeth Morgan Spiegel
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Spiner
Mr. and Mrs. John D. Spragins
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Mr. and Mrs. Max W. Wendell
Ms. Wendy K. Werby
Ms. Helen H. West
Dr. Susan M. Wester
Dr. and Mrs. W. Daniel 

Westerkam
Mr. and Mrs. Kevin Whalen
Ms. Marilee Wheeler
Rev. Dr. and Mrs. Craig M. 

Whitcher
Dr. Jane White and 

Mr. Joe Amerling
Ms. Lynn C. White
Mr. Robert M. White
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas White
Mr. Robert Whitfield
Ms. Nancy G. Whitney
Dr. and Mrs. Per H. Wickstrom
Mr. Hank Widenmann
Dr. David A. Wiebe
Dr. and Mrs. David Wiegman
Mr. Peter D. Wildes and 

Dr. Julia W. Wildes
John and Marcia Wilkinson
Williams Family Foundation
Mr. James Williams
Mrs. Lillie B. Williams
Ms. Sandra S. Williams
Mr. Walker Williams
Dr. John S. Willis and 

Dr. Judith H. Willis
Ms. Dena G. Willmore

Mrs. Mary D. Wilsey
Ms. Aletta T. Wilson
Mr. and Mrs. David J. Wilson
Dr. Joseph N. Wilson and 

Dr. Selma P. Wilson
Ms. Gloria Wilt
Mr. Steven V. Winthrop and 

Ms. M. Jane Williamson
Miss Rainey Isabel Wise
Dr. Edward Witten and 

Dr. Chiara Nappi
Dr. Jacqueline Wittmeyer and 

Dr. Christopher Hill
Ms. Jan Wlodarkiewicz
Mr. Theodore Wold
Mr. and Mrs. Charles L. Wolf
Ms. Patricia C. Wolf
Ms. Susan Wolf
Mr. Peter M. Wolter
Ms. Kim Wong
Mr. Alexander Woo
Mr. and Mrs. Charles O. Wood
Mr. and Mrs. Hoyt H. Wood
Mr. and Mrs. Michael Wood
Ms. Marion Woodfield and 

Mr. Marc Weinberg
Mr. and Mrs. Jack Woods
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald K. Woods
Mr. and Mrs. J. Allen Woodward
Mr. Kevin R. Woolf
Mrs. Stinson E. Worley
Mr. and Mrs. Alan Wortman

Ms. Evelyn Ware and 
Mr. Darien Ware

Mr. and Mrs. Frank W. Warner 
III

Mr. and Mrs. Robert Warner
Ms. Elizabeth C. Warren
Ms. Kathryn L. Warren
Warren Family Fund of The 

Columbus Foundation
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas H. Warren
Ms. Cathryn A. Wasson
Ms. Becky S. Watson
Mr. David Watson
Ms. Alecia L. Wawrzynski
Mr. and Mrs. Sam A. Way III
Ms. Suzanne Way
Dr. J. Dix Wayman
Ms. Nancy J. Weaver
Mr. Jack Webb
Mr. Chris Wedge and 

Ms. Jeanne M. Markel
Dr. Janna P. Wehrle
Ms. Dorle E. Weil
Mr. Kenneth S. Weiner and 

Ms. Kathy Fletcher
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas L. 

Weinman
Mrs. Eric Weinmann
Mr. George Keith Weiss
Mr. Marvin F. Weissberg
Mr. Harrison Wellford
Mr. and Mrs. Robert C. Welter
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Mrs. Rebecca Adams
Mr. Ethan W. Anderson
Ms. Fielding Arnold
Ms. Less Arnold
Mr. William Arnold
Mr. Tyler Barton
Mr. Quinn Bazinet
Mr. Matthew J. Bouillon
Ms. Sarah Brady
Mr. John Buhler
Mr. Tom Buhler
Mr. Craig Camenga
Mr. Luke Benjamin Carey
Ms. Amy Carman

Ms. Tyler Carpenter
Ms. Tatiana Chin
Ms. Amber Higgins Connor
Ms. Lindsay Consdorf
La Rose Davis, Ph.D.
Mr. Peter Davis
Mr. Xavier Fernandez
Ms. Caroline Flood
Ms. Sarah Ford
Mr. Quinten Gregory
Ms. Megan Groomes
Mr. Lucas Hawley
Mr. James K. Henderson
Ms. Kimberly Z. Heyne
Mr. Carter A. Hill
Ms. Megan Hill
Mr. Ryan Hill
Mr. Tim Hommey
Mrs. Pamela J. Hooper
Ms. Lauren Jefferson
Ms. Stefanie Johnson
Mr. Annan Khan
Mr. Yovan Khan

Ms. Megan King
Mr. Kristoff Kohlhagen
Ms. Colette Le Jeune
Ms. Brittany Lichvar
Mr. Gregory A. Light
Mr. Joseph R. Light
Ms. Valentina Lopez
Mr. Michael Lowder
Mr. James Lynn
Ms. Meagan Lynn
Mr. Devon Mack
Mr. and Mrs. Paul Michael 

Majarowitz
Mr. Royce C. Mann
Mr. Tendal Mann
Mr. Matt Mason
Ms. Dawn McDaniel
Mr. and Mrs. Jason Minor
Miss Jacqueline B. Mullen
Mr. and Mrs. Matthew D. 

Naveau
Ms. Margaret Neff
Mr. Brendan A. Ott
Mr. Tyler A. Patrick

Ms. Nayana Pratt
Ms. Charlotte Randolph
Mr. Connor Randolph
Mr. James T. Raynor
Rev. Dr. Berry Porter Rice
Ms. Olivia Rohret
Ms. Kimberly Rott
Ms. Meena Alim Sayeed
Mr. Matthew Schoener
Mr. Dahnish Shams
Mr. Nadir Shams
Ms. Alicia Sherrin
Chad Smith, M.D.
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher P. 

Storey
Mr. and Mrs. Benedict Swiderek
Ms. Christy Szekely
Mr. Blake Toman
Mr. Chase Toman
Mr. Roy Vanderwerf
Mr. Elliott Watson
Lauren and David Wattenmaker
Mr. Brian W. Wehmeier

Mr. and Mrs. Dennis C. Wright
Mr. Homer E. Wright Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Kelly Wright
Mr. Rex Wright
Mr. Walter Wurfel and 

Ms. Sara Fitzgerald
Mr. William W. Wynn
Dr. Barbara Yager
Mr. Tuen Ping Yang and 

Ms. Ann Na Dong
Mrs. Madonna Yates
Ms. Mildred J. Yearby
Dr. Clarice Yentsch
Mr. and Mrs. Michael V. Yester
Mr. George B. Yntema
Mr. and Mrs. Barry York
Mr. Michael E. Young
Mr. and Mrs. Stuart Young
Mr. Max H. Yount
Ms. Marie Yovanovitch
Dr. Carol Zapalowski
Ms. Theresa L. Zapotocky
Ms. Clare P. Zens
Mr. Nathan Zerbe and 

Ms. Joan Nichols
Mr. James R. Ziegler
Ms. Bernadette Zigalo-Del 

Braccio
Dr. Phyllis Arn Zimmer
Ms. Marilyn R. Zitterkopf
Mr. and Mrs. Arthur Zrimsek
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Dr. Amy R. Boscov and 
Dr. Terence Ellen

Mrs. Patricia Bourland
Mr. and Mrs. William D. Bowers
Mrs. Laura Boyd
Mr. and Mrs. Albert Boysen
Ms. Olivia Bozik
Ms. Susan E. Brandt
Ms. Bonnie D. Briscoe
Ms. Lee Britton Henkel
Ms. Angela Brown
Ms. Ella L. Brown
Mr. and Mrs. J. Chris Brown
Ms. Kathryn Brown
Ms. Mary Lord Brown
Dr. Calvin Browne and 

Ms. Janet Hines
Dr. William T. Browne and 

Dr. Evelyn W. Browne
Ms. Millicent Bruce
Ms. Barbara A. Bruner
Ms. Mary T. Buchanan
Mr. Mike R. Budzik and 

Ms. Sarah A. Tacoma
Ms. Virginia M. Bukowski
Ms. LuVella C. Burnett
Mr. Kenneth H. Burrows
Mr. and Mrs. Henry L. Burton
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. Buttel
Mr. and Mrs. Bruce C. Byrne
Kathleen M. Byrne, Esq.
Mr. and Mrs. Michael G. Byrne
Ms. Barbara J. Cain Cook
Mr. James C. Calaway
Dr. David L. Camenga
Ms. Pauline B. Campbell
Mrs. Margaret J. Canavan
Ms. Voradel M. Carey
The Reverent Dr. F. Andrew 

Carhartt
Dr. and Mrs. Ernest Carlson
Dr. Amee F. Carmines
Mr. and Mrs. D. James Carson
Mrs. Sylvia D. Cart
Mr. Don E. Carter
Mr. Floyd William Carter
The Honorable Jimmy Carter and 

Rosalynn Carter
Mr. and Mrs. Kermon A. Carter
Dr. Ronald D. Carter and Ms. 

Judith Carter
Ms. Suzanne Carter
Mr. Ulysses A. Carter
Mr. George Carvalho
Mr. Sharron Cason
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey A. Cassens
Mr. and Mrs. Alvin Chaiken
Mrs. Donald B. Chalker
The Honorable Anne Cox 

Chambers
Ms. Estrella Chan
Dr. Jessalyne L. Charles

Mr. Robert Charm
Mrs. Leon H. Charney
Mr. and Mrs. Jeffrey Chen
Ms. Nancy J. Christen
Mr. Walter Clare
Mr. and Mrs. Edward P. Clark
Mrs. Lois Clark
Ms. Nancy D. Cleland
Dr. Gail L. Clifford
Mr. and Mrs. Douglas M. 

Cochrane
Ms. Nancy B. Cogsdale
Mr. Mark B. Cohen and 

Ms. Sheila M. Fyfe
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph A. Coleman
Robert Boston Colgin
Mrs. Isabelle R. Collins
Mr. and Mrs. David S. Conant
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas W. Conroy
The Honorable Frances D. Cook
Ms. Paula M. Cooke
Mr. Richard P. Coonan
Mr. and Mrs. Ross M. Cooper
Ms. JoAnn Corey
Rev. Michael Corrigan
Mr. and Mrs. Jesse M. Corum III
Mr. Rod Corvo
Mr. John A. Costa
Ms. Suzan L. Costantini
Mr. Paul B. Costello and 

Ms. Rita Beamish
Mr. Stuart W. Couch
Mrs. Irene M. Covey
Mrs. John A. Crampton
Mr. James D. Crawford
Mr. and Mrs. John J. Cross
Mr. and Mrs. Dwight Crowder
Dr. Thomas I. Crowell
Mrs. Betty McGarvie Crowley
Ms. Peggy Cullinane
Ms. Joan R. Cummiskey
Mr. Bradley N. Currey Jr.
Mrs. Ann Baker Currie
Ms. Alvera S. Cushion
Mr. Chris d’Eon
Mr. Eugene Dahnke
The Honorable and 

Mrs. John H. Dalton
Mr. Charles H. Dana Jr.
Mrs. George C. Dannals
Dr. Betsy Darken
Mr. and Mrs. Victor Daub Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Gastón O. Daumy
Brigadier General James J. David
Mr. James Davies
Ms. Adalyn Davis
Ms. Anne A. Davis
Mr. Christopher L. Davis
Rev. and Mrs. David M. Davis
Dr. Margaret D. Davis
Dr. Betty Dawson

Mr. and Mrs. Deane K. Dayton
Dr. Michiel E. Ultee and 

Dr. Patricia L. Dedert
Mrs. Rita Demsey
Mr. Daniel W. Dennison
Mrs. Carolyn Derr
Mr. and Mrs. Ben Di Salvo
Dr. Claudia Dickerson
Mr. and Mrs. Raymond Dickson
Mr. Gurdev S. Dindral
Mr. Mark Dixon and 

Mrs. Sheryl Heitker Dixon
Mr. and Mrs. William H. Dodge
Mr. Gerard P. Donahoe Jr.
Dr. Robert L. Doty
Dr. Robert Numan and 

Dr. Diane Dreher
Mr. and Mrs. Stanley F. 

Drezek Jr.
Ms. Sue DuChanois
Ms. Nancy P. Dudley
Dr. Kathleen Duerksen and 

Mr. Kevin Finnegan
Dr. Bruce E. Duke and 

Dr. Janice Duke
Mr. Kenneth P. Dutter
Mr. and Mrs. Donald C. Dybeck
Dr. Brad Dyke
Mr. Gabriel H. Ebersole
Ms. Jane Moretz Edmisten
Dr. K. David G. Edwards
Mr. and Mrs. William T. Edwards
Mrs. Jawaid Elahi
Mrs. Jarl R. Engberg
Mr. and Mrs. Lowell H. Ericsson
Ms. Gail M. Ervin
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas N. Evans
Mr. Robert V. Evers
Marjorie A. Farley
Mr. and Mrs. George Fee
Dr. and Mrs. Ricardo A. 

Fernandez
Dr. and Mrs. Robert E. Finnigan
Mr. and Mrs. James R. Fitzhugh
Ms. Elsebeth Flarup
Ms. Nayan A. Fleenor
Ms. Yvette I. Fleming
Mrs. Eli M. Fletcher
Mr. and Mrs. John M. Folsom
Mr. Guy Formichella
David A. Fox
Marcia A. Fox
Ms. Margaret J. Francka
The Honorable Arvonne S. 

Fraser
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Free
Mr. Peter Ralph Fremgen
Ms. Jacqueline French
Dr. Nancy M. Frick
Ms. Mary E. Frieberg
Mr. Roy Frysinger
Ms. Nell Funk

Mr. and Mrs. W. Randall Abney
Ms. Caroline Adams
Ms. Edith E. Holiday and 

Mr. Terrence B. Adamson
Mr. and Mrs. Shawn M. Aebi
Dr. John F. Ahearne
Ms. Sandra J. Ahn
Ms. Portia Comenetia Allen
Ms. Carrie Amestoy
Ms. Deborah J. Anderson and 

Ms. Lori B. Lundell
Mr. and Mrs. D. C. Anderson
Ms. Marion Anderson-Peat
Ms. Esther Ando
Mr. Brian Anthony and 

Mr. Joseph Fitzpatrick
Mr. and Mrs. Colin S. Archibald
Ms. Jane Ariail
Mr. Carroll Arnold
Mr. Charles R. Arterburn
Dr. Kazuko K. Artus
Mr. and Mrs. Stephen Auerbach
Ms. Jacqui Avila-Bell
Ms. Kathleen M. Bader
Ms. Anne Baglini
Mr. Norman S. Baier
Mr. and Mrs. Marvin L. Bailey
Mrs. Mary Balfour
Dr. John R. Ball
Mr. Joe T. Bamberg
Mrs. Cecilia T. Banulski
Mr. Howard Barfels
Mr. Carl Bargmann
Mr. James F. Barksdale
Ms. Nancy E. Barnwell
Ms. Garnet Bass
Mr. and Mrs. Larry W. Beans
Dr. Christa-Maria Beardsley
Mr. Jay Beck
Mr. Lon A. Beck
Ms. Anne Behler
Ms. Dolores E. Bell
Mrs. Mae Woods Bell
Mr. Robert N. Bell and 

Ms. Celia R. Denov
Ms. Michelle Benash and 

Mr. Kris Krohn
Ms. Cindy Benson
Ms. Diane Bergen
Ms. Mary Ellen Bernhardt
Ms. Sylvia Bernstein
Mr. and Mrs. William Bickley
Mr. and Mrs. James Biggs
Mrs. Margaret W. Bigham
Mrs. Jane Bishop
Ms. Stephanie Biziewski
Mr. and Mrs. William G. G. 

Blakney
Mr. and Mrs. Lee N. Blatt
Mrs. Loretta Bober
Ms. Esther Borg
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Ms. Janet Harold
Mr. William T. Harper and 

Ms. Brida M. Smith
Reverend Shaun Harrigan
Ms. Patricia G. Harrington
Mr. and Mrs. Hubert L. Harris Jr.
Mr. Laird Harris
Mrs. David H. Harris
Mr. Robert W. Harris
Ms. Jeanne Harroo
Ms. Ann-Marie Hartline
Mr. C. LaVern Hartvigson
Ms. Carol Hartz
Mrs. Joseph R. Haun
Mr. and Mrs. Steven F. Hauser
Mr. Jonathan Hawes
Mr. Rick Meeker Hayman
Heartspring Foundation
Ms. Linda Helms
Ms. Carol A. Henning
Mr. and Mrs. William S. Hewett
Ms. Dana Hice
Mr. and Mrs. La Vern D. Hiebert
Mrs. Maria C. Higgins and 

Mr. Chester A. Higgins Sr.
Ms. Mary Ellen Hill
Mr. and Mrs. Bob Hochman
Mr. Kenneth Hochstedler
Mr. and Mrs. Wayne E. 

Hochstetler
Ms. Joanne Hoemberg
Ms. Carla E. Holder
Ms. R. Diane Holliday
Mr. Steven Hollingsworth and 

Ms. Daidee Springer
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald C. Houts
Ms. Rita Hovakimian
Dr. Sue Howe
Ms. Charlotte A. Hubley

Ms. Margaret Hughes
Mr. Robert R. Humphrey
Ms. Betsy M. Hutcheson
Mr. Richard G. Hutcheson III 

and Mr. C. Robert Kincaid
Mr. Robert A. Ipock Jr. and 

Dr. Kim Ipock
Mr. and Mrs. B. William Irlbeck
Dr. Marianne Jackson
Ms. Karen J. Jacobs
Ms. M. Christine Jacobs
Ms. Diane S. Jacqmin
Loree Ann and David Janusz
Mrs. J. Michelle Jenn
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Jennaro
Mr. Jason Jensen
Mr. Marvin D. Jensen
Dr. Robert C. Jespersen
Mr. Matthew Jewett
Ms. Barbara Ann Jezl
Dr. and Mrs. J. Timothy Johnson
Mr. James S. Johnson
Ms. Linda O. Johnson
Ms. Marilyn Johnson
Ms. Susan F. Johnson
Barb Jones and Chris Jones
Mr. and Mrs. Warren R. Jones
Mr. and Mrs. John Jopling
Mr. and Mrs. Robert H. 

Jorgensen
Mr. and Mrs. Suryaram R. Joshi
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas Juntune
Mr. Steven Kale and 

Ms. Leah Hemelstrand
Ms. Lynne A. Kalustian
Ms. Marie J. Kane
Mrs. Lee Kapelovitz
Mr. George Karnoutsos
Ms. Barbara A. Karwhite

Mr. Edward Keiderling
Ms. Judy Kieffer
Dr. Judith Kierstead
Mr. Damon Kimber
Mrs. Charlotte Kimelman
Mr. C. Robert Kincaid
Dr. David Kirk
Ms. Beth P. Kissling
Mr. Edward Klunk
Ms. Ursula Knaeusel
Mr. Paul F. Knauth
Ms. Esther P. Knierim
Dr. Linda V. Knight
Mr. Bill L. Knowles
Mr. and Mrs. Francis J. 

Koppeis Jr.
Ms. Susan L. Kotar
Mr. and Mrs. Myron E. Kownacki
Mrs. Georgia E. Koyl
Ms. Melissa Krause
Mrs. Emma Jayne Kretlow
Mr. and Mrs. Gregory G. Krisilas
Mr. and Mrs. Franklin R. 

Kuhlman
Mrs. Bidy Kulkarni
Mr. Greg Lafortune
Mr. and Mrs. Robert G. Lamb
Ms. Susan Landon
Ms. Ann Lansing
Mr. Greg J. Laughlin
Ms. Elaine Lazzeroni
Mr. and Mrs. Patrick T. Leahy
Ms. Marie J. Leblanc
Mr. and Mrs. Bill Ledbetter
Ms. Tammye M. Lee
Mr. Rolf Leininger
Mr. and Mrs. Harold E. Leonard
Mr. and Mrs. Paul R. Leonard Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Larry N. Lesh

Mr. Ladell J. Futch
Mr. Farley M. Galbraith
Mrs. Hugh A. Garnett
Ms. Rachael M. Garrity
Mr. W. F. Gasner and 

Ms. Lurlene Kyles
Mrs. Olga B. Gechas
Mrs. Kathryn A. George
Ms. Margaret H. George
Mr. Gregory J. Gerhard
Mrs. E. Alvin Gerhardt
Ms. Jane Gering
Dr. Paul Gerke
Mr. and Mrs. Darwin Gervais
Mr. and Mrs. James L. Gillen
Mr. Donald S. Gingrich
Ms. Susan Gale Gleghorn
Dr. and Mrs. Peter Gloor
Pastor and Mrs. Duane E. 

Goetsch
Mr. Alejandro R. Gonzales-

Garcia
Dr. Pat Gordin and 

Mr. Larry Gordin
Mrs. Ruth Lea Gordy
Mr. and Mrs. Cliff B. Gosney Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Ken K. Gouw
Ms. Beverly J. Grant
Linda H. Grant
Ms. Lynda Graves
Ms. Margo Grbinich Hunt
Ms. Catherine Green
Dr. and Mrs. J. Ronald Green
Ms. Tilly M. Grey
Dr. E. Rawson Griffin III and 

Ms. D. Clark Griffin-Eddings
Mr. Charles Grimes
Mrs. Leslie Grimes and 

Mr. Daniel C. Grimes
Mr. Fred Grob and 

Ms. Dorothy Kinney
Mr. and Mrs. Walter E. Grubbs
Mr. and Mrs. Donald L. Habig
Ms. Rosemary Hagen
Mr. and Mrs. Floyd C. Hale
Mr. and Mrs. Clifford J. Hall
Mr. and Mrs. Donald R. Hall
Mrs. John Wayne Hall
Ms. Florence B. Hamlin
Ms. Kay Hamner
Ms. Mary K. Hampton
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy J. 

Hampton
Reverend and Mrs. Earl K. 

Hanna
Ms. Ermaline Hannum
Mr. Richard C. Hardes
Rev. and Mrs. William K. 

Harman
Mr. and Mrs. William R. Harmon
Mr. Dennis Harms and 

Ms. Susan Bergman

Members of the Legacy Circle provide support through their estate and financial planning.

Two Liberian women head to market. Several Carter Center programs are working in the 
country, including one initiative to help Liberians understand their rights under the law.
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Dr. Gary L. McKown and 
Ms. Jill M. Meuser

Mr. and Mrs. Peter Michelozzi
Dr. Charles L. Miller
Mr. and Mrs. James H. Miller
Ms. Janice Miller
Ms. Lisa H. Miller and 

Mr. John T. Raible
Ms. Paulina Miller
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas B. Miller
Dr. G. Irene Minor
Dr. Mary Miyagi and 

Dr. Masakazu Miyagi
Mr. and Mrs. T. R. Mock
Dr. and Mrs. Harvey 

Mohrenweiser
Mr. and Mrs. Richard L. Moody
Mr. Donald Moore
The Reverend L. Katherine 

Moore
Ms. Tertia Moore
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas J. Moore
Ms. Ruth Justice Moorer and 

Mr. Charles A. Moorer
Mr. John J. Moores Sr.
Ms. Sheila R. Morris and 

Ms. Teresa L. Williams
Mr. and Mrs. Clayton R. Moss
Mrs. Emily J. Mumma and 

Mr. Luke R. Mumma
Mrs. Barbara Brown Munford
Mrs. Nordan C. Murphy
Mr. Dan Lee Nardi
Mr. Lee A. Nascimento
Mrs. Linda R. Nascimento
Mr. Anthony Nash
Mr. Phil Nash
Dr. and Mrs. Will L. Nash
Mrs. Daniel E. Nathan
Mr. and Mrs. Samuel H. Neff
Dr. Diana F. Nelson
Dr. Joyce Neu
Mrs. Bruce L. Newman
Mr. Barry Nickelsberg
Mrs. Lillian B. Nicolson
Mr. and Mrs. Ralph H. Nicolson
Ms. Barbara R. Nielsen
Mr. and Mrs. Bob Norman
Mr. Samuel L. Norris
Mr. and Mrs. Gary Norton
Ms. Katherine H. Nunez
Ms. Barbara Nurse
Ms. Jeanene O’Brien
Mr. George W. O’Quinn
Dr. and Mrs. Thomas G. 

O’Riordan
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph O’Sullivan
Ms. Peggy M. Ochwat
Ms. Carol Ogline
Ms. Ann M. Ohme
Ms. Janet Oliver
Dr. and Mrs. Kent L. Oots

Mr. and Mrs. James Oppel Jr.
Mr. Henry G. Osborne
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel L. Ostrander
Dr. Harold E. Ott
Ms. Dena Page
Ms. Jill S. Pagels
Mrs. Coletta M. Pagenkopf
Mr. Richard Palmer
Ms. F. Taylor Pape and 

Mr. Haddon Hufford
Ms. Carmen B. Pappas
Ms. Mary Kay Parham
Ms. Carole M. Park
Ms. Anna Maria Parker
Mr. and Mrs. S. Thomas Parks
Dr. Jann C. Pasler
 Mrs. Katherine W. Paterson and 

Mr. John B. Paterson
Mr. and Mrs. Randy G. Paul
Dr. Corey and Mrs. Ellen Pavitt
Mr. and Mrs. Harold J. Peters
Mr. Kenneth J. Peters
Mr. and Mrs. Dave Peterson
Dr. Susan Petro
Ms. Joyce Philen
Ms. Clara J. Picarella
Ms. Una Marie Pierce
Ms. Nancy Pitera
Drs. John and Marie Plakos
Mr. Anders Platou
Mr. and Mrs. Richard Pollack
Ms. Cheryl Pond
Mr. and Mrs. Jack R. Poteet
Mrs. Nan Powell
Mr. Chesley H. Prince and 

Ms. Cathy A. Wilkins
Ms. Rose Prisko
Mrs. Rita Coveney Pudenz
The Reverend James H. Purks III
Ms. Barbara R. Cole and 

Mr. John L. Quigley Jr.
Mr. William L. Raiser and 

Madame Francoise Lamailloux
Dr. and Mrs. Vadrevu K. Raju
Ms. Claudia Ramisch
Mr. John A. Ramos and 

Ms. Mary Ann Cinowalt
Mr. and Mrs. Bertram Raphael
Mr. Azim S. Rawji and 

Ms. Robin Van Liew
Mr. and Mrs. Donald W. Rea
Ms. Martha J. Reddout
Ms. Magdalen M. Redman
Mr. and Mrs. Curtis Rehfuss
Mr. Kurt A. Reichle
Ms. Jane P. Rein’l
Mr. Donald L. Reinking
Mr. Richard H. Reuper
Mr. James Rhinesmith
Mr. David M. Rhodes
Ms. Laura M. Rice

Mr. Fred A. Richards
Dr. and Mrs. William L. Richter
Ms. Kendra M. Riden & 

Mr. Jim Hardy
Mr. Lloyd W. Ridenour
Dr. and Mrs. Edward H. Riedesel
Mrs. Carl Rigney
Ms. Michelle Riley
Ms. Joan M. Ritchie
Mrs. Susan Roach
Dr. and Mrs. Edward H. 

Robinson
Ms. Vivien A. Rock
Dr. and Mrs. Gaylan Rockswold
Mr. and Mrs. Larry W. Rodgers
Mr. Lawrence D. Roesler
Mr. and Mrs. Gerald A. 

Rosenthal
Mr. Ernest W. Rothfelder
Mr. and Mrs. William Rubley
Ms. Anna Lee Rucker
Dr. and Mrs. Ronald R. Rudolph
Mr. and Mrs. Conway 

Rulon-Miller
Ms. Mary Eleanor Russell
Mr. Robert K. Russell Jr.
Ms. Loretta Russo
Ms. Cynthia K. Sabin
Mr. Donald Sackett
Mr. Peter F. Said
Ms. Ruth A. Salinger
Mr. and Mrs. James G. Sallen
Mr. and Mrs. Michael L. Sanders
Mr. and Mrs. Russell G. Sarner
Ms. Barbara J. Schaefer
Ms. Bernice L. Schaefer
Mr. and Mrs. Paul David 

Schaeffer
Dr. John Schatmeyer
Mr. Alan M. Scheider
Ms. Vikki A. Schick and 

Mr. Elmer C. Kreisel Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Matt Schmidt
Dr. Frances Schoonmaker
Mr. Robert R. Schoos
Ms. Edna I. Schram
Mr. and Mrs. Dan Schrock
Ms. Elsa N. Schultz
Mrs. William B. Schwartz
Mrs. Lloyd Scott
Mr. and Mrs. LaRoy E. Seaver
Ms. Doris J. Seely
Mr. Niles Seldon
Mrs. James H. Shackelford
Mr. Christopher R. Shantz
Dr. Bertram H. Shapiro
Dr. Jason W. Sheedy
Mr. and Mrs. Robert 

Shellenbarger
Ambassador Sally A. Shelton-

Colby
Ms. Marjorie F. Shipe

Mr. and Mrs. Glenn N. Lesniak
Mr. Jerry Lester
Mr. Justin C. Lewis
Ms. Mary Lindsey Lewis
Mr. Albert L. Leyva
Mr. Loyd Lindly
Mr. and Mrs. McAdory Lipscomb 

Jr.
Mr. and Mrs. Lawrence R. 

Lockhart
Ms. June F. Loewy
Ms. Beth Logan and 

Mr. Michael J. Koziel
Mr. Richard B. Logan III
Ms. Mona Logsdon
Dr. and Mrs. William B. Long
Ms. Diane M. Loucks
Dr. Willa Dean Lowery
Ms. Barbara A. Luke
Ms. Jane W. Lusk
Mr. and Mrs. Louis Ma
Dr. and Mrs. Robert L. Maddox
Mr. Lou Magnani
Mrs. Janice Major
Ms. Ruby Mantooth
Mr. A. Russell Marane
Ms. Barbara Maros
Mr. Neilson Marshall
Mr. and Mrs. Thomas F. Marshall
Dr. Jeannette Martin
Ms. Marilyn Martin
Ms. Molly Martin
Mr. and Mrs. Jose L. Martinez
Dr. Barbara C. Matthews
Ms. Tatiana L. Maxwell
Mr. and Mrs. W. Steve Maxwell
Ms. Marty McCall
Mr. and Mrs. Alex F. McCalla
Ms. Pamela McClune
Mr. and Mrs. Ben G. McDow
Ms. Laura A. McIlhennon
Mr. Gregg L. McKee Jr.
Professor Emeritus A. Dean 

McKenzie
Mr. Wade F. McKenzie
Dr. Margaret McLean
Mr. and Mrs. Hugh J. McLellan
Mr. William W. McMillan
Mr. Chris McMullan
Ms. Mary M. McPherson
Ms. Peggy J. Meade-Cohen
Mr. Charles A. Mecum
Mr. John V. Meeks
Ms. MaryAnn E. Merendino
Mr. Robert G. Merkle
Mr. Robert Messersmith
Mr. and Mrs. Christopher 

Messina
Col. Virginia A. Metcalf
Ms. Ethel P. Metcalfe
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Dr. Constance Swank
Mrs. M. Thomas Swantner
The Reverend Grace Swensen 

and Dr. Richard D. Swensen
Mr. Anthony Swinton
Mr. Mamadou Tall
Mr. Edward Tarte
Dr. and Mrs. Alva W. Taylor
Ms. Nancy J. Taylor
Mrs. Elyseo Taylor
Ms. Suzanne K. Taylor
Ms. Jo Ellen Teasdale
Ms. Anne G. B. Thomas
Dr. Gail E. Thomas
Ms. Ellen M. Thompson
Mrs. Irene E. Thompson
Ms. Gillann Thorndill
Mr. and Mrs. James F. Thorpe
Mr. and Mrs. Jon Tobiessen
Mr. Charles W. Tomlinson
Ms. Barbara Torode
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Tortorich
Mr. and Mrs. Paul J. Tracy
Miss Louise Tucker
Mr. and Mrs. Michael D. Tveite
Ms. Charlene E. Twente
Mr. Carter B. Tyler
Mr. Lee Tyson
Dr. David U’Prichard
Mrs. Lisa U’Prichard
Mr. Arthur E. Ullrich
Mr. Jeffrey M. Ulmer
Ms. Maria C. Vasquez

Ms. Connie Venturini
Mr. Roman J. Verostko
Mr. Ernest C. Vickroy
Mr. Pong Vilaysane
Mrs. A. Henry von Mechow
Ms. Andrea S. Waas
Ms. Barbara Wadkins
Mrs. Margaret M. Wagner
Mr. Rick Wagner
Mr. and Mrs. Clifford K. Wallace
Mr. and Mrs. James A. Walter
Mr. and Mrs. Denton Ward
Mr. and Mrs. Robert Warner
Ms. Elizabeth C. Warren
Mr. William R. Warwick
Mrs. Joan Warzeka
Mr. Arthur G. Wasserman
Ms. Nancy S. Watkins
Ms. Anne L. Watson
Mr. and Mrs. Sam A. Way III
Dr. J. Dix Wayman
Mrs. Kennith Webb
Ms. Karen Weddle
Barbara J. Weedon Foundation
Mr. Brian J. Wegner
Mr. Stanley C. Weinberg
Mr. and Mrs. Knight Wells
Mr. W. Hall Wendel Jr.
Ms. Tammy Wert
Ms. Helen H. West
Dr. Stephen Wheeler and 

Dr. Patricia Wheeler
Dr. Betty Jo White

Mrs. Wilfred H. Wickersham
Ms. Cheryl Wilfong
Mrs. Coralie C. Williams
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Williams
Dr. Marilyn Williams
Dr. John S. Willis and 

Dr. Judith H. Willis
Ms. Bickley C. Wilson
Mr. and Mrs. Charles E. Wilson
Mr. Edward B. Wilson
Mr. John C. Wilson
Ms. Patricia Wirth
Colonel and Mrs. Nat R. Wisser
Ms. Gabriele E. Wohlauer
Mr. and Mrs. Jack Wolff
Ms. Mary E. Wolter
Mr. Rick Wood
Ms. Doris G. Woods
Ms. Norris Wootton and 

Mr. David Shivers
Mr. Walter Wurfel and 

Ms. Sara Fitzgerald
Mr. and Mrs. Daniel J. Yates
Mrs. Madonna Yates
Col. Mary H. Yeakel
Mr. Aaron Yeargan
Ms. Kathleen M. Yori
Mr. Hai Tee Young
Mrs. Steven E. Yuhas
Mr. and Mrs. Timothy D. Zeak
Mr. Nick Zeller
Mr. James R. Ziegler
Ms. Nancy Zinner

Ms. Ruth Shults and 
Mr. Charles Bradley

Mr. Martin H. Silton
Ms. Fawn Simensen
Mrs. William H. Simpson
Mr. and Mrs. Robert W. 

Singleton
Mr. and Mrs. Brent L. Slay
Ms. Elizabeth W. Slifer
Mr. William Sloan and 

Ms. Sharon Gibb
Ms. Dorcas Smith
Mr. and Mrs. Glenn Smouse
Ms. Cheryl Snyder
Mr. Carroll South
Ms. Susan Spadinger
Mr. and Mrs. John S. Spinelli
Mr. and Mrs. Joseph Spiner
Mr. and Mrs. John R. Spruill
Mr. and Mrs. James N. Stanard
Mr. and Mrs. Kenneth P. Stapp
Ms. Wilhelmina M. Stemmer
Mrs. Baird Stephens
Mr. Duke S. Stewart
Mrs. Milton D. Stewart
Ms. Peggy H. Stilwell
Ms. Erika Stone
Ms. Misty M. Stone
Mr. Robert C. Storlie
Ms. Beverly M. Stoy
Ms. Mary B. Strauss
Mrs. Irene Stuart
Mrs. Maynard F. Stukey
Mr. and Mrs. James C. Swaner

Agha Hasan Abedi
Senator Hajime Akiyama
Ivan Allen III
Dwayne O. Andreas
Arthur and Diana Blank
Richard C. Blum
W. Michael Blumenthal
Edgar M. Bronfman Sr.
James C. and Connie Calaway
Mr. and Mrs. Michael C. Carlos
Anne Cox Chambers
Warren Christopher
Dominique de Menil
Charles W. Duncan Jr.
His Majesty King Fahd of 

Saudi Arabia
J. B. Fuqua
Roberto C. Goizueta
Walter and Elise Haas

Armand Hammer
Sidney Harman and Jane Frank 

Harman, Esq.
Governor and Mrs. W. Averell 

Harriman
Jess Hay
Christopher B. and Patricia K. 

Hemmeter
Philip M. and Ethel Klutznick
Mathilde and Arthur Krim
George P. Livanos
Fraydun Manocherian
G. William Miller
Guy W. Millner
George P. and Cynthia Mitchell
Set Charles Momjian
David Packard
George and Thelma 

Paraskevaides

Allen E. Paulson
Lamar and Frances Plunkett
John and Betty Pope
James D. Robinson III
Hasib J. Sabbagh
Deen Day Sanders
Ryoichi Sasakawa
Walter H. and Phyllis J. 

Shorenstein
Richard R. Swann
R. E. “Ted” Turner
Robert and Ann Utley
Edie and Lew Wasserman
Thomas J. Watson Jr.
Milton A. Wolf
Robert W. Woodruff
Tadao Yoshida
Erwin E. Zaban

Founders
The Carter Center and the 

Jimmy Carter Library and 

Museum were built in large 

measure thanks to the early 

leadership and financial sup-

port of the Carter Center 

founders.

Members of the Legacy Circle provide support through their estate and financial planning.
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In the southeastern region of the 
Democratic Republic of the Congo, 
Jacob Banza Mpiana sits outside his 
house in Lubumbashi, capital of the 
mining province Katanga.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Trustees 
The Carter Center, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Carter 
Center, Inc. and its subsidiary, which comprise the consolidated statements of financial 
position as of August 31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of activ-
ities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended and the related notes to 
the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; 
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements 
based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated 
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts 
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s prepa-
ration and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, 
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated 
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all 
material respects, the financial position of The Carter Center, Inc. and its subsidiary as of 
August 31, 2016 and 2015, and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the 
years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

February 20, 2017

Consolidated Financial 
Statements

68



Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

August 31, 2016 and 2015

		  2016	 2015

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents		  $48,673,553	 45,022,022

Accounts receivable:

	 Due from federal government		  4,512,313	 3,586,976

	 Other		  432,733	 424,853

		  Total accounts receivable		  4,945,046	 4,011,829

Contributions receivable, net (note 3)		  33,243,270	 27,927,526

Inventory (notes 4, 9 and 14)		  3,722,630	 33,193,597

Investments (notes 5 and 7)		  639,246,581	 620,244,211

Property, plant, and equipment, net (note 6)		  5,091,731	 5,568,629

Artwork		  2,312,165	 2,303,965

Other assets		  142,409	 313,437

		  Total assets		  $737,377,385	 738,585,216

Liabilities and Net Assets

Liabilities:

	 Accounts payable and accrued expenses		  $7,917,004	 5,535,005

	 Deferred revenue		  8,000,880	 2,259,163

	 Annuity obligations (note 7)		  5,962,437	 5,914,681

		  Total liabilities		  21,880,321	 13,708,849

Net assets (note 11):

	 Unrestricted		  253,747,507	 249,989,646

	 Temporarily restricted		  303,231,872	 330,836,085

	 Permanently restricted		  158,517,685	 144,050,636

		  Total net assets		  715,497,064	 724,876,367

Commitments and contingencies (notes 7, 8, and 15)

		  Total liabilities and net assets		  $737,377,385	 738,585,216

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year ended August 31, 2016 (with comparative totals for 2015)

			   Temporarily	 Permanently	 Totals
		  Unrestricted	 restricted	 restricted	 2016	 2015

Revenue and support

Contributions and grants:	

	Operating		  $  28,618,705	 —	 —	 28,618,705	 27,648,303

	Programs:	

		  Health		  14,156,648	 31,154,418	 —	 45,311,066	 74,253,725

		  Peace		  8,957,596	 2,164,471	 —	 11,122,067	 13,748,868

		  Cross-program		  —	 309,323	 —	 309,323	 166,854

		  Time-restricted		 —	 2,918,655	 —	 2,918,655	 —

	 In-kind gifts (note 9):	

		  Health		  —	 202,777,551	 —	 202,777,551	 255,987,704

		  Peace		  199,414	 707,155	 —	 906,569	 707,155

		  Operating		  125,000	 —	 —	 125,000	 262,720

Endowment		  —	 —	 14,467,049	 14,467,049	 12,329,763

				   Total contributions and grants	 52,057,363	 240,031,573	 14,467,049	 306,555,985	 385,105,092

Endowment fund earnings	 10,162,336	 16,666,422	 —	 26,828,758	 24,100,743

Depreciation of endowment investments, net	 (5,516,275)	 (9,481,302)  	 —	 (14,997,577)  	(31,001,438)  

Facilities use income	 439,128	 —	 —	 439,128	 364,448

Interest and investment income	 49,317	 12,101	 —	 61,418	 38,823

Net assets released from restrictions:	

		  Health		  270,576,982	 (270,576,982)  	 —	 —	 —

		  Peace		  3,807,402	 (3,807,402)  	 —	 —	 —

		  Cross-program		  448,623	 (448,623)  	 —	 —	 —

				   Total revenue and support	 332,024,876	 (27,604,213)  	 14,467,049	 318,887,712	 378,607,668

Expenses

Program:	

		  Health		  290,372,147	 —	 —	 290,372,147	 295,006,191

		  Peace		  18,658,137	 —	 —	 18,658,137	 19,073,833

		  Cross-program		  746,220	 —	 —	 746,220	 582,348

Fundraising		  10,007,910	 —	 —	 10,007,910	 9,793,486

General and administrative	 8,482,601	 —	 —	 8,482,601	 7,362,536

				   Total expenses	 328,267,015	 —	 —	 328,267,015	 331,818,394

				   Change in net assets	 3,757,861	 (27,604,213)  	 14,467,049	 (9,379,303)  	 46,789,274

Net assets at beginning of year	 249,989,646	 330,836,085	 144,050,636	 724,876,367	 678,087,093

Net assets at end of year	 $253,747,507	 303,231,872	 158,517,685	 715,497,064	 724,876,367

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.	
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Consolidated Statement of Activities

Year ended August 31, 2015	

						      Temporarily	 Permanently
					     Unrestricted	 restricted	 restricted	 Total

Revenue and support

Contributions and grants:	

	Operating			   $27,648,303	 —	 —	 27,648,303

	Programs:	

		  Health			   18,812,542	 55,441,183	 —	 74,253,725

		  Peace			   8,760,577	 4,988,291	 —	 13,748,868

		  Cross-program			   —	 166,854	 —	 166,854

	 In-kind gifts (note 9):	

		  Health			   —	 255,987,704	 —	 255,987,704

		  Peace			   —	 707,155	 —	 707,155

		  Operating			   262,720	 —	 —	 262,720

	Endowment			   —	 —	 12,329,763	 12,329,763

				   Total contributions and grants		  55,484,142	 317,291,187	 12,329,763	 385,105,092

Endowment fund earnings		  9,275,829	 14,824,914	 —	 24,100,743

Depreciation of endowment investments, net		  (12,142,302)  	(18,859,136)  	 —	 (31,001,438)  

Facilities use income		  364,448	 —	 —	 364,448

Interest and investment income		  38,799	 24	 —	 38,823

Net assets released from restrictions:	

		  Health			   284,128,390	 (284,128,390)  	 —	 —

		  Peace			   5,806,296	 (5,806,296)  	 —	 —

		  Cross-program			   515,743	 (515,743)  	 —	 —

		  Operating			   13,632	 (13,632)  	 —	 —

				   Total revenue and support		  343,484,977	 22,792,928	 12,329,763	 378,607,668

Expenses

Program:	

		  Health			   295,006,191	 —	 —	 295,006,191

		  Peace			   19,073,833	 —	 —	 19,073,833

		  Cross-program			   582,348	 —	 —	 582,348

Fundraising			   9,793,486	 —	 —	 9,793,486

General and administrative		  7,362,536	 —	 —	 7,362,536

				   Total expenses		  331,818,394	 —	 —	 331,818,394

				   Change in net assets		  11,666,583	 22,792,928	 12,329,763	 46,789,274

Net assets at beginning of year		  238,323,063	 308,043,157	 131,720,873	 678,087,093

Net assets at end of year		  $249,989,646	 330,836,085	 144,050,636	 724,876,367

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.	
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Year ended August 31, 2015	

		  Program expenses	 Supporting expenses
				    Cross-		  General and
		  Health	 Peace	 program	 Fundraising	 administrative	 2015

Salaries and benefits	 $  12,211,018	 6,833,228	 220,837	 3,659,546	 4,093,828	 27,018,457

Consulting	 5,139,529	 2,874,020	 72,334	 343,273	 554,553	 8,983,709

Communications	 1,473,783	 484,987	 5,685	 1,981,688	 202,883	 4,149,026

Services		 550,276	 1,081,064	 22,342	 1,316,125	 273,459	 3,243,266

Office and equipment	 1,429,179	 819,448	 2,130	 165,104	 184,111	 2,599,972

Vehicles	 4,939,676	 440,522	 30	 611	 993	 5,381,832

Travel/meetings	 12,440,886	 5,110,231	 78,257	 1,373,723	 60,910	 19,064,007

Interventions (note 2(k))	 248,066,773	 —	 —	 —	 —	 248,066,773

Other		  1,038,298	 154,069	 617	 344,086	 1,001,742	 2,538,812

Grants		  7,254,446	 844,560	 150,000	 —	 —	 8,249,006

				    294,543,864	 18,642,129	 552,232	 9,184,156	 6,372,479	 329,294,860

Common area  
  and depreciation	 462,327	 431,704	 30,116	 609,330	 990,057	 2,523,534

		  Total expenses	 $295,006,191	 19,073,833	 582,348	 9,793,486	 7,362,536	 331,818,394

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Year ended August 31, 2016 (with comparative totals for 2015)

		  Program expenses	 Supporting expenses
				    Cross-		  General and	 Total
		  Health	 Peace	 program	 Fundraising	 administrative	 2016	 2015

Salaries and benefits	 $  13,976,052	 7,473,099	 230,689	 3,872,062	 4,581,283	 30,133,185	 27,018,457

Consulting	 5,057,871	 2,320,060	 73,449	 362,341	 596,450	 8,410,171	 8,983,709

Communications	 1,979,367	 394,159	 6,852	 2,074,688	 271,882	 4,726,948	 4,149,026

Services		 602,128	 1,185,187	 88,787	 1,267,783	 570,851	 3,714,736	 3,243,266

Office and equipment	 1,831,487	 988,195	 2,179	 150,712	 283,862	 3,256,435	 2,599,972

Vehicles	 6,065,078	 681,915	 30	 609	 1,054	 6,748,686	 5,381,832

Travel/meetings	 15,599,056	 3,892,837	 85,506	 1,287,148	 71,311	 20,935,858	 19,064,007

Interventions (note 2(k))	 238,122,423	 —	 —	 —	 —	 238,122,423	 248,066,773

Other		  1,466,097	 157,690	 1,219	 334,839	 1,037,212	 2,997,057	 2,538,812

Grants		  5,187,299	 1,085,242	 225,000	 —	 —	 6,497,541	 8,249,006

				    289,886,858	 18,178,384	 713,711	 9,350,182	 7,413,905	 325,543,040	 329,294,860

Common area  
  and depreciation	 485,289	 479,753	 32,509	 657,728	 1,068,696	 2,723,975	 2,523,534

		  Total expenses	 $290,372,147	 18,658,137	 746,220	 10,007,910	 8,482,601	 328,267,015	 331,818,394

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years ended August 31, 2016 and 2015

		  2016	 2015

Cash flows from operating activities:

Change in net assets			   $  (9,379,303)	 46,789,274

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash 
  provided by operating activities:

		  Depreciation				    953,159	 902,126

		  Depreciation of endowment investments, net			   14,997,577	 31,001,438

		  Donated artwork			   (8,200)	 (48,050)

		  Permanently restricted contributions			   (14,467,049)	 (12,329,763)

		�  Net change in inventory balances due to noncash 
  contributions and distributions			   29,470,967	 (11,547,418)

		  Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

				   Accounts receivable			   (933,217)	 (1,740,990)

				   Contributions receivable, net of permanently restricted		  (5,315,744)	 (11,011,940)

				   Other assets			   171,028	 503

				�   Accounts payable and accrued expenses, deferred 
  revenue, and annuity obligations			   8,128,305	 (2,649,490)

					    Net cash provided by operating activities			   23,617,523	 39,365,690

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of property and equipment, net of related payables			   (433,094)	 (599,540)

Purchase of investments			   (39,299,836)	 (43,271,093)

Sale of investments			   5,299,889	 5,362,201

					    Net cash used in investing activities			   (34,433,041)	 (38,508,432)

Cash flows from financing activities:

Permanently restricted contributions			   14,467,049	 12,329,763

Decrease in permanently restricted contributions receivable, net		  —	 10,000

					    Net cash provided by financing activities			   14,467,049	 12,339,763

					    Net change in cash and cash equivalents			   3,651,531	 13,197,021

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year			   45,022,022	 31,825,001

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year			   $ 48,673,553	 45,022,022

Supplemental disclosure:

Property, plant, and equipment additions totaling $43,167 and $92,082 were included in accounts 
  payable and accrued expenses at August 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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1	� Organization and 
Operation

The Carter Center, Inc. (CCI), formerly known as Carter 
Presidential Library, Inc. and Carter Presidential Center, 
Inc., was organized on October 26, 1981, under the laws 
of the State of Georgia as a not-for-profit corporation to 
be operated exclusively for charitable and educational 
purposes.

CCI operates programmatically under two main action 
areas: Peace and Health. CCI also receives broad-based 
support deemed to be beneficial to all programs and 
categorized as Cross program.

Initiatives in Peace include preventing and resolving 
conflict, protecting basic human rights, promoting rule 
of law, and monitoring elections in emerging democra-
cies. The Health area strives to improve health in the 
United States and around the world. Initiatives include 
disease eradication and control and mental health reform. 
CCI operates field offices in various African and Latin 
American countries as needed to fulfill its programmatic 
objectives.

The board of trustees of CCI consists of President 
Carter and Mrs. Carter, the president of Emory University, 
nine members appointed by Emory University’s board of 
trustees, and 10 members appointed by President Carter 
and those trustees not appointed by Emory University’s 
board of trustees (Carter Center class of CCI trustees). 
Additionally, Emory University’s board of trustees has 
the authority to approve amendments to CCI’s articles 
of incorporation and bylaws and to approve the annual 
and capital budgets of CCI. Carter Center of Emory 
University (CCEU) (an affiliate of CCI) is a department 
of Emory University which was established to assist with 
the operations of CCI’s programs. The financial data for 
CCEU is not included in these consolidated financial 
statements, as it is considered part of the Emory University 
reporting entity.

2	� Summary of Significant 
Accounting Policies 

and Other Matters

A. 	 Basis of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of CCI have 
been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

B.	 Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of CCI include 
the activity of The Carter Center Collaborative, Inc. 
(CCCI), an affiliated tax-exempt not-for-profit corpo-
ration that supports CCI’s mission through receipt of 
in-kind goods and services. All significant intercom-
pany transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

C.	 Basis of Presentation

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses 
are classified based on the existence or absence of 
donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of 
CCI and changes therein are classified and reported 
as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets — Net assets that are not 
subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets — Net assets 
subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or will 
be met either by actions of CCI and/or the passage 
of time.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets — Net assets 
subject to donor-imposed stipulations that must be 
maintained permanently by CCI. Generally, the 
donors of these assets permit CCI to use all or part of 
the income earned on related investments for general 
or specific purposes.

D.	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

CCI’s cash equivalents represent liquid financial 
instruments with an original maturity of three months 
or less.

E.	 Contributions

Contributions received, including unconditional prom-
ises to give, are recognized as revenue when assets or a 
donor’s unconditional commitment is received.

Unconditional promises to give that are expected to 
be collected within one year are recorded at net real-
izable value. Unconditional promises to give that are 
expected to be collected in future years are recorded at 
the present value of their estimated future cash flows. 
Unconditional promises to give are discounted using 
interest rates approximating fair value at the date of 
the gift. Conditional promises to give are not included 
as support until the conditions are substantially met.

Contributions are considered to be available for 
unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the 
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donor. Amounts received that are designated for future 
periods or restricted by the donor for specific purposes 
are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently 
restricted support that increases those net asset classes.

Contributed property and equipment is recorded at 
fair value at the date of donation. If donors stipulate 
how long the assets must be used, the contributions are 
recorded as restricted support. In the absence of such 
stipulations, contributions of property and equipment 
are recorded as unrestricted support.

F.	 In-Kind Gifts

Donated materials and equipment, primarily medical 
supplies, are reflected in the consolidated statements of 
activities as contributions at their estimated fair values. 
Donated services are reflected as contributions if the 
following criteria are met: (1) the services received 
create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (2) the 
services require specialized skills, are provided by indi-
viduals possessing those skills, and would be purchased 
if not provided by donation. Donated services are 
recognized at fair value as the services are performed.

G.	 Inventory

Inventory primarily consists of Mectizan tablets, which 
are used to treat onchocerciasis (river blindness), 
and Zithromax tablets and syrup, which are used for 
trachoma control. Inventory is received as an in-kind 
donation and is valued using the first-in, first-out 
method at fair value at the time of the gift. Values as 
determined by the donor and independent third-party 
pricing information are utilized in management’s fair-
value estimate.

H.	 Investments

Investments in the pooled endowment fund and pooled 
cash management fund (see note 5) are stated at fair 
value as determined by the manager, Emory University. 
Emory University’s pooled (the Fund) investments 
in securities include both U.S. and non-U.S. equities 
and fixed-income instruments. Fair value for these 
investments is measured based upon quoted prices in 
active markets, if available. If the market is inactive, 
fair value is determined by underlying managers and 
reviewed by Emory University after considering various 
sources of information. Due to variations in trading 
volumes and the lack of quoted market prices for fixed 
maturities, the fair value of fixed maturities is normally 
derived through recent reported trades for identical 
or similar securities, making adjustments through the 

financial reporting date based upon available market 
observable data described above.

Investments in funds primarily include investments 
in commingled equity and fixed-income funds and 
other investments in funds (hedged strategies, private 
market investments, real estate partnerships and 
natural resources) and are reported at fair value as 
determined by Emory University in accordance with 
Emory University’s valuation policies and procedures. 
Emory University has estimated the fair value of the 
majority of its investments in investment funds on the 
basis of the net asset value (NAV) per share of the 
investment (or its equivalent), as a practical expedient, 
if a) the underlying investment manager’s calculation 
of NAV is fair-value based, and b) the NAV has been 
calculated by the fund manager as of August 31, Emory 
University’ fiscal year end. If the reported NAV is 
not as of Emory University’s fiscal year end date or 
is not fair-value based, Emory University will adjust 
the NAV, if deemed necessary. If Emory University 
determines it is not practicable to calculate an adjusted 
NAV as of Emory University’s fiscal year end date, 
the practical expedient will not be utilized and other 
valuation methodologies will be used. Typically, real 
estate partnerships and funds are valued based on 
appraisals of underlying properties held and conducted 
by third-party appraisers retained by the general 
partner or investment manager. General partners of oil 
and gas partnerships also use third-party appraisers to 
value properties.

All other investments are stated at fair value based 
on quoted market prices. Net realized and unrealized 
gains or losses on investments are reflected in the 
consolidated statements of activities.

The values of the investments in the pooled 
endowment fund and pooled cash management 
fund determined by Emory University are evaluated 
by management of CCI who has concluded that 
such values are reasonable estimates of fair value at 
August 31, 2016 and 2015.

Investments are exposed to several risks, such as 
interest rate, currency, market and credit risks. Due to 
the level of risk associated with certain investments, 
it is reasonably possible that changes in the values of 
investments will occur in the near term and that such 
changes could materially affect the amounts reported 
in CCI’s consolidated financial statements.

The fund may hold investments denominated in 
currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Thus, there is 
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exposure to currency risk because the value of the 
investments denominated in other currencies may fluc-
tuate due to changes in currency exchange rates. This 
can have an effect on the reported value of these assets.

The fund’s investment portfolio is subject to interest 
rate and credit risks for certain securities whose valu-
ation would be impacted by changes in interest rates. 
The portfolio is also subject to the risk that the issuer 
of a debt security may be unable to pay interest or 
repay principal when it is due.

The value of securities held by the fund may decline 
in response to certain economic events. Such events 
impacting valuation may include (but not be limited 
to) economic changes, market fluctuations, regulatory 
changes, global and political instability, and currency, 
interest rate, and commodity price fluctuations.

I.	 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost at 
date of acquisition, or fair value at date of donation 
in the case of gifts. Depreciation is provided over the 
estimated useful lives of the respective assets on a 
straight-line basis.

J.	 Artwork

CCI has capitalized works of art and collectibles 
received since its inception at the estimated fair value 
at the date of acquisition. Works of art with service 
potential that diminishes very slowly over time are not 
subject to depreciation.

K.	 Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing CCI’s various programs and 
supporting services have been summarized on a 
functional basis in the accompanying consolidated 
statements of activities and functional expenses. 
Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among 
the programs and supporting services benefited. 
Intervention expenses included within CCI’s health 
program service comprise the distribution of donated 
medications, primarily Mectizan and Zithromax, as 
well as filter cloth distribution, epidemiological surveys, 
and health education training and material.

L.	 Federal and Other Government Grants

Federal and other government grant revenue is recog-
nized as unrestricted revenue and support to the extent 
that CCI incurs actual expenditures under program 
agreements with federal or other government agencies. 

Amounts recorded as accounts receivable due from the 
federal government are for program grant expenses 
incurred in advance of the reimbursement of funds. 
Funds received in advance of program grant expenses 
are recorded as deferred revenue in the consolidated 
statements of financial position.

For the year ended August 31, 2016 and 2015, CCI 
received 1,000,000 NOK ($114,157) and 2,000,000 
NOK ($270,348), respectively, from the Norwegian 
Ministry of Foreign Affairs in support of CCI’s project 
International Election Observation Mission in Tunisia. 
Under two separate agreements from the United 
Kingdom Department for International Development 
(DFID), CCI also received 676,418 GBP ($967,945) 
and 279,759 GBP ($401,791) during the year ended 
August 31, 2016, in support of CCI’s project Electoral 
Observation in the Democratic Republic of the Congo 
and Building Civil Society Capacity to Improve 
Industrial Mining Revenue Governance in the 
Democratic Republic of the Congo, respectively. CCI 
received 7,000,000 SEK ($827,195) and 5,000,000 SEK 
($614,544) for the year ended August 31, 2016, from 
the Swedish International Development Cooperation 
Agency in support of the Human Rights Defenders 
Protection and Capacity Building Program in the 
Democratic Republic of the Congo and to support 
related youth activities in the Democratic Republic 
of the Congo, respectively. Finally, during the year 
ended August 31, 2016, CCI received from the Swiss 
Confederation Federal Department of Foreign Affairs 
$103,149 for Extractive Industry Multi-stakeholder 
Dialogue in the Democratic Republic of the Congo 
and $157,000 in support of Support for the Peace 
Process and Political Transition in Syria.

For the year ended August 31, 2015, CCI received 
350,000 GBP ($536,979) from the United Kingdom 
Department for International Development (DFID) 
in support of CCI’s project Election Observation 
in Mozambique. Under a separate agreement from 
DFID, for the year ended August 31, 2015, CCI 
received 81,482 GBP ($124,589), in support of CCI’s 
project Mining Reform in the Democratic Republic of 
the Congo.

M.	Tax Status

CCI has received a determination letter from the 
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) dated December 16, 
1991, and CCCI has received a determination 
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letter from the IRS dated March 22, 2007, each 
indicating recognition as an organization described 
in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code 
(the Code) whereby only unrelated business income, 
as defined by Section 512(a) of the Code, is subject to 
federal income tax.

CCI applies Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification 
(ASC) Topic 740, Income Taxes, which addresses the 
accounting for uncertainty in income tax positions. 
It also provides guidance on when tax positions are 
recognized in an entity’s financial statements and how 
the values of these positions are determined. There 
is currently no impact on the consolidated financial 
statements as a result of ASC 740.

N.	 Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements 
requires management to make a number of estimates 
and assumptions relating to the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated 
financial statements and the reported amounts of 
revenue and expenses during the reporting period. 
Significant items subject to such estimates and 
assumptions include the useful lives of property, plant, 
and equipment, carrying values of contributions 
receivable and other receivables, inventory, fair values 
of investments without readily determinable fair value, 
contributed items, obligations under split-interest 
agreements, and various employment arrangements. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

O.	 New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standards 
Update (ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers (ASU 2014-09), which requires an 
entity to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of 
promised goods or services to customers in an amount 
that reflects the consideration to which the entity 
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or 
services. An entity also should disclose sufficient quan-
titative and qualitative information to enable users of 
financial statements to understand the nature, amount, 
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows 
arising from contracts with customers. The new stan-
dard is effective for CCI for fiscal years beginning after 
December 31, 2018 (as amended in August 2015 by 

ASU No. 2015-14, Deferral of Effective Date). CCI has 
not yet completed its assessment of the impact of the 
new standard on its consolidated financial statements.

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-
01, Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and 
Liabilities (ASU 2016-01). ASU 2016-01 addresses 
certain aspects of recognition, measurement, presenta-
tion, and disclosure of financial instruments. The ASU 
is effective for not-for-profit entities for fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 2018, with early adop-
tion restricted to certain provisions and within certain 
time periods. Under the ASU, not-for-profit entities 
are no longer required to disclose fair value informa-
tion concerning financial instruments measured at 
amortized cost such as long-term debt. CCI has not 
yet determined the impact of the new standard on its 
current policies.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 
No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). The amendments 
in ASU 2016-02 create FASB ASC Topic 842, Leases, 
and supersede the requirements in ASC Topic 840, 
Leases. ASU 2016-02 requires the recognition of lease 
assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases 
classified as operating leases under ASC Topic 840. 
Under the guidance of ASU 2016-02, a lessee should 
recognize in the balance sheet a liability to make 
lease payments (lease liability) and a right-of-use asset 
representing its right to use the underlying asset for 
the lease term. The accounting applied by a lessor 
under ASU 2016-02 is largely unchanged from that 
applied under ASC Topic 840. The ASU is effective 
for all business entities for fiscal years beginning after 
December 15, 2019. CCI has not yet determined the 
impact of the new standard on its current policies for 
lessee accounting.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-14, 
Presentation of Financial Statements of Non-for-Profit 
Entities. ASU 2016-14 (1) reduces the number of net 
asset classes presented from three to two; (2) requires 
the presentation of expenses by functional and natural 
classification in one location; and (3) requires quan-
titative and qualitative disclosures about liquidity and 
availability of financial assets. The ASU is effective 
for annual financial statements issued for fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 2017. CCI has not yet 
determined the impact of the new standard on its 
current policies.
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3	� Contributions  
Receivable

Contributions receivable consists of the following at 
August 31, 2016 and 2015:

		  2016	 2015

Temporarily restricted:
	 Health		  $24,242,633 	 20,718,241
	 Peace		  20,000 	 1,371,735
	 Cross-program		  246,414 	 149,741
	 Time-restricted		  2,918,655 	 —
Permanently restricted:
	 Endowment		  5,815,568 	 5,687,809
			   $33,243,270 	 27,927,526

The anticipated receipts of these receivables are as follows 
at August 31, 2016 and 2015:

		  2016	 2015

Less than one year		  $17,128,738 	 9,588,196
One to five years		  11,088,228 	 11,926,727
More than five years		  8,000,000 	 9,600,000
Less unamortized discount		  (2,973,696) 	 (3,187,397)
			   $33,243,270 	 27,927,526

Contributions to be received after one year are discounted 
at an appropriate discount rate commensurate with the 
risks involved. Amortization of discounts is recorded 
as additional contribution revenue in accordance 
with donor-imposed restrictions on the contributions. 
Unconditional promises received during fiscal 2016 were 
discounted using interest rates approximating fair value at 
the date of the gift at rates ranging from 0.86% to 2.15%. 
In the opinion of CCI’s management, all contributions 
receivable recorded at August 31, 2016 and 2015, are 
deemed fully collectible.

4	�  
Inventory

Inventory at August 31, 2016 and 2015, comprises:

		  2016	 2015

Medication:
	 Mectizan		  $2,966,400 	 908,228
	 Zithromax		  695,430 	 30,205,369
	 Praziquantel		  60,800 	 2,080,000
			   $3,722,630 	 33,193,597

5	�  
Investments

CCI invests the majority of its investments in a pooled 
investment fund managed by Emory University.

As of August 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, CCI’s 
investment in the pooled investment fund totaled 
$628,832,615 and $609,862,012, representing approxi-
mately 10.6% and 10.3% of the pool at each of these dates. 
The composition of all pooled investments held at Emory 
University is as follows (in thousands):

		  2016	 2015

Short-term investments and  
  cash equivalents		  $   301,320 	 228,725
Investments in securities:
	 �  Global equity securities:
	 �  U.S. equity securities		  357,601 	 406,148
	 Non-U.S. equity securities		  167,598 	 185,786
	 Fixed-income securities:
	 �  U.S. government securities	 224,315 	 172,638
	 �  Domestic bonds and  

  long-term notes		  51,596 	 80,002
	 �  International bonds and  

  long-term notes		  8,556 	 33,685
	 Investments in private securities	 14,765 	 —
	 Commingled funds — equity		  552,448 	 579,169
	 Commingled funds — fixed income	 287,285 	 254,261
Investments in funds:
	 Hedged strategies		  2,175,228 	 2,087,824
	 Private market investments		  1,024,840 	 1,198,986
	 Real estate partnerships		  326,398 	 240,735
	 Natural resources		  457,034 	 455,584
Derivatives		  192 	 10,278
			   $5,949,176 	 5,933,821

Emory University is subject to limitations and restrictions 
on its ability to redeem or sell certain of the investments 
included in its pooled investment fund. Such restrictions 
vary by investment type and range from required notice 
periods (generally 30 to 180 days after initial lockup 
periods) to specified terms at inception (generally 
10 years). While there are no stated limits relative to CCI 
withdrawals of its investment in Emory University’s pooled 
investment fund, the timing and availability of future 
redemptions may be impacted by these restrictions.

CCI’s investments also include assets invested for its 
charitable gift annuities and charitable remainder trusts. 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

78



from donors and remits to the donor or other designee a 
fixed amount for a specified period of time, normally until 
the death of the donor or other designee. Assets related to 
charitable gift annuities are recorded at their fair values 
when received and an annuity payment liability is recog-
nized at the present value of future cash flows expected 
to be paid to the donor or other designee. At the time 
of the gift, CCI recognizes contribution revenue for the 
remainder interest in an amount equal to the difference 
between the fair value of the assets received and the 
annuity liability. Discount rates and actuarial assumptions 
used to determine the annuity liability are typically based 
on factors such as applicable federal interest rates and life 
income beneficiary life expectancies as determined by 
mortality tables published by the IRS. The changes in the 
value of these agreements are included in operating contri-
butions and grants in the accompanying consolidated 
statements of activities.

Certain states have restrictions on investment alloca-
tions. Management of CCI believes it has complied with 
any known restrictions in states in which it has received 
charitable gifts subject to such restrictions.

The fair value of the assets related to split-interest 
agreements is included in investments in the accompa-
nying consolidated statements of financial position and 
totaled $10,413,966 and $10,382,199 at August 31, 2016 
and 2015, respectively. The annuity liability related 
to these agreements is $5,962,437 and $5,914,681 at 
August 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The net contribu-
tion revenue reported for split-interest agreements totaled 
$55,873 and $28,283 during the years ended August 31, 
2016 and 2015, respectively.

8	�  
Leases

CCI leases space to various entities under noncancelable 
operating leases with various terms. CCI leases to CCEU 
approximately 20% of CCI’s space under a lease for a 
term of 99 years with a rental payment of $1 per year. A 
business agreement with CCI’s caterer has no annual 
rent; rather, CCI receives 5% to 10% of the tenant’s gross 
revenue, as defined in such agreement. Rental income 
from these leases is included in facilities use income in the 
accompanying consolidated statements of activities.

These investments are presented in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of financial position at their 
fair values.
		  Fair value
		  2016	 2015

Pooled investments  
  held at Emory		  $628,832,615 	 609,862,012
Cash and cash equivalents		  166,732 	 128,913
Fixed income securities:
	 Domestic mutual funds		  3,695,646 	 5,317,805
Equities:
	 Domestic stocks		  5,004,053 	 3,887,878
	 Domestic mutual funds		  540,729 	 97,588
	 International mutual funds		  1,006,806 	 950,015
			   $639,246,581 	 620,244,211

6	� Property, Plant,  
and Equipment

The components of property, plant, and equipment at 
August 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

			   Estimated 
	 2016	 2015	 useful lives

Land	 $      636,732 	 636,732 	 N/A
Buildings	 17,216,712 	 17,216,712 	 30 years
Building improvements	 2,205,562 	 2,128,050 	 15 years
Grounds and land 
  improvements	 194,658 	 207,117 	 10 years
Furniture and fixtures	 759,444 	 732,045 	 10 years
Office equipment	 438,255 	 302,510 	 5 years
Computer equipment	 260,541 	 272,797 	 3 years
		  21,711,904 	 21,495,963
Less accumulated  
depreciation	 (16,620,173) 	(15,927,334)
		  $   5,091,731 	 5,568,629

Depreciation expense totaled $953,159 and $902,126 
during 2016 and 2015, respectively.

7	� Split-interest 
Agreements

CCI is beneficiary under several types of split-interest 
agreements, primarily charitable gift annuities. Under 
these agreements, CCI acts as trustee of assets received 
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9	� In-Kind  
Gifts

The components of in-kind gifts, donated goods and 
services, for the years ended August 31, 2016 and 2015 are 
as follows:

		  2016	 2015

Health:
	 Medication		  $202,533,012 	 255,342,940
	 Other		  244,539 	 644,764
			   202,777,551 	 255,987,704
Peace:
	 Vehicles		  199,414 	 —
	 Web hosting		  707,155 	 707,155
			   906,569 	 707,155
Operating:
	 Transportation		  125,000 	 262,720
			   $203,809,120 	 256,957,579

Donations of medication were received primarily from 
two pharmaceutical companies during the years ended 
August 31, 2016 and 2015.

10	� Fair Value of Financial 
Instruments

CCI’s estimates of fair value for financial and nonfinan-
cial assets and liabilities are based on the framework 
established in ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement. 
This framework is based on the inputs used in valuation 
and gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active 
markets and requires observable inputs to be used in the 
valuations when available. The disclosure of fair-value 
estimates in the hierarchy described below is based on 
whether the significant inputs into the valuation are 
observable. In determining the level of the hierarchy in 
which the estimate is disclosed, the highest priority is 
given to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets and 
the lowest priority to unobservable inputs that reflect 
CCI’s significant market assumptions. The three levels of 
the fair-value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 — Valuations based on unadjusted quoted 
market prices for identical assets or liabilities in 
active markets.

Level 2 — Valuations based on pricing inputs that 
are other than quoted prices in active markets that 

are either directly or indirectly observable. Examples 
include quoted prices in active markets of the under-
lying assets, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities 
in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar 
assets or liabilities in an inactive market, or valuations 
based on models where significant inputs are observ-
able or can be corroborated by observable market data.

Level 3 — Valuations are derived from other valuation 
methodologies, including pricing models, discounted 
cash flow models, and similar techniques. Level 3 valu-
ations incorporate certain assumptions and projections 
that are not observable in the market and require 
significant professional judgment in determining the 
fair value assigned to such assets or liabilities.

The fair-value hierarchy requires the use of observ-
able market data when available. As required by 
ASC Topic 820, assets and liabilities are classified in their 
entirety based on the lowest level of input that is signifi-
cant to the fair-value measurements.

Contributions receivable for current-year gifts are 
initially measured at fair value in the year the receivable 
is recorded based on the present value of future cash flows 
discounted at a rate commensurate with risks involved, 
which is an application of the income approach. Current-
year gifts included in contributions receivable reflected 
at fair value at August 31, 2016 and 2015, were approxi-
mately $11,185,000 and $19,965,000, respectively, and are 
classified as Level 3 within the fair-value hierarchy.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, 
accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabili-
ties, and deferred revenue approximates fair value because 
of the relative terms and short maturity of these financial 
instruments. The carrying value of annuity obligations 
approximates fair value and is based on the present value 
of the estimated future cash flows.

NAV was used as a practical expedient estimate 
of fair value relative to CCI’s interest in the Emory 
University pooled endowment fund. Net asset value, in 
many instances, may not equal fair value that would be 
calculated pursuant to ASC Topic 820. There are no 
redemption restrictions on CCI with respect to its pooled 
investments held at Emory University. In accordance with 
ASU 2015–07, investments that are valued using the prac-
tical expedient as described above are labeled as NAV and 
are not categorized within the fair-value hierarchy. CCI 
does not hold any investments that would be categorized 
as Level 3 investments as of August 31, 2016 and 2015, 
respectively.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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The following table summarizes the valuation of CCI’s financial instruments, which are recorded at fair value by the 
ASC Topic 820 fair-value hierarchy levels as of August 31, 2016:

	 Level 1	 NAV	 Total

Assets:
	 Cash and cash equivalents		  $48,840,285 	 — 	 48,840,285
	 Fixed-income securities:
		  Domestic mutual funds		  3,695,646 	 — 	 3,695,646
	 Equities:
		  Domestic stocks		  5,004,053 	 — 	 5,004,053
		  Domestic mutual funds		  540,729 	 — 	 540,729
		  International mutual funds	 1,006,806 	 — 	 1,006,806
	 Interest in Emory University pooled endowment fund	 — 	 628,832,615 	 628,832,615
			   Total		  $59,087,519 	 628,832,615 	 687,920,134

The following table summarizes the valuation of CCI’s financial instruments, which are recorded at fair value by the 
ASC Topic 820 fair-value hierarchy levels as of August 31, 2015:

	 Level 1	 NAV	 Total

Assets:
	 Cash and cash equivalents		  $45,150,935 	 — 	 45,150,935
	 Fixed-income securities:
		  Domestic mutual funds		  5,317,805 	 — 	 5,317,805
	 Equities:
		  Domestic stocks		  3,887,878 	 — 	 3,887,878
		  Domestic mutual funds		  97,588 	 — 	 97,588
		  International mutual funds	 950,015 	 — 	 950,015
	 Interest in Emory University pooled endowment fund	 — 	 609,862,012 	 609,862,012
			   Total		  $55,404,221 	 609,862,012 	 665,266,233
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11	� Net  
Assets

A.	 Unrestricted

�As of August 31, 2016 and 2015, unrestricted net assets 
are as follows:

		  2016	 2015

Undesignated		  $  11,923,602 	 12,005,011
Designated for:
	 Endowment investment		  237,098,395 	 230,316,860
	 Program funds		  4,225,510 	 7,167,775
	� Maintenance of property  

  and equipment		  500,000 	 500,000
			   $253,747,507 	 249,989,646

Unrestricted net assets include funds internally designated 
as additions for endowment investment and program 
funding. These amounts are classified as unrestricted net 
assets due to the lack of explicit donor stipulations that 
temporarily or permanently restrict their use. Unrealized 
gains or losses on internally designated endowment funds 
are classified as changes in unrestricted net assets.

B.	 Temporarily Restricted

As of August 31, 2016 and 2015, temporarily restricted net 
assets are available for the following purposes:

		  2016	 2015

Health		  $  43,411,636 	 80,039,731
Peace		  1,482,709 	 2,418,485
Cross-program		  1,327,893 	 1,193,492
Time-restricted endowment funds	 254,090,979 	 247,184,375
Time-restricted contributions		  2,918,655 	 —
			   $303,231,872 	 330,836,083

C.	 Permanently Restricted

Permanently restricted net assets totaling $158,517,685 
and $144,050,636 at August 31, 2016 and 2015, respec-
tively, are required by donors to be invested in perpetuity, 
and the income from these assets is expendable to support 
activities of CCI.

12	�  
Endowment Funds

CCI’s endowment funds consist of individual donor- 
restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the 
board of trustees (the Board) to function as endowments. 
The net assets associated with endowment funds, including 
those funds designated by the Board to function as endow-
ment, are classified and reported based on the existence or 
absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

CCI applies the provisions of ASC Subtopic 958 205, 
Presentation of Financial Statements. ASC Subtopic 958 
205 provides guidance on the net asset classification of 
donor-restricted endowment funds for a not-for-profit 
organization that is subject to an enacted version of the 
Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act 
(UPMIFA), and also requires enhanced disclosures about 
an organization’s endowment funds, both donor-restricted 
endowment funds and board-designated endowment funds.

CCI has interpreted UPMIFA, as adopted by the State 
of Georgia, as providing, among other things, expanded 
spending flexibility by allowing, subject to a standard of 
prudence, spending from an endowment without regard to 
the book value of the corpus of the fund. As a result of this 
interpretation, CCI classifies as permanently restricted net 
assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the perma-
nent endowment, (b) the original value of subsequent gifts 
to the permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to 
the permanent endowment made in accordance with the 
direction of the applicable donor gift instrument at the 
time the accumulation is added to the fund.

The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endow-
ment fund that is not classified in permanently restricted 
net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets 
until those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by 
CCI in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence 
prescribed in UPMIFA.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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In accordance with UPMIFA, CCI considers the 
following factors in making a determination to appropriate 
or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds:

• �The duration and preservation of the fund;

• �The purposes of CCI and the donor-restricted  
endowment fund;

• �General economic conditions;

• �The possible effect of inflation and deflation;

• �The expected total return from income and the  
appreciation of investments;

• �Other resources of CCI; and

• �The investment policies of CCI.

CCI invests its endowment assets in a pooled investment 
fund managed by Emory University. CCI’s Board follows 
the investment return objectives and the spending policy 
as directed and managed by Emory University’s board of 
trustees as set forth in more detail below.

Return Objectives and Risk Parameters

CCI supports Emory University’s investment and spending 
policies, the objective of which is to provide a predictable 
stream of funding to programs supported by its endow-
ment while seeking to maintain the purchasing power of 
the endowment assets. Under this investment policy, as 
approved by the Emory University Board of Trustees, the 
endowment assets are invested in a manner to attain a 
real total return of at least 8% (including inflation) over 
the long term. Over shorter time periods, the endowment 
assets performance will be measured versus a policy bench-
mark. The policy benchmark represents the weighted 
average of benchmark returns to each asset class in the 
policy asset allocation. The performance objective is to 
outperform the policy benchmark by at least 50 basis 
points, net of fees, on average. It is not expected that the 
performance target will be met for every three-year period.

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, CCI 
relies on Emory University’s total-return strategy in which 
investment returns are achieved through both capital 
appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current yield 
(interest and dividends). Emory University employs a 
diversified asset allocation strategy across global equities, 
fixed income, marketable alternatives and private invest-
ment to achieve its long-term return objectives within 
prudent risk constraints.

Spending Policy and How the Investment 
Objectives Relate to Spending Policy

CCI follows Emory University’s total-return endowment 
spending policy, which establishes the maximum amount 
of endowment investment return available to support 
current operating and capital needs. The maximum 
distribution of endowment income in 2016 and 2015 
was based on 4.75% of the average fair value of the 
endowment over the previous 12 months’ ending value on 
December 31. CCI considered the expected return on its 
endowment, including the effect of inflation in setting the 
annual appropriation amount. Accordingly, CCI expects 
the current spending policy to allow its endowment to 
maintain its purchasing power if projected growth rates are 
achieved. Additional real growth will be provided by new 
gifts and any excess investment return.
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Endowment funds consist of the following as of August 31, 2016:

		  Temporarily	 Permanently	  
	 Unrestricted	 restricted	 restricted	 Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds		  $                — 	 254,090,979 	 158,517,685 	 412,608,664
Board-designated endowment funds		  237,098,395 	 — 	 — 	 237,098,395
		  Total funds		  $237,098,395 	 254,090,979 	 158,517,685 	 649,707,059

Endowment funds consist of the following as of August 31, 2015:

		  Temporarily	 Permanently	  
	 Unrestricted	 restricted	 restricted	 Total

Donor-restricted endowment funds		  $                — 	 247,184,375 	 144,050,636 	 391,235,011
Board-designated endowment funds		  230,316,860 	 — 	 — 	 230,316,860
		  Total funds		  $230,316,860 	 247,184,375 	 144,050,636 	 621,551,871

Changes in endowment funds for the year ended August 31, 2016, are as follows:

		  Temporarily	 Permanently	  
	 Unrestricted	 restricted	 restricted	 Total

Endowment funds, August 31, 2015		  $230,316,860 	 247,184,375 	 144,050,636 	 621,551,871
Contributions		  2,609,631 	 — 	 14,467,049 	 17,076,680
Investment return:
	 Endowment fund earnings		  10,162,336 	 16,666,422 	 — 	 26,828,758
	 Depreciation of endowment investments, net	 (5,516,275) 	 (9,481,302) 	 — 	 (14,997,577)
		  Total investment return		  4,646,061 	 7,185,120 	 — 	 11,831,181
Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure	 (474,157) 	 (278,516) 	 — 	 (752,673)
Endowment funds, August 31, 2016		  $237,098,395 	 254,090,979 	 158,517,685 	 649,707,059

Changes in endowment funds for the year ended August 31, 2015, are as follows:

		  Temporarily	 Permanently	  
	 Unrestricted	 restricted	 restricted	 Total

Endowment funds, August 31, 2014		  $230,444,062 	 251,502,041 	 131,720,873 	 613,666,976
Contributions		  3,178,889 	 — 	 12,329,763 	 15,508,652
Investment return:
	 Endowment fund earnings		  9,275,829 	 14,824,914 	 — 	 24,100,743
	 Depreciation of endowment investments, net	 (12,142,302) 	 (18,859,136) 	 — 	 (31,001,438)
		  Total investment return		  (2,866,473) 	 (4,034,222) 	 — 	 (6,900,695)
Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure	 (439,618) 	 (283,444) 	 — 	 (723,062)
Endowment funds, August 31, 2015		  $230,316,860 	 247,184,375 	 144,050,636 	 621,551,871

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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13	� Related Party 
Transactions

Emory University provides certain administrative 
functions to CCI, including, but not limited to, payroll 
administration, investment management, information 
technology, and legal services. CCI paid Emory University 
$569,792 and $554,604 during the years ended August 31, 
2016 and 2015, respectively, for the provision of 
these services.

Emory University made unrestricted contributions 
to CCI of $690,980 and $660,782, respectively, during 
the years ended August 31, 2016 and 2015. In addition, 
CCEU made unrestricted contributions to CCI, primarily 
related to endowment earnings at CCEU, of $429,471 and 
$410,700 during the years ended August 31, 2016 and 
2015, respectively.

CCI is currently affiliated with two separately incorpo-
rated organizations, Carter Center U.K. and Carter Center 
U.K. Foundation.

14	� The Carter Center 
Collaborative, Inc. (CCCI)

CCCI received donations of in-kind goods for the 
benefit of CCI totaling $202,533,012 and $255,342,940, 
respectively, during the years ended August 31, 2016 
and 2015, which are included in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of activities. Expenses totaling 
$233,443,979 and $243,795,522 related to the use or 
grant of these donations are also included in the accom-
panying consolidated statements of activities for the years 
ended August 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. Inventory 
related to these goods for CCCI totaled $3,722,630 and 
$33,193,597 as of August 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively, 
and is included in the accompanying consolidated state-
ments of financial position.

15	� Commitments and 
Contingencies

Federal Financial Assistance

Federally funded programs are routinely subject to special 
audits that could result in claims against the resources of 
CCI. Management does not believe that there will be any 
claims arising from such audits that could have a material 
adverse effect on the financial position of CCI.

16	� Subsequent  
Events

CCI evaluated events subsequent to August 31, 2016, and 
through February 20, 2017, the date on which the consol-
idated financial statements were issued, and determined 
that all significant events and disclosures are included in 
the consolidated financial statements.
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A boy in Yangon, Myanmar, grins during the historic 
2015 elections in the country. Carter Center 
observers visited 245 polling stations on its mission.
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n Peace Programs

n Health Programs

n �Peace and Health 
Programs

n No Activity

Field Office
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Central America
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  7	�Dominican 
Republic

  8	El Salvador

  9	Guatemala

10	Haiti

11	Honduras

12	Jamaica

13	Nicaragua

14	Panama

North America

1	Canada

2	Mexico

3	United States

Europe

26	Albania
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30	Russia

South America

15	Argentina

16	Bolivia

17	Brazil

18	Chile

19	Colombia

20	Ecuador

21	Guyana

22	Paraguay

23	Peru

24	Suriname

25	Venezuela

Since its founding in 
1982, The Carter Center 
has undertaken peace 
and health initiatives in 
more than 80 countries 
worldwide. These are 
the countries where 
the Center has had a 
presence, past and 
present.
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Africa
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Interns and Graduate Assistants

Senior Staff

Peace Programs
Jordan Ryan, J.D., M.A. 
Vice President, Peace Programs

Hrair Balian, J.D. 
Director, Conflict Resolution 
Program

David J. Carroll, Ph.D.
Director, Democracy Program

Yawei Liu, Ph.D.
Director, China Program

Jennie K. Lincoln, Ph.D.
Director, Latin America and 
Caribbean Program

Laura Neuman, J.D.
Director, Global Access to 
Information Program

Health Programs
Dean G. Sienko, M.D., M.S.
Vice President, Health Programs

Stephen B. Blount, M.D., 
M.P.H.
Director, Special Health Projects

Eve H. Byrd, M.S.N., M.P.H.
Director, Mental Health Program

Kelly Callahan, M.P.H.
Director, Trachoma Control 
Program

William H. Foege, 
M.D., M.P.H.
Senior Fellow, Health Policy

Frank O. Richards Jr., M.D.
Director, 
– �River Blindness Elimination 

Program
– �Lymphatic Filariasis 

Elimination Program
– �Schistosomiasis Control Program

Ernesto Ruiz-Tiben, Ph.D.
Director, Guinea Worm 
Eradication Program

Cross-Program
P. Craig Withers Jr., 
M.H.A., M.B.A.
Senior Director, International 
Program Support

Operations
Phillip J. Wise Jr. 
Vice President, Operations 
and Development; 
Corporate Secretary

Deanna Congileo, M.A. 
Director, Communications

Sabrina Burnett
Director, Human Resources

Finance
Christopher D. Brown, CPA
Vice President, Finance; Treasurer

Ambassador (Ret.) Mary Ann Peters
Chief Executive Officer, The Carter Center

Educational Programs
Lauren S. Kent-Delany, M.A.
Director, Educational Programs

Research
Steven H. Hochman, Ph.D.
Director, Research; 
Faculty Assistant to 
President Carter

Office of Jimmy and 
Rosalynn Carter
Lauren L. Gay
Special Assistant to 
Jimmy Carter

Beth M. Davis
Special Assistant, 
Presidential Scheduling

Melissa M. Montgomery
Special Assistant to 
Rosalynn Carter

T
he Carter Center sponsors a competitive internship 
program, bringing to Atlanta college students and 
recent graduates from universities around the world 

each semester. Interns and graduate assistants play a vital 
role in helping The Carter Center accomplish its peace 
and health initiatives, and interns serve in many capacities 

around the Center. In turn, The Carter Center provides 
a substantive learning experience that serves as a basis for 
interns to explore their career options and to develop pro-
fessional skills.

The 2015–2016 class of interns and graduate assistants 
numbered 128 students and recent graduates from 21 
countries who spoke 33 languages.

Over its history, The Carter Center has had 3,055 
interns.

Mai Kataoka, an intern in the 
Conflict Resolution Program, 
attends a diplomatic lunch 
aboard a boat on the Nile 
River in Sudan. Kataoka 
was part of a Carter Center 
delegation that organized 
a series of meetings in 
Sudan for members of the 
government, civil society, 
and opposition groups. The 
country has struggled to find 
permanent peace.
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International Task Force for Disease Eradication

Sir George Alleyne, M.D., 
F.R.C.P.
Director Emeritus, Pan-American 

Health Organization

Stephen B. Blount, M.D., 
M.P.H. (Chair)
Director, Special Health Programs
The Carter Center

Dirk Engels, M.D., Ph.D.
Director, Department of Control 

of Neglected Tropical Diseases
World Health Organization

Donald R. Hopkins, M.D., 
M.P.H.
Special Advisor, Guinea Worm 

Eradication
The Carter Center

Julie Jacobson, M.D., D.T.M.H.
Senior Program Officer, 

Neglected Infectious Diseases
Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation

Hamid S. Jafari, M.D., M.B.B.S.
Principal Deputy Director, 

Center for Global Health
U.S. Centers for Disease 

Control and Prevention

Adetokunbo Lucas, M.D.
Adjunct Professor of 

International Health
Harvard University

David Molyneux, Ph.D., 
D.Sc., Hon. F.R.C.P.
Professor, Tropical Health 

Sciences
Liverpool School of 

Tropical Medicine

Patrick L. Osewe, M.D., M.P.H.
Global Lead, Healthy Societies 

Global Solutions Group
The World Bank

Stefan Swartling Peterson, Ph.D., 
M.P.H.

Chief, Health Section; Associate 
Director, Programme Division

UNICEF

David A. Ross, ScD
President and CEO 

Task Force for Global Health

Torquato Jardim 
Former Justice of the Superior 
Electoral Tribunal of Brazil

Serena Joseph-Harris 
Former High Commissioner for the 
Republic of Trinidad and Tobago 
to the United Kingdom

Luis Alberto Lacalle 
Former President of Uruguay

Samuel Lewis 
Former Vice President of Panama

John Maisto 
Former U.S. Ambassador to the 
Organization of American States

John Manley 
Former Minister of Foreign 
Affairs of Canada

Barbara McDougall 
Former Minister of External 
Affairs of Canada

Carlos Mesa 
Former President of Bolivia

Pedro Nikken 
Former President of the Inter-
American Court for Human 
Rights, Venezuela

Andrés Pastrana 
Former President of Colombia

Sonia Picado 
Chair of the Board of Directors of 
the Inter-American Institute of 
Human Rights

Sergio Ramirez 
Former Vice President of 
Nicaragua

Sir Ronald Sanders 
Member of the Commonwealth 
Eminent Persons Group 
2010–2011

Lloyd Erskine Sandiford 
Former Prime Minister of Barbados

Bruno Stagno 
Former Foreign Minister of 
Costa Rica

Eduardo Stein 
Former Vice President of 
Guatemala

Alejandro Toledo 
Former President of Peru

Martín Torrijos 
Former President of Panama

Fernando Tuesta Soldevilla 
Former Director, National Office 
of Electoral Processes, Peru

Joaquín Villalobos 
Founder of the Farabundo Marti 
National Liberation Front, 
Signatory of the Peace Agreements 
of El Salvador in 1992

Notable scientists and organizations come together in this 

Carter Center task force to evaluate the potential for eradi

cating or controlling infectious diseases. It monitors progress 

in disease eradication, reviews the status of selected diseases, 

and recommends opportunities for eradication or better control 

of diseases such as Guinea worm disease, river blindness, lym-

phatic filariasis, schistosomiasis, malaria, and measles.

The Friends of the Inter-American Democratic Charter is 

composed of former presidents, prime ministers, and cabinet 

ministers from the Western Hemisphere who seek to increase 

the visibility of the charter and to prevent democratic ten-

sions from erupting into crises.

Dean Sienko, M.D., M.S.
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The Carter Center
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Chief Executive Officer
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Fernando Henrique Cardoso 
Former President of Brazil

Jimmy Carter 
Former President of the 
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The Carter Center Mental Health Task Force
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M.D., M.P.H. 
Professor of Psychiatry, Emeritus, 
Mayo Clinic
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Rollins School of Public Health, 
Emory University
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Mary Jane England, M.D. 
Boston University School of 
Public Health
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President and Chief Executive 
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W. Rodney Hammond, Ph.D. 
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Disease Control and Prevention

Ethleen Iron Cloud-Two 
Dogs, M.S. 
Porcupine, S.D.

Stanley S. Jones Jr., J.D. 
Partner; Nelson, Mullins, Riley 
and Scarborough, LLP

Nadine J. Kaslow, Ph.D., ABPP 
Professor and Chief Psychologist, 
Department of Psychiatry and 
Behavioral Sciences, Emory 
University

Ruth Perou, Ph.D. 
Behavioral Scientist, National 
Center on Birth Defects and 
Developmental Disabilities, U.S. 
Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention

Sally Engelhard Pingree 
President, The S. Engelhard 
Center; Trustee, The Charles 
Engelhard Foundation

Leslie Scallet, J.D. 
Washington, D.C.

Joel Slack 
President, Slack Consulting

Ex-Officio
Kathryn Cade 
Board of Trustees, Judge Baker 
Children’s Center

Gregory L. Fricchione, M.D. 
Associate Chief of Psychiatry, 
Massachusetts General Hospital

John J. Gates, Ph.D. 
Former Director, Carter Center 
Mental Health Program

Larke Huang, Ph.D. 
Director, Office of Behavioral 
Health Equity, SAMHSA

Fellow
William Foege, M.D. 
Director, Centers for Disease 
Control, 1977–83; Health Policy 
Fellow, The Carter Center

National Advisory Council
William G. Baker Jr., M.D. 
Founder, Chrysalis Farms, LLC

Johnnetta B. Cole, Ph.D. 
Director, Smithsonian National 
Museum of African Art

Jane Delgado, Ph.D. 
President and Chief Executive 
Officer, National Alliance for 
Hispanic Health

Jeffrey Houpt, M.D. 
Executive Coaching and 
Consulting

Patrick Kennedy 
Former U.S. Representative, 
Rhode Island

Antonia Novello, M.D. 
Executive Director of Public 
Policy, Florida Hospital

Robert D. Ray 
Governor of Iowa, 1969–83; 
President Emeritus, Drake 
University

David Satcher, M.D., Ph.D. 
Director, Satcher Health 
Leadership Institute, Morehouse 
School of Medicine

Richard Surles, Ph.D.  
Senior Director, Otsuka 
Pharmaceuticals

Beverly Tatum, Ph.D. 
President, Spelman College

Cynthia Ann Telles, Ph.D. 
Associate Clinical Professor, 
Department of Psychiatry and 
Biobehavioral Sciences, University 
of California at Los Angeles 
School of Medicine

Joanne Woodward 
Actress; Director

Chaired by former First Lady Rosalynn Carter, the Mental 

Health Task Force focuses on mental health policy issues. 

It develops initiatives to reduce stigma and discrimination 

against people with mental illnesses; seeks equity for mental 

health care comparable to other health care; advances pre-

vention, promotion, and early intervention services for young 

children and their families; and works to increase public 

awareness and stimulate actions about mental health issues.

Susan Ford Bales 
Board Member, Bosque School; 
Board Member, Gerald R. Ford 
Presidential Foundation

Kathryn Cade 
Carter Center Mental Health 
Task Force Liaison

Caroline S. Clauss-Ehlers, Ph.D. 
Associate Professor, Rutgers 
University

Benjamin G. Druss, 
M.D., M.P.H. 
Rosalynn Carter Endowed Chair 
for Mental Health, Rollins 
School of Public Health, Emory 
University

Larry Fricks 
Deputy Director, SAMHSA, 
Center for Integrated Health 
Solutions

Katie Hawkins-Gaar 
Digital Innovation Faculty, 
Poynter 

John F. Head 
Communications Director, Judge 
David L. Bazelon Center for 
Mental Health Law

Kay Redfield Jamison, Ph.D. 
Professor of Psychiatry, 
The Johns Hopkins University 
School of Medicine

Advisory board members select fellows and serve as mentors 

who provide technical assistance and share professional 

contacts within their fields of expertise.

Louisa Craft Jornayvez, M.A. 
Journalist and Artist; Founder, 
Emanuel Project

Hank Klibanoff 
James M. Cox Jr. Professor of 
Journalism, Emory University

Lawrence A. Kutner, Ph.D. 
Executive Director, Stanford 
Pre-College Studies, Stanford 
University

Bill Lichtenstein 
President, Lichtenstein  
Creative Media

Tori Murden McClure, M.Div., 
J.D., M.F.A. 
President, Spalding University

Bob Meyers 
President, Emeritus, National  
Press Foundation

Ellen Mickiewicz, Ph.D. 
James R. Shepley Professor of 
Public Policy Studies, Duke 
University

Arlene Morgan 
Assistant Dean, School of Media 
and Communication, Temple 
University

International Advisers
Ioana Avadani 
Director, Center for Independent 
Journalism, Romania

Zane Wilson 
Founder South African Depression 
and Anxiety Group, South Africa 

Yahira Rossini Guzmán Sabogal 
Head of Mental Health, 
Universidad de la Sabana, 
Columbia

Victor M. García 
Assistant Professor, Universidad de 
la Sabana, Colombia
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A group of South Sudanese care for 
their cattle. The Carter Center has 
worked in the country since 1986, 
when the area was still part of Sudan.
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